
 

 

Safer and Stronger 
Communities Scrutiny and 
Policy Development Committee 
 
Thursday 10 January 2013 at 2.00 pm 

 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Chris Weldon (Chair), Penny Baker (Deputy Chair), David Barker, 
Nikki Bond, Simon Clement-Jones, Shelia Constance, Richard Crowther, 
Jayne Dunn, Denise Fox, Martin Lawton, Shaffaq Mohammed, Peter Rippon and 
Chris Rosling-Josephs 
 
Substitute Members 
 
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the 
above Committee Members as and when required. 
 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee exercises an overview 
and scrutiny function in respect of the planning, development and monitoring of 
performance and delivery of services which aim to make Sheffield a safer, stronger 
and more sustainable city for all of its residents.  
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.  You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Scrutiny 
Committee meetings.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for 
further information. 
 
Scrutiny Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave.  Any private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the 
meeting please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to 
the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information about this Scrutiny Committee, please contact 
David Molloy, Scrutiny Policy Officer on 0114 2735065 or email 
david.molloy@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY AND POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA 

10 JANUARY 2013 
 

Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
2. Apologies for Absence 

 
3. Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public 
 

4. Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting 
 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8th 

November, 2012 
 

6. Public Questions and Petitions 
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public 

 
7. Allocations Policy Review - Welfare Reform Consultation Results 
 Report of the Executive Director, Communities 

 
8. The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2013/14 - Update 
 Report of the Executive Director, Communities 

 
9. Housing Strategy 2013 to 2023 
 Report of the Executive Director, Communities 

 
10. Date of Next Meeting 
 To note that the next meeting of the Committee will be held on Thursday, 

14th March, 2013, at 2.00 pm, in the Town Hall 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
New standards arrangements were introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  The new 
regime made changes to the way that members’ interests are registered and 
declared.   
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

•  Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or 
gain, which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes. 

  

•  Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests.  

  

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

•  Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner 
(or a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority -  
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

  

•  Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority.  

  

•  Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a 
month or longer.  

  

•  Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
 - the landlord is your council or authority; and  

- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner,   
has a beneficial interest. 
 

•  Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  
 

 (a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of your council or authority; and  

 
 (b) either  

- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  

- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your 
spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.  

 
 
Under the Council’s Code of Conduct, members must act in accordance with the 
Seven Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; 
openness; honesty; and leadership), including the principle of honesty, which says 
that ‘holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to 
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest’. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life.  

Page 2



 3

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 

 
• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 

are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 
Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously, and has been published on the Council’s website as a downloadable 
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114 
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk  
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
 

Meeting held 8 November 2012 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Chris Weldon (Chair), David Barker, Nikki Bond, 

Simon Clement-Jones, Shelia Constance, Richard Crowther, 
Jayne Dunn, Denise Fox, Martin Lawton, Peter Rippon, Chris Rosling-
Josephs and Diana Stimely (Substitute Member) 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Penny Baker and Shaffaq 
Mohammed, and Councillor Diana Stimely attended as a substitute Member. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 Members declared the following personal interests in Item 7 on the agenda – 
Lettings Policy Review:-  

  
 • Councillor Martin Lawton – Member of the Local Management Board of Acis 

Group Limited; 
  
 • Councillor Peter Rippon – Member of Shiregreen Community Homes;  
  
 • Councillor Richard Crowther – Member of the Sheffield Homes North West 

Area Board; 
  
 • Councillor Denise Fox – Member of the Sheffield Homes South East Area 

Board; and 
  
 • Councillor Jayne Dunn – Member of the Sheffield Homes North West Area 

Board. 
 
4.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
held 11th September 2012, were approved as a correct record. 

 
5.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 Mick Watts questioned what assurances Members could give to ensure that the 
projected underspend in the Housing Revenue Account was fully allocated. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
8.11.2012 

Page 2 of 5 
 

  
 Richard Palmer stated that now the Council had a self-financing Housing Revenue 

Account, resulting in the Council holding all risks, there was a need to maintain a 
substantial reserve to mitigate any such risks or problems that may arise and 
therefore, a large proportion of the underspend might need to be placed in 
reserves.  A reserves strategy was under development, to establish the size of the 
reserve required.  A particular risk was the potential impact of welfare benefits 
reform on the ability of tenants to pay their rent.  Initially, any unallocated 
underspend at year end would be carried over into reserves at the year end and 
would not be lost to the Housing Revenue Account.  The Cabinet would be making 
a decision on this issue at its meeting to be held in February 2013.  Councillor 
Harry Harpham, Cabinet Member for Homes and Neighbourhoods, attending as an 
observer, confirmed that the Council needed to be aware of the risks involved in 
terms of the transfer of the Housing Revenue Account, stressing the need for 
robust plans in terms of any uncertainties, hence the need for considerable 
reserves.  He stated that it was the aim of the Council to have a high quality 
housing service therefore, reserves would not be maintained at a higher level than 
needed and any surplus would be reinvested into housing services.   

 
6.  
 

DRAFT LETTINGS POLICY REVIEW 
 

6.1 Sharon Schonborn, Allocations Policy Review Manager, Communities, gave a 
presentation on the draft Lettings Policy Review, reporting on why the review had 
been undertaken, the work undertaken so far as part of the review, the draft 
Allocations Policy, the Housing Register and how the Council would be deciding 
between the various housing needs.  She referred to all the various aspects in 
terms of the proposed procedures relating to looking for a property and offers of 
accommodation and concluded by reporting on the next steps, including the 
deadlines in terms of the adoption of the Policy, and subsequent implementation.  
In terms of the next steps, it was reported that consultation on the Policy would be 
held during November and December 2012, there would be an analysis of the 
consultation and the final Policy document produced in January 2013, which 
would be submitted to the Cabinet for approval on 20th March 2013. 

  
6.2 Members of the Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee raised questions 

and the following responses were provided:- 
  
 • Those people suffering financial hardship in terms of reduced benefit 

payments following a requirement to downsize would not be deemed to have 
critical needs.  Only those in serious danger and therefore, requiring to move 
immediately, would be included in the critical band and granted priority.  Any 
tenants suffering financial hardship would have the opportunity of applying 
for discretionary housing payments in the short-term. 

  
 • There were safeguards in place to ensure that applicants were not able to 

bid for properties that they were not entitled to.  The new IT system would 
ensure that applicants were only able to access details of those properties in 
accordance with their individual eligibility.  In those situations where 
applicants were assisted by Tenants’ and Residents’ Associations (TARAs) 
or other similar organisations, such organisations would be able to receive a 

Page 6



Meeting of the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
8.11.2012 

Page 3 of 5 
 

print-out of all available properties, but the application would have to be 
made by the tenant, who would only be able to apply for properties they 
were eligible for. 

  
 • In terms of equality of opportunity implications, officers had looked at any 

barriers facing applicants, and how such barriers could be overcome.  Action 
Plans had been devised in terms of barriers and what could be put in place 
to help applicants overcome these barriers. Targetted consultation was 
being carried out with those groups adversely affected by the tightened 
bedroom eligibility criteria, such as those with overnight access to children 
who don’t live with them all of the time and people with health issues, and 
requiring an additional bedroom.    

  
 • There were a number of safety nets in place to deal with those situations 

where people were experiencing delays in being rehoused and were either 
not receiving any benefit or were in receipt of a reduced amount of benefit.  
In some cases, tenants would be able to apply for discretionary housing 
payments in the short-term.  All cases would be handled very sensitively and 
there was a considerable amount of flexibility in the Policy to ensure tenants 
were assisted. 

  
 • It was not likely that people who put their name on the Council waiting list 

when they got married sometime ago, would still be on the list as regular 
rolling reviews of the waiting list were undertaken and under the new Policy, 
applicants would have to register on the waiting list annually. 

  
 • If people intentionally made themselves homeless by failing to pay their rent, 

they would not get priority for Council housing.  A review of an applicant’s 
five-year address history would be considered as part of any applications. 

  
6.3 RESOLVED: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) notes the contents of the report now submitted, the information reported as 

part of the presentation and the responses to the questions now raised;  
  
 (b) expresses its thanks and appreciation to all the Officers and Members, 

including those Members of the former Safer and Stronger Communities 
Scrutiny Committee, for all the excellent work undertaken in connection with 
the Lettings Policy Review; and  

  
 (c) requests that a report on the draft Lettings Policy be submitted to its meeting 

to be held on 10th January 2013. 
 
7.  
 

HOMELESSNESS PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 

7.1 The Executive Director, Communities, submitted a report containing details of key 
performance issues regarding homelessness in the City. 

  
7.2 Jan Sutton, Housing Solutions Manager, introduced the report and referred to bed 

and breakfast and temporary accommodation use, homelessness preventions, 

Page 7



Meeting of the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
8.11.2012 

Page 4 of 5 
 

projected increases in the number of homeless over the next few years and details 
of the key challenges facing the Council in respect of homelessness. 

  
7.3 Members of the Committee raised questions and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
 • An Officer Working Group had been established specifically to work with 

private landlords, with the aim of discussing levels of rent and negotiating, 
where possible, reduction in rents, particularly for larger families where there 
was no suitable Council accommodation available. 

  
 • Officers would look at the criteria with regard to the possibility of obtaining 

Government funding to undertake refurbishment works required to bring 
vacant properties back to such a condition so as to be able to house 
homeless people. 

  
 • It is unlikely that the target of zero households in bed and breakfast 

accommodation will be achieved unless the Supported Accommodation 
Pathway can be implemented.  The Pathway has not been implemented 
because the required funding of £300,000 for the necessary ICT was not 
approved.  Alternative funding was being considered through the Capital 
Programme. 

  
 • A certain proportion of beds were held at St Ann’s Hostel for Housing 

Solutions customers, which meant that they would not have to go into bed 
and breakfast.  Assistance and support was provided in order to make sure 
homeless or vulnerable people gained the necessary ability and skills to 
enable them to live on their own in a Council tenancy. 

  
 • Partners were still taking a role in ensuring that they took their fair share of 

presentations in terms of homeless and/or vulnerable people who required 
accommodation. 

  
 • There was a very strict protocol in respect of the standard of accommodation 

offered by bed and breakfast providers.  There were only four bed and 
breakfast providers that the Council used on a regular basis and all these 
properties were checked regularly in terms of standards of cleanliness. 

  
7.4 RESOLVED: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) notes the contents of the report now submitted, together with the responses 

provided to the questions raised; and 
  
 (b) requests that (i) a further report on homelessness performance be submitted 

to a meeting of the Committee in six month’s time and (ii) the report be 
referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee, (A) with a 
request that Members look at the possibility of implementing cross-cutting 
measures to deal with the problems of homelessness in the City and (B) 
highlighting the fact that the Homelessness Service was operating under 
pressure and requesting that such pressures could be alleviated where 

Page 8



Meeting of the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
8.11.2012 

Page 5 of 5 
 

possible. 
 
8.  
 

POLICY UPDATE 
 

8.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Scrutiny Policy Officer 
providing an update on policy changes introduced by the Government during 
September and October 2012. 

 
9.  
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

9.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Thursday, 
10th January 2013, at 2.00 pm in the Town Hall. 

 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 

 
 

 
Report of: Head of Housing Commissioning  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Allocations Policy Review 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Sharon Schonborn 

Allocations Policy Review Manager  
0114 203 7613   

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
The Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee requested that the 
Allocations Policy Review Project Team return to present the findings of the 
third and final phase of consultation in relation to the draft Allocations Policy.  
This is in order for the Scrutiny Committee to be able to consider the findings 
and comment. 
 
The key points noted within the report are as follows: 
 

• Sheffield City Council has produced a draft Allocations Policy.  This was 
developed following public consultation and in partnership with The 
Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee. 

• Within the new draft Allocations Policy bedroom eligibility has been 
restricted.  This is as a result of increased demand for social housing 
coupled with national welfare reform.   

• This means that some Housing Register applicants will be allocated 
properties with fewer bedrooms than they would currently be entitled to. 

• The under occupiers’ penalty (or bedroom tax) will come into effect in 
April 2013.  It will affect working age tenants of social housing.  They will 
no longer receive Housing Benefit for bedrooms they are deemed not to 
require. 

• Around 65% of existing tenants are in receipt of Housing Benefit. 

• If the bedroom eligibility were to remain unchanged, we would risk 
setting new tenants up to fail. 

• 65% of questionnaire respondents from the main consultation period 
(September 2011 – February 2012) thought that we should allocate the 
minimum number of bedrooms to meet housing need. 

• It is estimated that around 5000 current council tenants will be affected. 

• There are significant implications for the Council in terms of rent loss if 
people cannot afford to pay any shortfall in rent brought about by welfare 
reform. 

• The following groups of people will be particularly affected by both the 
restricted bedroom eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty: 

Report to The Safer and Stronger 
Scrutiny & Policy Development 

Committee 
Insert date  

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



 2

o People with overnight contact with children who don’t live with 
them all of the time. 

o People with disabilities. 
o People with intermittent periods of ill health, including mental 

health issues. 
o People who are cared for by a resident carer, such as their 

partner. 

• There could be implications for the adaptations budget, social services 
adult and children’s services coming from restricting bedroom eligibility.  

• Consultation has been undertaken with Registered Private Providers of 
Social Housing (RPs also formerly known as Housing Associations) and 
with the aforementioned groups adversely affected by changes. 

• The results of the consultation are contained within separate documents 
appended to this report. 

• During the consultation period DCLG produced regulations relating to 
the Armed Forces, which came into force on the 30th November. 

• The section on members of the armed forces in the draft policy (at 4.13) 
is no longer compliant and consideration needs to be given on how to 
apply the required additional preference. 

__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy X 

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Community Assembly request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee  

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 
1. Consider the consultation analysis reports and provide views and 

comments.   
2. Consider the requirement to award members of the Armed Forces additional 

preference and how that should be applied in Sheffield. 
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
 

• Questionnaire Consultation Analysis Report – Impact of restricted bedroom 
eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty.    

• Consultation Report – Impact of restricted bedroom eligibility and the under 
occupiers’ penalty. 

 
Category of Report: OPEN  
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 3

Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Report of the Head of Housing Commissioning 
Allocations Policy Review – Welfare Reform Consultation Results 
10th January 2013 
 
SECTION A: INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT 
1. Purpose of Report                        
 
1.1 The Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee requested that 

the Allocations Policy Review Project Team return to present the findings 
of the third and final phase of consultation in relation to the draft 
Allocations Policy.  

 
2. Summary of Issues 
 
2.1 Sheffield City Council has produced a draft Allocations Policy.   
 
2.2 Within the new draft Allocations Policy bedroom eligibility has been 

restricted.   
 
2.3 This means that some Housing Register applicants will be allocated 

properties with fewer bedrooms than they would currently be entitled to. 
 
2.4 The under occupiers’ penalty (or bedroom tax) will come into effect in 

April 2013.  It will affect working age tenants of social housing.  They will 
no longer receive Housing Benefit for bedrooms they are deemed not to 
require. 

 
2.5 Around 65% of existing tenants are in receipt of Housing Benefit. 

If the bedroom eligibility were to remain unchanged, we would risk 
setting new tenants up to fail. 

 
2.6 It is estimated that around 5000 current council tenants will be affected. 
 
2.7 There are significant implications for us in terms of rent loss if people 

cannot afford to pay any shortfall in rent brought about by welfare 
reform. 

 
2.8 The following groups of people will be particularly affected by both the 

restricted bedroom eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty: 
 

a. People with overnight contact with children who don’t live with them 
all of the time. 

b. People with disabilities. 
c. People with intermittent periods of ill health, including mental health 

issues. 
d. People who are cared for by a resident carer, such as their partner. 

 
2.9 There could be implications for the adaptations budget, social services 

adult and children’s services coming from restricting bedroom eligibility.  
 
2.10 Consultation has been undertaken with Registered Private Providers of 

Social Housing (RPs also formerly known as Housing Associations) and 
with the aforementioned groups adversely affected by changes. 

Page 13



 4

 
2.11 The results of the consultation are contained within separate documents 

appended to this report. 
 
2.12 During the consultation period DCLG produced regulations relating to 

the Armed Forces, which came into force on the 30th November. 
 
2.13 The section on members of the armed forces in the draft policy (at 4.13) 

is no longer compliant and consideration needs to be given on how to 
apply the required additional preference. 

 
3. Introduction 
 
3.1 Over the past year the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny 

Committee have worked in partnership with the Allocations Policy 
Review Project Board and Team to produce a Draft Allocations Policy. 

 
3.2 Producing the draft Allocations Policy involved three phases of 

consultation: 
  

i) A comprehensive pre-consultation scoping exercise. 
ii) An extensive six month period of open public consultation. 
iii) A shorter, targeted period of consultation. 

 
3.3     The third and final phase of consultation was when a draft Allocations 

Policy was produced and the draft went out for consultation during 
November and December 2012. 

 
3.4 It was agree that this phase of consultation should be much shorter and 

targeted to the following groups: 
 

• RPs - Registered Private Providers of Social Housing (also known as 
Housing Associations) 

• People with overnight contact with children who don’t live with them 
all the time 

• People with a health issue which means they consider they need an 
extra bedroom perhaps to sleep separately from a partner or so 
someone can stay overnight to support them in times of ill health. 

• Interested groups from the open public phase of consultation who 
requested involvement in the next phase. 

 
4. Context  
 
4.1 Sheffield City Council works in partnership with RPs within the Sheffield 

boundary.  RPs play a significant role in the provision of social housing 
for the people of Sheffield and it has been important to us that we listen 
to them, and have their input, when considering changes to our 
Allocations Policy.    

 
4.2 Sheffield City Council’s current Allocations Policy is ten years old and in 

that time the demand for council housing in Sheffield has risen 
considerably, making social housing a scarce resource which is in high 
demand.  As a result of this Sheffield City Council has a more generous 
bedroom allocation.  

Page 14



 5

 
4.3 It is important that the best use is made of this scarce and valuable 

resource and that it is allocated fairly.  One way to accomplish this is to 
reduce under occupancy.  Under occupancy is where a property is not 
occupied to its fullest capacity.   

 
4.4 Bedroom eligibility has also been restricted as a result of national 

welfare reform.  The under occupiers’ penalty (or bedroom tax) will come 
into effect in April 2013.  It will affect working age tenants of social 
housing1.  They will no longer receive Housing Benefit for bedrooms they 
are deemed not to require.   

 
4.5 Around 65% of existing tenants are in receipt of Housing Benefit.  We 

can also expect that this would be the case for a significant proportion of 
new social tenants (partly because around 30% of the Housing Register 
is made up of existing tenants).   

 
4.6 If the bedroom eligibility were to remain unchanged, we would risk 

setting new tenants up to fail.  This is because they would experience a 
shortfall between their rent levels and the Housing Benefit they receive, 
and if they are unable to make up the difference themselves, it will result 
in increased rent arrears.   

 
4.7 The way council housing is funded has changed which means we need 

to be more business minded to secure the future of council housing, not 
increasing the funding gap. 

 
5. Background 
 
5.1 Sheffield City Council has produced a draft Allocations Policy.  This was 

developed following public consultation and in partnership with The 
Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee.   

 
5.2 The draft Allocations Policy sets out a more restrictive bedroom eligibility 

than the previous Policy.  This means that some Housing Register 
applicants will be allocated properties with less bedrooms than they 
would currently be entitled to. 

 
5.3 The draft Allocations Policy bases its bedroom eligibility on the Housing 

Benefit calculation of how many bedrooms are required.  This means 
that, for example: 

 

• A single person will only be eligible for an allocation of a one 
bedroom property 

• A couple will only be eligible for an allocation of a one bedroom 
property 

• A single person with overnight contact with a child or children will 
only be eligible for an allocation of a one bedroom property 

• A couple or single parent with two children aged under 10 will only be 
eligible for a two bedroom property 

                                            
1
 Working age is likely to be 60 initially, but may rise to 66 in the future.   
 

Page 15



 6

• A couple or single parent with two children of the same sex aged 
under 16 will only be eligible for a two bedroom property. 

 
5.4 65% of questionnaire respondents from the main consultation period 

(September 2011 – February 2012) thought the Council should allocate 
the minimum number of bedrooms to meet housing need. 

 
5.5 The change to bedroom eligibility in the Allocations Policy concerns 

Housing Register applicants.  However, the under occupiers’ penalty 
also affects existing social tenants who are under occupying and in 
receipt of Housing Benefit.  It is estimated that around 5000 council 
tenants will be affected.   

 
5.6 We anticipate that the following groups of people will be particularly 

affected by both the restricted bedroom eligibility and the under 
occupiers’ penalty: 

 

• People with overnight contact with children who don’t live with them 
all of the time.  

• People with disabilities. 

• People with intermittent periods of ill health, including mental health 
issues. 

• People who are cared for by a resident carer, such as their partner. 
 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 There is a statutory requirement under Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996 

for local housing authorities to have an allocation scheme and allocate 
only in accordance with that scheme. Before adopting a new scheme 
there is a duty to consult with RPs on the draft scheme for a reasonable 
period. 

 
6.2 The Welfare Reform Act 2012 and the regulations made under that Act 

will introduce significant changes to the whole benefits system, including 
the amount allowed for housing costs within Universal Credit, with effect 
from April 2013.  The repercussions of these changes are that there will 
be issues of affordability of any offers of accommodation to a person on 
benefits, if the let is for more than the bedroom allocation they are 
deemed to need.  Currently the whole rent for a social rented property is 
eligible for housing benefit but under the new regulations the amount 
paid will be reduced if the claimant is deemed to be under occupying. 
This will be the case for all new and existing claimants of working age.  
67% of council tenants are currently receiving full or partial housing 
benefit. 

 
Armed Forces 

6.3 During the consultation period DCLG produced the Housing Act 1996 
(Additional Preference for Armed Forces) (England) Regulations 2012. 
The regulations were made on 29th November and came into force on 
the 30th November. 

 
6.4 The effect is to amend section 166A(3) of the Housing Act 1996 (as 

inserted by the Localism Act). This is the subsection that sets out the 

Page 16



 7

reasonable preference categories and gives local authorities discretion 
to give additional preference to people within those categories. 

 
6.5 That discretion remains but the amendment means that we now must 

give additional preference to a person with urgent housing needs who 
falls within one or more of the reasonable preference categories and 

(i) is serving in the regular forces and is suffering from a serious injury, 
illness or disability which is attributable (wholly or partly) to the person’s 
service,  

(ii) formerly served in the regular forces,  

(iii) has recently ceased, or will cease to be entitled, to reside in 
accommodation provided by the Ministry of Defence following the death 
of that person’s spouse or civil partner who has served in the regular 
forces and whose death was attributable (wholly or partly) to that 
service, or  

(iv )is serving or has served in the reserve forces and is suffering from a 
serious injury, illness or disability which is attributable (wholly or partly) 
to the person’s service. 

 
6.6 The limited mention of members of the armed forces in the draft policy 

(at 4.13) is no longer compliant with this amendment because our own 
preference for honourable discharge isn't recognised in the regulations, 
and we also need to consider how to give the required additional 
preference to the other groups. 

 
SECTION B: MAIN BODY OF REPORT, MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 
ETC.   
7. Overall Approach 
 
7.1 Direct consultation has been undertaken with RPs on the draft 

Allocations Policy.  This was through a face-to-face briefing, by emailing 
a copy of the draft out to all RPs and asking for feedback.  By sending 
out a follow up email advising of the up and coming closing date for 
comments. 

 
7.2 The Allocations Policy Review team carried out a scoping exercise in 

September-November 2012 to identify groups that will be particularly 
affected and to find out what the impacts are likely to be.  The team 
contacted services and groups working with people with health issues 
and with people who have overnight contact with children some of the 
time. 

 
7.3 Following this scoping exercise a consultation questionnaire was: 
 

• Mailed out to 2,300 Housing Register applicants. 

• Mailed out to people who answered the previous consultation 
questionnaire and said that they are disabled, or a household 
member is and would like to be involved in further consultation. 

 
7.4 The consultation questionnaire was advertised on: 
 

• Sheffield City Council Website. 

Page 17



 8

• Sheffield Homes Website. 

• Property Shop Website. 

• Sheffield City Council and Sheffield Homes Intranet. 

• Facebook. 

• Twitter. 

• Community Assembly Blogs. 

• Emails to applicants, external organisations and TARA groups. 
 
8.  Matters for Consideration 
 
8.1 The feedback of consultation comments from RPs. 
 
8.2 The Questionnaire Consultation Analysis Report.    
 
8.3 The Consultation Report. 
 
8.4 The impacts of restricting bedroom allocation to: 
 

• People with overnight contact with children that don’t live with them 
all of the time. 

• People with may want an extra bedroom for health issues. 
 
8.5 The additional preference we are now required to give Armed Forces. 
 
9. Key Findings of the Consultation 
 
9.1      Most people understand the reasons for restricting bedroom eligibility,         

subject to there being flexibility where needed.   
 
9.2 Some of the biggest impacts of these changes will be experienced by 

the following: 
 

• People who have 50/50 shared access to children 

• People who have several children living with them part of the time 

• People with resident carers, intermittent and/or informal care or 
support arrangements  

• Adults or children who would be severely affected by having to share 
a bedroom.   

 
9.3 The under occupiers’ penalty will have negative effects for people who 

can’t afford to pay for an additional bedroom and can’t afford to move 
either.  

 
9.4 The under occupiers’ penalty will have negative effects for some people 

who cannot find a smaller property in their area of support or familiarity. 
 
9.5 56% of respondents to the questionnaire who confirmed they are in 

receipt of Housing Benefit said they can’t afford to stay if their Housing 
Benefit reduces. 

 
9.6 As a result of the tightened bedroom eligibility criteria there could be 

increase demand in people wanting to be re-housed as their family grow 
or as children reach a certain age. 

Page 18



 9

 
10. Human Resources 
 
10.1 No implications. 
 
11. Equal Opportunities 
 
11.1 The Equalities Impact Assessment identified two main groups as being 

adversely affected by changes to bedroom eligibility criteria and 
recommended the targeted consultation carried out.  This was in order to 
gain insight into the issues for these groups, to look at the impacts and 
to identify and build in mitigations that might reduce the adverse impacts.  
These groups were: 

• People with overnight contact with children who don’t live with them 
all the time. 

• People with a health issue which means they consider they need an 
extra bedroom perhaps to sleep separately from a partner or so 
someone can stay overnight to support them in times of ill health. 

 
12 Financial Implications 
 
12.1 There are significant implications in terms of rent loss if people cannot 

afford to pay any shortfall in rent brought about by welfare reform. 
 
12.2 There could be implications for the adaptations budget associated with 

moving people on from properties that have been specially adapted for 
them. 

 
12.3 There could be implications for adult social services if people that 

receive support locally have to move away from that support so it can no 
longer be provided by friends and family. 

 
12.4 There could be implications for social services children’s service and 

increased demand for their service if reduced bedroom eligibility criteria 
means families do not receive the current levels of support they have 
been used to. 

 
SECTION C WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE PEOPLE OF SHEFFIELD? 

13 What does this mean for the people of Sheffield? 

13.1 Access to council housing is critically important for the people of 
Sheffield and planned consultation with residents including council 
tenants ensures local people have the opportunity to comment and 
contribute to changes that could be made.  

 
13.2 Social housing is in great demand in Sheffield and therefore it is 

important that we ensure access, that council properties are let fairly and 
fulfil our legal obligations. 

 
13.3 Responding to customer concerns about transparency and ease of 

process and meeting individual needs by giving people choice and 
control where possible over where they live. 

 

Page 19



 10

13.4 Modern efficient organisation and effective resource management 
ensuring that the policy and accompanying procedures make the most 
efficient use of available stock. 

 
13.5 Ensuring that the flexibilities available to the Council are fully utilised 

through allocations to support and sustain community development and 
contribute to neighbourhood regeneration, social inclusion and cohesion. 

SECTION D RECOMMENDATION 
14. Conclusion 
 
14.1 The Committee is asked to:  
 

a. Consider the consultation analysis reports and provide views and 
comments.   

b. Consider the requirement to award members of the Armed Forces 
additional preference and how that should be applied in Sheffield. 

 
 

 

Page 20



 1 

 

 
Allocations Policy Review  
Consultation Report - Impacts of restricted bedroom eligibility and the 
under occupiers’ penalty 
January 2013 
 

 

1.  Introduction  

 
What has changed? 
Sheffield City Council has produced a draft Allocations Policy.  It was 
developed following public consultation.  The draft Allocations Policy sets out 
a more restrictive bedroom eligibility than the previous Policy.  This means 
that some Housing Register applicants will be allocated properties with less 
bedrooms than they would be currently entitled to. 
 
This is because Council housing in Sheffield is a more scarce resource than it 
was which means that we have think about how to allocate it most fairly.  One 
way to do this is by reducing under occupancy.  Under occupancy is where a 
property is not occupied to its fullest capacity.  Bedroom eligibility has also 
been restricted as a result of national welfare reform.  The under occupiers’ 
penalty (or bedroom tax) will come into effect in April 2013.  It will affect 
working age tenants of social housing1.  They will no longer receive Housing 
Benefit for bedrooms they are deemed not to require.   
 
The draft Allocations Policy bases its bedroom eligibility on the Housing 
Benefit calculation of how many bedrooms are required.  This means that, for 
example: 
 

• A single person will only be eligible for an allocation of a one bedroom 
property 

• A couple will only be eligible for an allocation of a one bedroom property 

• A single person with overnight contact with a child or children will only be 
eligible for an allocation of a one bedroom property 

• A couple or single parent with two children aged under 10 will only be 
eligible for a two bedroom property 

• A couple or single parent with two children of the same sex aged under 16 
will only be eligible for a two bedroom property. 

 
Around 65% of existing tenants are in receipt of Housing Benefit.  We can 
also expect that this would be the case for a significant proportion of new 
social tenants (partly because around 30% of the Housing Register is made 
up of existing tenants).  If the bedroom eligibility were to remain unchanged, 
we would risk setting new tenants up to fail.  This is because they would 
experience a shortfall between their rent levels and the Housing Benefit they 
receive, and if they are unable to make up the difference themselves, it will 

                                                 
1
 Working age is likely to be 60 initially, but may rise to 66 in the future.   
 

Page 21



 2 

result in increased rent arrears.  65% of questionnaire respondents from the 
main consultation period (September 2011 – February 2012) thought that we 
should allocate the minimum number of bedrooms to meet housing need. 
 
Who will be affected? 
The change to bedroom eligibility in the Allocations Policy concerns Housing 
Register applicants.  However, the under occupiers’ penalty also affects 
existing social tenants who are under occupying and in receipt of Housing 
Benefit.  It is estimated that around 5000 Council tenants will be affected.   
 
We anticipate that the following groups of people will be particularly affected 
by both the restricted bedroom eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty: 
 

• People with overnight contact with children who don’t live with them all of 
the time  

• People with disabilities 

• People with intermittent periods of ill health, including mental health issues 

• People who are cared for by a resident carer, such as their partner. 
 
Has any work taken place to assess the impact of the changes on these 
groups? 
The Allocations Policy Review team carried out a scoping exercise in 
September-November 2012 to identify groups that will be particularly affected 
and to find out what the impacts are likely to be.  This report considers the 
results of the scoping exercise, targeted consultation with affected groups and 
the services working with them, and other consultation responses received in 
November-December 2012.  A questionnaire was produced for people who 
have overnight contact with children who don’t live with them all of the time 
and people with health issues, and this is reported on separately.  The 
responses detailed in this report are from: 
 

• A Disability group  

• A Learning Disabilities group 

• Housing Equalities Group 

• A carers’ organisation 

• SCC Adult Social Care, 
including Assessment and Care 
Management 

• SCC Housing and Health 

• SCC Equipment and 
Adaptations 

• SCC Joint Learning Disabilities 
Service 

• Sheffield Homes Area staff 

• Tenant representatives 

• Sheffield Health and Social 
Care, including Mental Health 
services 

• Sheffield Law Centre 

• An advice service 

• Consultation responses from 
individuals.

 

2.  Findings  

 
Overnight contact with children  
Tenant representatives, an MP and the Housing Equalities Group said that 
restricted bedroom eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty are unfair on 
separated parents, and that it will be particularly difficult for people who have 

Page 22



 3 

50/50 shared access and for those who have several children.  An advice 
centre suggested that there may be wider social impacts where children are 
not able to benefit from contact with both parents.  Sheffield Homes area staff 
said that they expect lots of challenges where there is shared care or more 
than one child. 
 
Services working with various vulnerable groups, including people with mental 
health issues and those who are in addiction recovery, pointed out that 
restricted bedroom eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty will mean that it 
is more difficult to have children to stay, which is often an important factor in 
recovery. 
 
An individual respondent who has overnight contact with children reported the 
need to share overnight childcare as the other parent works shifts.  Another 
lives in a shared private rented property and had hoped to resolve this 
unsuitable situation by re-housing in the social sector.  Tenant representatives 
also pointed out that this makes it difficult for grandparents who look after their 
grandchildren part of the time. 
 
Children sharing a bedroom 
Both individuals and services mentioned situations where siblings cannot 
share a bedroom, or where it would severely disrupt the sleep of one or both 
children to share.  The types of situations mentioned include children with 
Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder and/or Asperger Syndrome who can't 
sleep with others in the same room.  It was also noted that children cannot 
share when one child has a through floor lift and is hoisted.  Some families 
have two disabled children requiring lifts and hoists, and they cannot share, 
because there isn’t space.  
 
Sharing a bedroom with a partner 
Tenant representatives said that sometimes there are medical reasons for 
people not to sleep in the same room and that this makes things very difficult 
for them.  Various services said that disabled people may require a spare 
room for their partner to sleep in during periods of ill health.  They said that 
sometimes a partner sleeps separately due to the noise made by medical 
equipment.  Some couples are both wheelchair users, and it is generally not 
possible to accommodate two wheelchairs in the same bedroom.  
 
A spare room for visitors 
Tenant representatives said that tenants won’t be able to have visitors to stay.  
Mental Health services said that having family members to stay is often an 
important factor in mental health recovery.  Adult Social Care reported that 
some service users have family who live abroad and visit for a few weeks 
several times a year, providing support at those times. 
 
Care and support 
People with non-resident carers that provide overnight care will not be 
affected by the under occupiers’ penalty if they have an additional bedroom 
for this.  However, people who need care intermittently, temporarily and/or 

Page 23



 4 

who receive care through informal networks of support will be affected.  This 
is one of the most significant areas of concern. 
 
Tenant representatives said that resident carers need a spare room as well as 
non-resident carers.  A carers' organisation also noted that where there is a 
resident carer, it is important to retain spare bedrooms so that further family 
members can provide support to the carer and cared-for. 
 
A carers' organisation added that it is very common for informal/unpaid family 
carers who are not resident to stay overnight.  Adult Social Care said that 
there are cases where family members provide overnight care and support 
only at weekends or for part of the year.  
 
Mental Health services said that people with mental health issues often have 
a friend or relative to stay during periods of relapse, which may happen 
infrequently.  They said that the changes will impact disproportionately heavily 
on BME groups who tend to rely much more on family and neighbourhood 
support. 
  
There was also concern from services about people who need care while 
recovering from illness rather than being long-term disabled. 
  
Equipment and adaptations  
The need for room for storage or use of medical equipment has been raised 
on several occasions.  Adult Social Care pointed out that many people with a 
long-term disability use a room for equipment, which could be a hazard if it 
has to remain in the hallway or living room.  Some people on home dialysis 
need an additional bedroom to dialyse hygienically.  
 
The Housing Equalities Group said that where adaptations have been made 
which make a spare room unusable, the tenant should not be penalised.  
Services mentioned concerns about what will happen to people who are 
under occupying but where adaptations have been made to their property.   
 
Space 
Tenant representatives said that smaller properties lack space for storage.  
Mental health services said that having less space will lead to feelings of 
confinement for some people with severe agoraphobia or social anxiety who 
rarely or never leave their home, and people who have been mistreated or 
tortured in prison, who have Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.  An advocate for 
people with autism said their client group may require an additional room so 
that they can cut themselves off from the world, which is essential to their 
mental wellbeing.  
 
Impacts on individuals   
‘The choice of moving home or moving into poverty will be a very difficult one,’ 
(Adult Social Care). 
 
Many people discussed their anxiety about the under occupiers’ penalty.  
Adult Social Care said to expect people’s general wellbeing to be affected.  

Page 24



 5 

Several groups mentioned the financial difficulties and upheaval of moving, 
noting that some people can’t afford to move.   
 
Tenant representatives and a range of services said that where the only 
source of income is from benefits, the shortfall between their rent levels and 
the Housing Benefit they receive will be significant.  Adult Social Care said 
that around one third of service users, those with the lowest disposable 
incomes, are not currently charged for their support and that if their housing 
costs increase, they will be worse off.  A range of services working with 
vulnerable client groups, such as long-term disabled people and people with 
mental health issues, said that it would be very unlikely that under occupying 
tenants from these groups would be able to pay the shortfall themselves.  The 
wider context of cuts to other benefits was also mentioned.   
 
They said this means that if people do make up this shortfall themselves, they 
are likely to sacrifice some basics such as food, heating or social care 
services.  An individual with a health condition said that they had cut back in 
every way possible but would still not be able to make up the difference. 
One service said that in a household with disabled children who cannot share, 
they may pay for the ‘extra’ bedroom, but the impacts elsewhere in their lives 
will be severe.  For instance, they may then not be able to afford a car, and 
bearing in mind the children’s disabilities, this may mean that they are no 
longer able to go out. 
 
Tenant representatives said that where people can, they will do without 
something else to keep the extra room and not have to move.  Adult Social 
Care said that where people are unable to make up the difference and have to 
move, they may lose out on family contact and care.  Tenant representatives 
emphasised the importance of being able to have care from family. 
 
Impacts on services  
Adult Social Care expects to collect lower levels of contribution from people 
who have a personal budget.  This is because if they are under occupying, 
their rent will increase, leaving them with less disposable income; which in 
turn means that they may contribute less (or not at all) to the cost of their 
support.  The contributions are re-invested in Adult Social Care so this will be 
affected. 
 
Adult Social Care also expects increased levels of anxiety and/or people not 
coping, which will have impacts on their service.  Several services pointed out 
that if people cannot afford to stay where they are and have to move away 
from networks of care and support, the cost of their overall support from the 
state will increase.   
 
A carers' organisation said if unpaid family carers are not able to stay 
overnight, many people would be unable to remain in their home: 
‘It seems you are penalising the very people you ought to be supporting.’    
 
Mental health services said that it will drive more individuals into hospital or 
respite care who would otherwise be able to manage crisis episodes in their 

Page 25



 6 

own homes with support. Other services said that this will lead to increased 
hospital admissions and longer periods spent in hospital.   
  
Tenancy sustainability  
Tenant representatives said that some people have lived in a property all their 
lives and shouldn’t have to move out.  They said that the restricted bedroom 
eligibility within the Allocations Policy and the under occupiers’ penalty put an 
end to council tenancies being for life.   
 
Tenant representatives and the Housing Equalities Group said that this 
prevents people from planning ahead to when their household needs more 
room, and means that people will need to move more often.  Tenant 
representatives added that not being able to re-register for two years after 
moving will make life additionally difficult for families who are no longer 
eligible for a larger property until their children reach a certain age.  They also 
said that applicants should be able to move into a property that will continue 
to suit their needs, rather than having to move again soon afterwards.   
 
The Housing Equalities Group said that it doesn’t take account of other 
changes in household size, such as former household members moving back 
into the home. 
 
Tenant representatives said tenancy sustainability and community cohesion 
will be affected by those who have had to move to a smaller property due to 
the shortfall between their rent levels and the Housing Benefit they receive, 
but that that property is not in the area where they have always lived. 
 
Availability of smaller properties 
A number of people had concerns about the availability of smaller properties 
in the face of high demand.  Most do not want to move from the area they live 
in.  Several noted that age restrictions limit choice even further. 
 
How can we mitigate the adverse impacts of restricted bedroom 
eligibility and the under occupiers’ penalty? 
The draft Allocations Policy extends the existing priority for under occupiers to 
any downsizing, in order to help them to move more quickly should they need 
to.  The bedroom eligibility allows for flexibility in exceptional circumstances, 
for instance where people have health and/or social care needs for an 
additional bedroom. 
 
Suggestions  
Some think that the bedroom eligibility within the Allocations Policy should 
retain an element of discretion or flexibility for certain groups, subject to the 
provision of affordability advice.   
 
Several groups said that the Allocations Policy should accommodate 
circumstances that justify having a spare room, such as disability or access to 
children.  A service that works to rehouse disabled families said that there 
needs to be wording in Policy about siblings who can’t share.  The Joint 
Learning Disabilities Service said that some people with a learning disability 

Page 26



 7 

and/or autism need an extra room.  Mental health services noted that having 
an extra bedroom might be a sufficiently important factor in some people’s 
recovery that they would choose to take a property with an extra bedroom, if 
they could afford it, even if it meant doing without something else.  
 
Tenant representatives said that some people will be prepared to pay, and 
that people who can afford it should have the choice.  They said that there 
should be the flexibility to allow people to have a spare room.  Tenant 
representatives, the Housing Equalities Group and an MP said that people 
who are not in receipt of Housing Benefit should still be able to be allocated a 
larger property.  A tenant group suggested that families with older children 
and children of different sexes should be prioritised over families with younger 
children or those with same sex children, but that all should be allowed to bid 
on larger properties. 
 
An MP suggested that it would be fairer if people who have overnight contact 
with children could access maisonettes and flats, as now.  They said that the 
restricted bedroom eligibility is unfair where someone wants to transfer from a 
two bed property to a property in another area, but would no longer be able to 
have two bedrooms.  This is because they wouldn’t be using a resource that 
they hadn’t already been using.  They asked whether the more restrictive 
bedroom eligibility could be reviewed in future. 
 
A tenant group said that bedroom eligibility in the Allocations Policy should not 
be based on the Housing Benefit calculation of how many bedrooms are 
required, as this may change after a relatively short period, subject to the 
results of the next general election.   
 
A Learning Disabilities group said that while the Allocations Policy should offer 
smaller properties to prevent people from being affected financially by the 
under occupiers’ penalty, people should put their objections forward and also 
start gathering evidence about the impacts of benefits cuts.  Similarly, a 
service working to rehouse disabled families suggested recording the impacts 
for the small numbers of families where siblings cannot share.  Tenant 
representatives said that the Council needs to do more to oppose the under 
occupiers’ penalty.  
 
Tenant representatives said that perhaps downsizing should be one of the 
highest priorities.  They also noted that people would be more willing to 
downsize from larger properties if they could still keep one spare room. They 
said that there is a need for help and support for people who are downsizing, 
including assistance with removals and disposal of furniture, and preferably, 
help with removal costs. 
 
Tenant representatives also asked whether the Council can remodel 
properties to change their bedroom size. 
  
Communication 

Page 27



 8 

Several groups expressed concerns about the communication of changes to 
Housing Benefit, and noted that a lot of people don’t know about it.  Some had 
received conflicting information from different sources.   
 
Services raised the lack of certain guidance about where exceptions will be 
made, for instance, where siblings cannot share, where there is a need for 
room for storage of medical equipment, or where adaptations have been 
made to a property which is under occupied.  Until they are clear about this, 
they do not want to raise anxiety with vulnerable service users. 
 
A Learning Disabilities group said that people might be worried or surprised, 
and asked how people will be informed.  They said that people need to be 
informed about the changes now.  They added that some of the information 
being given out is very complex, and discussed the need for accessible, 
understandable information. 
 
Sheffield Law Centre noted the need for very clear communication of the 
changes and the importance of distinguishing between the Allocations Policy 
and the under occupiers’ penalty, as some people think that the Council is 
going to force people to leave their existing homes. 
 
Tenant representatives said that proactive work is needed to identify those 
that are likely to accrue arrears and risk eviction.  They asked for a further 
meeting to discuss welfare reform.  
 

3.  Conclusion  

 
Most people understand the reasons for restricting bedroom eligibility, subject 
to there being flexibility where needed.  The under occupiers’ penalty presents 
more problems.  Some of the biggest impacts of these changes will be 
experienced by people who have 50/50 shared access to children, or several 
children living with them part of the time; people with resident carers, 
intermittent and/or informal care or support arrangements; and both adults or 
children who would be severely affected by having to share a bedroom.  
Additionally, the under occupiers’ penalty will have negative effects for people 
who can’t afford to pay for an additional bedroom and can’t afford to move 
either; and some people who cannot find a smaller property in their area of 
support or familiarity. 

Page 28



 1

 

 
Questionnaire Consultation Analysis Report 

 

 
Introduction 

 
The consultation questionnaire was designed to obtain an overview of the general public’s 
views on how welfare reform and the Allocations Policy’s stricter bedroom eligibility criteria 
would specifically affect: 
 

• People with overnight contact with children who live with them some of the time. 

• People who may want an extra bedroom for health reasons. 
 
The questionnaire consisted of 32 questions and was split into 9 sections. The 9 sections were: 
 

• Section 1: Welfare reform 

• Section 2: Where you live now 

• Section 3: Occupation of your home 

• Section 4: Overnight contact with children 

• Section 5: An extra room for your health needs 

• Section 6: Looking for a property 

• Section 7: The effects of welfare reform  

• Section 8: About you 

• Section 9: Closing comments 
 
The questionnaire was available online and could be accessed via: 
 

• Sheffield City Council Website 

• Sheffield Homes Website 

• Property Shop Website 

• Sheffield City Council and Sheffield Homes Intranet 

• Facebook 

• Twitter 

• Community Assembly Blogs 

• Emails to applicants, external organisations and TARA groups 
 
The questionnaire was also available in paper format. This was available via: 
 

• Mail out to 2,300 Housing Register applicants. 

• Mail out to people who answered the previous consultation questionnaire and 
said that they are disabled, or a household member is and who said they would be 
happy to be consulted further. 

• On request by emailing or calling. 
 
It was advertised in the Property Shop paper.  The questionnaire was also available on request 
in large print, Braille and translation.   
 
This report looks at each question individually in the same structure as the questionnaire. Some 
questions analysed make reference to other areas within the questionnaire where there is a 
particular correlation or link.  From the 144 responses we received, not all respondents 
answered all 32 questions. This has been reflected in the breakdown of answers given within 
this report.  

Page 29



 2

 

 
Summary 

 

The key findings are: 
 

• 144 responses were received, so this is a small sample. 

• 71% of respondents are male. 

• 54% of respondents are in receipt of Housing Benefit. 

• 51% of respondents are council tenants. 

• 40% of respondents said they are under occupying. 

• 54% of under occupying respondents are council tenants. 

• 56% of respondents on Housing Benefit said they can’t afford to stay if their Housing 
Benefit reduces. 

• Council tenants were the most likely to have someone who cares for them living with 
them some of the time. 

 

 
Questionnaire Respondent Profile 

 
We received 144 questionnaire responses - 73 (51%) online and 71 (49%) paper copies. 
 
The respondents’ profile is as follows:- 
 

Gender Number (%) 

Male 71% 

Female 29% 

 
The number of men (56) who answered the questionnaire is significantly higher than the 
number of women (23), which is not unexpected.  This is because more men on the Housing 
Register are flagged as having overnight contact with children who don’t live with them all of the 
time.  81% (2870) of the 3536 questionnaire mail out, in respect of overnight contact with 
children that do not live with parents all of the time, was to men. 
     

Age Number (%) 

16-24   8% 

25-44 42% 

45-65 45% 

66-79   4% 

80+   1% 

 

Ethnicity Number (%) 

White British 
(English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish) 

87% 

Black or Minority Ethnic (BME) Groups 13% 

 

Sexuality Number (%) 

Heterosexual 72% 

Bi-sexual/Gay/Lesbian/Other   1% 

Prefer not to say   5% 

Not answered 22% 

 

Tenure Number (%) 

Page 30



 3

Council Tenant 50% 

Private Rented Tenant 14% 

Living With Family Or Friends 12% 

Housing Association Tenant 11% 

Home Owner 10% 

Supported Accommodation    1% 

Homeless    1% 

Other    1% 

 
55% of respondents stated that they or someone in their household had a disability.  
 

 
Section 1: Welfare reform 

 
As part of the government’s welfare reforms, they are introducing the under occupiers’ 
penalty (or bedroom tax), which will come into effect in April 2013.  It will affect working age 
tenants of social housing.  Social housing includes council and housing association housing.  
Claimants with more bedrooms than they need will have their Housing Benefit reduced.  
 
We wanted to find out how welfare reform will affect two groups of people in particular: 
 

• Those who have overnight contact with children who don’t live with them all of the time. 

• Those with a health issue which means they consider they need an extra bedroom, 
perhaps to sleep separately from a partner or so someone can stay overnight to support 
them in times of ill health. 

 
In order to find out how welfare reform would affect these two groups we asked the following 
questions: 
 

 
Q1 Which of the two groups described above do you fit into? 

 
91 (63%) respondents stated they have overnight contact with children who don’t live with 
them all of the time, with 53 (37%) stating they have health issues where they consider they 
need an extra bedroom. 
 

Issue Number (%) 

Overnight contact with children 63% 

Health 37% 

 

 
Section 2: Where you live now 

 
We wanted to find out where people live now and whether welfare reforms would impact 
them. 
 Based Lettings System (CBL) 

 
Q2 Are you in receipt of Housing Benefit?   
 

The table below shows how many of the respondents are in receipt of Housing Benefit.  
 

Page 31



 4

Are you in receipt of Housing Benefit?

54%

46% Yes

No

 
 
Of the 74 who said they are in receipt of Housing Benefit, 50 of these are on the housing 
register.  The following table shows the tenure of the 50 respondents on the Housing Register 
and in receipt of Housing Benefit. 
 

Tenure Number on Housing Register and in 
receipt of Housing Benefit 

Questionnaire 
Total 

Council Tenants 30  71 

Housing Association   7  15 

Home owner  6  14 

Living With Family/ Friends   5  17 

Private Rented  1  19 

Other  1    2 

 50 138 

 

 
Q3 What best describes where you live now?   

 
51% of respondents are council tenants. 
 

What best describes where you live now?

51%

13%

12%

11%

10% 1%1%1%

Council Tenent Private Tenant

Staying with Family & Friends Housing Association Tenant

Home Owner Supported Accommodation

Other Homeless

 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 5

 
Q4 How many bedrooms does your property have?    

 
The majority of respondents are currently housed in two bedroom properties. 

 

How many bedrooms does your property have?

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Bedsit 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed

 

 

 
Section 3: Occupation of your home 

 
This section seeks to ascertain how fully occupied the respondent’s current home is and 
whether welfare reform will affect their Housing Benefit entitlement. 
 

 
Q5 Are these bedrooms fully occupied/used all of the time?   
 

40% of respondents said they have bedrooms that are not fully occupied all of the time. 
 

Are these bedrooms fully occupied/used all of the 

time?

60%

40%

Yes

No

 

 

54% of under occupied properties are council tenancies. 

Page 33



 6

Tenure of under occupied properties

54%

18%

14%

10% 4%

Council Tenant Home Owner

Private Tenant Housing Association

Staying with family and Friends

 
 

 
Q6 How many people live with you all of the time?   

 

How many people live in your household all of the 

time?

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

No one 1 Person 2 People 3 People 4 People 6 People

 
 

 
Q7 Please tell us about the people who live in your household some of the time? 

 
The majority of respondents who have people that live in their household some of the time, 
have overnight contact with at least one child. 

Page 34



 7

Please tell us about the people who live in your 

household some of the time

0

10

20

30

40

50

1 
C
hi
ld

2 
C
hi
ld
re
n

3 
C
hi
ld
re
n

4 
C
hi
ld
re
n

5 
C
hi
ld
re
n

1 
A
du
lt

2 
A
du
lts

4 
A
du
lts

 
 

 
Q8 How often do they stay overnight with you? 

 
The majority of respondents who have people that live in their household some of the time had 
someone staying with them at least two or three nights per week. 
 

How often do they stay overnight with you?

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

1 nt per

wk

2-3 nts per

wk

3-4 nts per

wk

4-5 nts per

wk

6 nts per

wk

2 nts per

f/n & hols

4-7 times

per yr

Holidays 1-2 times

per mth

Every

other

wkend

When

needed

 
 

 
Q9 If you are a working age (16-64) social tenant in receipt of Housing Benefit, you may 
no longer receive Housing Benefit for bedrooms that are only used some of the time.  
Can you afford to stay in your current home if your Housing Benefit reduces? 

 
74 (52%) respondents stated they are in receipt of Housing Benefit.  Of these, 32 (43%) 
respondents said that not all of the bedrooms in their house are occupied all of the time.  
Of these, 18 (56%) said they could not afford to stay if their Housing Benefit reduced. 
 
Comments made by the 18 respondents that perceive they would have to move include: 
 

‘This is a 3 bedroom house and I have one child with me on a permanent basis and two 
children of different genders aged 10 and 12 that stay 40% of the time.  I feel that all three 

bedrooms are occupied and not spare rooms and I think this whole ruling should be 
reconsidered.’ 

 

Page 35



 8

‘Their Mother takes care of them and their school needs most of the week therefore it is 
essential for her to have a break and it is my only chance to to spend sometime with 

them.’ 
 

‘His mum has health issues and needs a break a couple of times per week.’ 
 

‘Paternal grandparents care for my son because my health prevents me being a full time 
carer. My son would be extremely disstressed if he could not stay overnight.’ 

 
‘I have a court order to have my daughter stay with me so I need a bedroom for her.’ 

 
‘I am not happy to be forced into downsizing as I live in maisonette that has been 

adapted to suit my health/mobility issues.’ 
 

‘My home is adapted to my needs as a wheelchair user. I have my community and my 
friends and support around me here. If I have to move, I may not find a property as 

suitable, plus the fact that I will be cut off from that support network if I am forced to 
move. I am also not able enough to pack and cart my belongings to a new property. I also 

could not take the stress of a move.’ 
 

‘It’s depressing me because I will not move from Mosborough.  I've been here nearly 30 
years and I have so much help from friends and neighbours and I would lose this.’ 

 

 
Section 4: Overnight contact with children 

 
This section gives an idea of how many people have overnight contact with children that 
don’t live with them all of the time and how losing bedrooms might impact on the family. 
 

 
Q10 Are any of the people you listed above as, living with you some of the time, children 
you have overnight contact with? 

 
70% of respondents that have people living with them some of the time confirmed these were 
children they have overnight contact with. 
 

Are any of the people you listed above as  living 

with you some of the time, children you have 

overnight contact with?

70%

30%

Yes

No

 
 
The  25-44 age groups were far more likely to answer yes to this question. 
 

Page 36



 9

 

 
Q11 If you didn’t have bedroom space, would you be able to make other arrangements 
for seeing your child/children? 

 
80% of respondents who have overnight contact with children said if they didn’t have this 
bedroom space they wouldn’t be able to make other arrangements for seeing their children. 
 

If you didn't have bedroom space, would you be 

able to make other arrangements for seeing your 

child/children?

80%

20%

No

Yes

 
 

 
If you said yes, please tell us what these arrangements would be. 

 
‘They could come to the house but have to back home at night.’ 

 
‘I would only see them for one day a fortnight as there would not be anywhere to sleep.’ 

 
‘Sofa bed or floor!’ 

 
‘I would only be able to see them during the day and not have them stay overnight.’ 

 
‘I could see her at her own home or at my mother’s.’ 

 
‘I would see my children but just one day a week, they would not be able to stay 

overnight.’ 
 

 
Q12 How will these changes affect your children’s other parent (i.e., the children’s mum 
or dad not having a break because you can’t have them for the night?) 

 
‘My stepdaughter’s mum would have no freedom, this is her opportunity to socialise 

when our child comes to stay.’ 
 

‘It will cause a lot of stress.’ 
 

‘I will not see my son and grandson.’ 
 

‘The children will suffer.’ 
 

‘It would make it even more difficult for my son to find work and then keep a job.’ 

Page 37



 10

 
‘My daughter’s father would be more impatient and short tempered with my daughter.’ 

 
‘They will not be able to come so I won’t see them.’ 

 
‘Their Mother takes care of them and their school needs most of the week therefore it is 
essential for her to have a break and it is my only chance to spend sometime with them.’ 

 
‘His mum has health issues and needs a break a couple of times per week.’ 

 
‘Child's mother needs break as son got ADHD’. 

 

 
Section 5: An extra bedroom for your health needs 

 
This section seeks to help us understand the possible impacts of welfare reform on people 
with health needs who currently have a spare bedroom they utilise to help manage their health.   
 

 
Q13a) Are any of the people you listed above as living with you some of the time, people 
that care for you? 

 
27% of respondents that said they have people living with them some of the time said these are 
people that care for them. 

Are any of the people you listed above as living 

with you some of the time people that care for 

you?

27%

73%

Yes

No

 
 
The 45-65 age group were the most likely to have someone who cares for them living with 
them some of the time. 

 

Age Group Yes (number) Yes (%) 

16-24 1 1 

25-44 7 10 

45-65 10 14 

66-79 1 1 

80+ 0 0 

 
Council tenants were the most likely to have someone who cares for them living with them 
some of the time. 
 
 

Page 38



 11

Tenure Yes (number) Yes (%) 

Council Tenants 8 11 

Private Rented Tenants 2 3 

Home Owners 3 4 

Living With Family Or 
Friends 

2 3 

Housing Association 
Tenants 

3 4 

 

 
Q13b) Can you tell us how often they stay overnight to care for you and why? 

 
Some people said that they have overnight care most nights, or two to three nights a week, 
or most weeks.  Most said that it varies, depending on their health needs, and is provided on 
an ad hoc basis.  Reasons varied from physical help due to a long-term health condition or 
recovery from an operation, to support for people with severe mental health issues, some of 
whom said that they are likely to become dangerous and/or suicidal without care.  Some people 
have family that care for them but live outside Sheffield and need to be able to stay overnight. 
 

 
Q14 If you do not need an extra bedroom for a carer, can you tell us what else you use 
the extra room for? 

 
Several people are cared for by a partner who lives with them and uses the room.  Reasons for 
this include that the partner who is cared for has to have a special type of bed and there is no 
room for another bed in that bedroom. 
 

 
Section 6: Looking for a property 

 
This section gives an overview of how many of the respondents are looking for a property, 
and if so, what type of property they want and whether they can afford an extra bedroom than 
they will receive benefit for. 
 

 
Q15 Are you currently on the Council’s Housing Register? 

 
84% of respondents stated that they are on the Council’s Housing Register. 
 

Are you currently on the Council's Housing 

Register?

No

16%

Yes

84%

No

Yes

 

Page 39



 12

 

The following table shows a breakdown, by housing tenure, of the 99 respondents who are on 
the Housing Register and disclosed their tenure: 
 

Tenure Number 

Council Tenants 49 

Housing Association  11 

Home owner 10 

Living With Family/ Friends  13 

Private Rented 12 

Other  2 

Supported Accommodation  1 

Homeless  1 

 99 
 

49% of Council tenants who responded said they are on the Housing Register. This is higher 
than any of the other tenure types. 
 

 
Q16 Are you actively bidding for properties? 

 
Only 34% of respondents are currently bidding for properties. 

Are you actively bidding for properties?

34%

66%

Yes

No

 
 

The 25-44 age group is most likely to be bidding for properties. 
 

Age Number % 

16-24  4 11% 

25-44 20 56% 

45-65 11 30% 

66-79  1   3% 

Total 36          100% 

 

 
Q17 How many bedrooms are you bidding for? 

 
The majority are bidding for two bedroom properties. 
 
 
 

Page 40



 13

Number of bedrooms Number of respondents bidding 

1 4 

2 31 

3 9 

4 2 

1-2 7 

2-3 2 

Total Number Bidding 55 (38%) 

 

 
Q18 Could you make up the shortfall in rent if you are bidding for more bedrooms than 
you will receive Housing Benefit for? 

 
39% said they wouldn’t be able to make up any shortfall in Housing Benefit. 
 

Yes 45 (61%) 

No 29 (39%) 

 

 
Section 7: The effects of welfare reform 
 

The section asks respondents to identify how large the various impacts will be on them in 
terms of reduction in Housing Benefit, the more restrictive bedroom eligibility criteria set out in 
the draft Allocations Policy and not having a spare bedroom. 
 

 
Q19a How will the reduction in Housing Benefit, the more restrictive bedroom eligibility 
set out in the draft Allocations Policy and/or not having a spare bedroom(s) affect you? 

 
The majority of respondents reported that the impacts would be high for them in each of the 
three areas. 
 

Impact of reduction in Housing Benefit

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Large impact Medium impact Small impact

 
 

Page 41



 14

Impact of restrictive bedroom eligibility criteria

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Large impact Medium impact Small impact

 
 

Impact of not having a spare bedroom(s)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Large impact Medium impact Small impact

 
 

 
Q19b Why is this? 

 
77 respondents told us more about the impacts that this will have.  38 responses were about 
having contact with children.  Many mentioned the need for a spare room so that their child or 
children can live with them part of the time.  18 people said their children couldn’t stay, or it 
would be very difficult for them to stay, if there was no spare room.  Several mentioned the 
detrimental effects of this for either their children or themselves: 
 

‘no bedroom .. no kids // harms the kids that want to live with dad rather than mum.’ 
 

‘[it] will restrict the time we have together’ 
 

‘3my depression will worsen and my daughter means so much to me.’ 
 

‘3a teenage girl shouldn’t have to share a floor with her teenage brothers.’ 
 
Travelling time and the need for children to stay overnight because their other parent lives 
elsewhere was also mentioned. 
 
16 respondents talked about financial impacts and said that they would not be able to afford to 
pay for an additional bedroom, or would struggle to afford other things, 

Page 42



 15

 
‘I wouldn't be able to afford bus fare to collect my daughter or provide for when she 
stays with me3My daughter cannot sleep in a room with me now as she is too old.’ 

 
15 responses were about health issues and care.  Most of these mentioned the intermittent 
need for care.  Some people live at a distance from family who care for them, who need to stay 
overnight.  
 

‘I have a 32 year old son who stays to keep an eye on me when needed.  How can I 
expect a 32 year old to share a bedroom with his mother?  And how could I ask a man of 

6'4 to sleep on a couch?’ 
 
The importance of regular contact with family to combat isolation was noted.  One respondent 
said that older carers may have health issues themselves, making it difficult to stay overnight 
without a spare room. 
 
Some respondents mentioned the need for extra space for medical equipment, or said that their 
home had been adapted to meet their needs.  The difficulties of moving home and moving away 
from support networks were raised.  Several respondents said that they need a separate 
bedroom from their partner for health reasons.  Some also care for their partner. 
 

‘My husband and I can't always sleep in the same bedroom because he has a heart 
condition (triple bi-pass) and I have diabetes which makes my legs swell and I can't stay 

still in bed.  The bedroom is not big enough for us to have twin beds and store all the 
equipment we need’. 

 
‘My husband has health issues and does not sleep well. He is constantly in and out of 

bed during the night3This disturbs my sleep so I sleep in the other bedroom. I need my 
rest as I have to take care of my husband and my elderly mother during the day.’ 

 
Four respondents said that they like to have an additional room so that family can visit, including 
adult children and grandchildren.  Other effects included not being able to plan ahead for a 
growing household and lack of space for children to play, and storage of possessions. 
 

 
Q20 Do you have any ideas or suggestions that could help?  For example in our new 
draft Allocations Policy, we are extending the down sizing prioirty to help people who 
are under occupying to move to a smaller property, to avoid running up rent arrears. 

 
‘Architects need to build bigger rooms so people can have separate beds and get all 

equipment they need in the bedroom if they want people to stay in one bedroom 
together.  My brother has had to sleep on the settee for ten years because his wife has 

the bedroom and all her equipment takes the rest of the room up.’ 
 

‘I think you should let people that are over working age have a larger property if they can 
afford it.’ 

 
‘Stop age banding or at least review it, e.g., upstairs flats for over 60s aren't being taken 

because they can't walk upstairs.’ 
 

‘Build more houses.’ 
 

‘Ensure that all new build properties for older people are two reasonable sized bedrooms 
i.e., at least 10ft square and that ground floor properties are allowed pets!’ 

 

Page 43



 16

‘It makes sense that people with large property with unoccupied rooms downsize and 
allow larger families to occupy properties with more rooms to accommodate people who 

require the extra space.’ 
 

‘Offer more furnished/part furnished options especially to the elderly. Moving home can 
be overwhelming and they would appreciate some help. I would think the elderly are the 

bulk of the under occupiers. Offer to carpet and paint the property. Keep age banded 
properties if you want to encourage the elderly to move from a house to a flat. Couples 

with health issues should be allowed a bedroom each.’ 
 

‘I also object to the decision by the government to exempt OAPs from this legislation. If 
it's one or two people in a three bed, it's under-occupied whether they are under pension 

age or over. In fact, OAPs are more likely to be rattling round an oversized home. I feel 
the exemption should apply to people who have disabilities to.’ 

 
‘Pay for carpet, painting and the cost of a move.’ 

 
‘Put more emphasis on exchanging.’ 

 
‘Target the people that have no reason to live in a large expensive property.’ 

 

 
Section 8: About you 

 
The following section provides demographic and equalities information about respondents. 
 

 
Q21 Which post code area do you live in?   
 

Which post code area do you live in?

0
2
4
6
8
10

12
14
16
18
20

S
1
0

S
1
1

S
1
2

S
1
3

S
1
4

S
2

S
2
0

S
2
6

S
3

S
3
5

S
3
6

S
4

S
5

S
6

S
7

S
8

S
9

O
th
e
r

 
 

 
Q22 What is your gender? 

 
A much higher proportion of men answered the questionnaire than women. 81 out of 114 
respondents are male (71%). This compares to 33 out of 114 who are female (29%). 
 

Page 44



 17

What is your gender?

Male

71%

Female

29%

Male

Female

 
 

 
Q23 Is your gender identity the same as the gender you were assigned at birth? 

 
 

Is your gender identity the same gender you were assigned 

at birth?

2%

98%

No

Yes

 

 

 
Q24 What is your sexuality? 
 

Do you consider yourself to be?

1%

72%

5%

22%

Gay

Heterosexual

Prefer not to say

Not answered

 

Page 45



 18

 
People who are lesbian, gay and bi-sexual (LGB) are estimated to make up between 5%-7% 
of the UK population.1 
 

 
Q25 What is your age? 

 
The impacts of the welfare reforms being explored in this questionnaire affect those of working 
age; the majority of responses were from people of working age, as shown below: 
 

What is your age?

8%

42%45%

4% 1%

16-24

25-44

45-65

66-79

80+

 
 

 
Q26 Do you provide regular and substantial care to anyone? 
 

Who? Yes (number) Yes (%) 

Child/ren  36 67 

Relative (e.g. 
disabled child, 
partner, parent 
etc       

12 22 

Both 6 11 

Total 54 100 

 

 
Q27a) Do you consider yourself, or someone else in your household, to be disabled? 
 

55% of respondents consider themselves or someone in their household to be disabled. 
 

                                                 
1
 Sheffield First Partnership 

Page 46



 19

Do you consider yourself, or someone else in your 

household, to be disabled?

45%

55%

No

Yes

 
 

 
Q27b) If so, how does your impairment affect you in everyday life? 

 
Responses were mainly split between those with physical disabilities and those with mental 
health issues: 
 
 

How does your impairment affect you in every day 

life?

16%

7%

48%

2%

18%

9% Hearing

Sight

Mobility

Learning

Mental health

Illness/health

 
 
 

 
Q27c) If so, do you require an adapted property? 

 
Out of the 60 respondents that stated they or someone in their household had a disability, 19 
(36%) answered yes to requiring an adapted property, with 34 (64%) answering no. (7 did not 
answer this question).  
 

Page 47



 20

If so, do you require an adapted property?

36%

64%

Yes

No

 

 

 
Q28 What is your language preference? 

 
Of those that answered this question, 5 stated a language preference other than English. These 
included: 
 

• Irish 

• Kurdish 

• Slovakian 

• Somali 

• Writing (deaf respondent). 
 

 
Q29 What best describes your ethnicity? 
 

What best describes your ethnicity?

13%

87%

BME

White/British/English/Iris

h/Welsh/Scottish

 
 
The BME population in Sheffield is approximately 17% (2009).2 
 
 
 

                                                 
2
 Sheffield First Partnership – State Of Sheffield Report 2012 

Page 48



 21

 
Section 9: Closing Comments 

 
This section gave respondents the opportunity of adding anything and helped us identify 
whether there were responses from any organisations that might express the opinions of any 
particular groups. 
 

 
Q30 If you would be happy for us to contact you about your answers please leave your 
contact details below. 

 
44 (31%) of the 144 respondents left further details for us to contact them. 
 

 
Q31a) Are you representing an organisation when completing this questionnaire? 
 

Organisation Representation % Total 

Yes     2%     2 

No   98% 108 

 100% 110 

 

 
Q31b) If so which organisation? 
 

Organisation Total 

Manor Children’s Centre 1 

 

 
Q32 Do you have any other observations, comments, ideas or solutions you can add? 

 
The final question provided respondents the opportunity to add any additional thoughts and 
comments. This provided a varied response and emphasised some thoughts and feelings that 
had been previously been touched on. Below is a selection of these:- 
 
‘I think this reform will cause some hardship and a good deal of stress to a lot of people 

but in the long run it is fair - people who cannot afford to pay rent should have 
ADEQUATE housing provided but not the luxury of spare rooms.  Why should others 
subsidise them beyond their needs? They have to realise that if they want more they 

must make more effort to earn it!’  
 

‘It’s not fair that benefit is being reduced for men with access to their children.’ 
 

‘To emphasise, I need the extra bedroom for my sons weekly overnight stay and rest for 
grandparents.’ 

 
‘I would be glad to downsize if I could get a bungalow or a ranch style flat in the areas I 

require.’ 
 

‘I don't agree with any of this, I have a daughter with access, this is hindering my life and 
my daughter’s right to spend time with me, I feel punished for having a child! This isn't 

on!’ 
 

‘If we cannot afford to live in large houses in our preferred areas then it's right, in times 
of need, to relocate to where I can afford.  This is life!  Some, who have special needs or 

Page 49



 22

who have adapted their homes may need special care - but they are few and not the 
norm.’ 

 
‘Forcing older people from the home they have occupied for many years is unfair. Build 

the houses needed to place younger people in the homes they deserve. Tenants of social 
housing landlords have no control over the mass demolition of houses in good 

serviceable condition. The government should fix the problem they have created by 
building to replace what they destroyed.’ 

 
‘The government's changes are going to punish the most vulnerable in society. Non 
resident parents will lose contact with kids, disabled people will be forced into less 

suitable properties. It's unfair and discriminatory.’ 
 

Disabled people are been driven into poverty. The whole system is in tatters!’ 
 

‘Allocations should be based on need and staff need to investigate fully any situation so 
people can not abuse the policy.’ 

 
‘Not fair system for single parents whose children do not live with them.’ 

 
‘I don't want to change my property as this house has been adapted inside and out for 

my needs and I need my daughter to be with me to help care for me.’ 
 
 
 

Page 50



1 
 

 

 
 

 
Report of: Executive Director, Communities  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan update 

2013/14 with a focus on welfare reform as a key risk 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Liam Duggan 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
This report provides a summary of the key changes influencing the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan update for 2013/14 and focuses on 
welfare reform as a key risk to the business plan.  

Resources and forecast efficiencies arising from the decision to bring council 
housing delivery in-house from 2013 together with an anticipated reduction in 
capital financing costs, primarily as a result of access to more attractive interest 
rates means that the forecast long term financial position of the plan has 
improved and new investment can be planned.  

Cabinet will consider investment proposals for making use of this additional 
spending power on 16th January 2013. The Cabinet report will be available online 
from 8th January 2013 and the Scrutiny Committee will have the opportunity to 
discuss and comment on these proposals at its meeting on 10th January. 

In the HRA Business Plan 2012-17, welfare reform is identified as the single 
biggest policy risk to the business plan. It is also consistently high on the agenda 
of tenants when consulted on council housing priorities. 

The business plan set aside resources in order to support tenants through the 
changes and minimise the impact on the HRA.  

Since the business plan was published in January 2012, further detail has 
emerged about welfare reform and its implementation. This detail has helped the 
Council revise its estimate of the likely impact of welfare reform on the HRA and 
council tenants. The current assessment is that welfare reform will have a greater 
impact than previously thought. 

As part of the update report, Cabinet will consider directing additional resources 
to supporting tenants through welfare reform when it meets on 16th January 
2013. Whilst these proposals are yet to be considered by Cabinet they are being 
provided early to the Scrutiny Committee in this report in order to provide for 
discussion and feedback. 

__________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Report to Safer and Stronger 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 

10
th
 January 2013  

Agenda Item 8

Page 51



2 
 

 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  
 

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy x 

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Community Assembly request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee x 

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is asked to discuss and feed back their views with 
regard to the proposals for additional support to tenants through welfare reform 
which are due to be considered by Cabinet on 16th January and are set out in 
this report. 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is also asked to provide feedback and comment on the 
wider HRA Business Plan update report for 2013/14 which will be considered by 
Cabinet on the 16th January and will be in the public domain from the 8th 
January. 
___________________________________________________  
 
Background Papers:  
 
Report to Cabinet, Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2012-17, 25th 

January 2012 
 
http://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-meetings/cabinet/agendas-2012/agenda-
25th-january-2012 
 
 
Category of Report: OPEN/CLOSED (please specify)   

Page 52



3 
 

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan update 2013/14 
with a focus on welfare reform as a key risk 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary of the key changes influencing the Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan update for 2013/14 and focuses on 
welfare reform as a key risk to the business plan.  

1.2 Resources and forecast efficiencies arising from the decision to bring 
council housing delivery in-house from 2013 together with an anticipated 
reduction in capital financing costs, primarily as a result of access to more 
attractive interest rates means that the forecast long term financial position 
of the plan has improved and new investment can be planned.  

1.3 Cabinet will consider investment proposals for making use of this additional 
spending power on 16th January 2013. The Cabinet report will be available 
online from 8th January 2013 and the Scrutiny Committee will have the 
opportunity to discuss and comment on these proposals at its meeting on 
10th January. 

1.4 In the HRA Business Plan 2012-17, welfare reform is identified as the single 
biggest policy risk to the business plan. It is also consistently high on the 
agenda of tenants when consulted on council housing priorities. 

1.5 The business plan set aside resources in order to support tenants through 
the changes and minimise the impact on the HRA.  

1.6 Since the business plan was published in January 2012, further detail has 
emerged about welfare reform and its implementation. This detail has 
helped the Council revise its estimate of the likely impact of welfare reform 
on the HRA and council tenants. The current assessment is that welfare 
reform will have a greater impact than previously thought. 

1.7 Cabinet will consider directing additional resources to supporting tenants 
through welfare reform when it meets on 16th January 2013. Whilst these 
proposals are yet to be considered by Cabinet they are being provided early 
to the Scrutiny Committee in this report in order to provide for discussion 
and feedback. 

 
2. What does this mean for the people of Sheffield? 
 
2.1 

 

Council housing is an important aspect of the Council’s housing strategy. 
The Council owns approximately 41,200 homes that are home to over 
48,000 Sheffield people as tenants. 

2.2 Council housing makes a contribution to tackling poverty and financial 
inclusion in the city through the delivery of investment and services to some 
of the city’s poorest residents. 

2.3 Welfare reform will mean reduced household incomes for some tenants in 
receipt of benefits and tax credits. This is likely to result in more people 
getting into financial difficulties, increased reliance on illegal money lenders 
and legal high interest money lenders, more people being at risk of eviction, 
higher volumes of sanctions, higher rates of arrears and higher levels of 
homelessness. 

2.4 Each of the changes proposed by government through the welfare reform 

Page 53



4 
 

will have specific impacts on certain individuals and families. However, 
there will also be a cumulative impact of these changes as a significant 
number of individuals and families will be impacted by more than one of the 
changes. 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1 From April 2012, all Local Authorities with retained stock in England moved 

from a national subsidy system of council housing funding to a new system 
of local ‘self-financing’. 

3.2 The introduction of self-financing has been positive for Sheffield as it has 
meant more resources for council housing than under the old subsidy 
system. 

3.3 However, self-financing has brought with it a transfer of risk and 
responsibility from government to the local authority. This also includes 
new risks for the HRA including interest rates and cost inflation.  

3.4 In January 2012 Cabinet approved the Council’s first business plan for 
council housing under the new self-financing arrangements. 

3.5 The key themes in the 2012-17 Business Plan were efficiencies where 
possible and investment which reduced costs or optimised income over the 
long term. 

3.6 All planned activity in the business plan was considered affordable over the 
30 years but financial challenges remained. These were:- 

 • High volumes of backlog repairs were delayed until the later years of 
the plan 

 • The plan was unable to make provision to pay off debt in full over 30 
years  

 • A number of items could not be funded so were not built into the 30 
year plan e.g. refurbishment of communal areas 

3.7 The Welfare Reform Act 2012 introduces government’s proposals for 
reforming welfare to improve work incentives, simplify the benefits system 
and tackle administrative complexity. 

3.8 In the HRA Business Plan 2012-17, welfare reform was identified as a key 
risk to the business plan. Estimates were made and factored into the 
business plan about what the changes in welfare reform would mean for 
Council tenants and for the HRA. 

3.9 Because of its high risk, financial provision was made in the business plan 
for mitigating the effects of welfare reform. Provision was made to fund 
additional staff for the Income Management Unit Team, a specialist debt 
worker based at the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) and the Smart Move 
scheme (previously grant funded).  

 
4. HRA Business Plan 13/14 Update 
 
4.1 The first business plan for the HRA under the new self financing 

arrangements was approved in January 2012. In this first year of ‘self 
financing’ it has not been necessary to undertake a wholesale review of the 
policy choices set out in the original business plan. 

4.2 However, since the business plan was published, a small number of key 

Page 54



5 
 

factors have had a significant impact on the plan. These factors have been 
the focus of the review in 2012 and the focus of the Council’s conversation 
with tenants.  

4.3  The significant factors which have changed since the original business plan 
was published can be split into factors that improve and factors that have a 
negative impact on the financial outlook of the plan. 

4.4 Key factors improving the financial outlook of the plan: 
 • The Council’s separation of HRA debt from General Fund debt as 

part of the transition to ‘self financing’ gave the HRA greater 
opportunity to take advantage of cheaper borrowing than originally 
forecast. 

 • The decision to bring the delivery of Council Housing in house from 
April 2013 has been accompanied by efficiency savings. This will also 
result in the Sheffield Homes reserve being absorbed into the HRA. 

4.5 Key factors negatively impacting the financial outlook of the plan: 
 • The Government has changed the Right to Buy policy. This sees the 

maximum price discount to tenants increase, the ring fence of any 
additional receipts to new affordable housing and requires that if they 
are to be retained locally these receipts must be matched by new 
resources at a ratio of 30 (receipts):70 (new resources).  

 • The Council’s developing understanding of the likely impact of 
welfare reform is resulting in higher than originally forecast arrears. 

4.6 All original planning assumptions and targets in the original business plan 
have been reviewed and where necessary updated for 2013/14.  

4.7 The net impact of all the changes is that the forecast long term financial 
position of the plan has improved and new investment can be planned.  

4.8 A report to Cabinet proposing what new investment activity is prioritised in 
the business plan will be tabled on 16th January 2013 with the report 
available online from 8th January 2013. The Scrutiny Committee will have 
the opportunity to comment on this at its meeting on the 10th January. 

4.9 The report to Cabinet will also include proposals to provide additional 
support to tenants through welfare reform. Whilst these proposals are yet to 
be considered by Cabinet they are being provided early to the Scrutiny 
Committee in this report in order to provide for discussion and feedback. 
These are set out in section 7. 

 
5. Welfare Reform and the HRA 
 
5.1  The key risk to income and the single biggest policy risk to the business plan 

overall continues to be welfare reform.  

5.2 The Welfare Reform Act introduces many changes that will affect working 
age council tenants who claim benefits. Last year approximately £77m rent 
was paid in housing benefit. Of this approximately £44m (57%) of that 
benefit was paid to working age tenants. 

5.3 The most significant risks in relation to welfare reform arise from the 
introduction of Universal Credit, which will be paid direct to tenants of 
working age, and the linking of household size to Housing Benefit eligibility. 
Universal Credit will start from October 2013 for new claimants and will be 
phased in by 2017. Housing benefit eligibility linked to household size 

Page 55



6 
 

comes into operation in April 2013.   

5.4 Initial attempts to quantify the risk associated with welfare reform and 
establish mitigating actions were made in the original business plan. These 
estimates have now been reviewed, updated and uplifted based on the 
Council’s developing understanding of the Government’s proposals. 

5.5 The proposed elements of welfare reform that pose a risk to the HRA have 
been identified and further analysis has provided the Council with an 
estimated impact on arrears each elements is likely to have. These are 
summarised in the table below. 
 

ELEMENT WHEN 
IMPLEMENTED  

ESTIMATED 
IMPACT ON 
ARREARS 

Child benefit rates frozen for 3 
years 

from April 2011 LOW 

An increase in non-dependent 
deductions 

from April 2011 LOW 

Restricting the amount of housing 
benefit for under occupiers 

from April 2013 HIGH 

Council Tax Reform 
 

from April 2013 HIGH 

Benefits cap (£350 p/w for single 
people and £500 p/w for families)  

from April 2013 LOW 

Universal Credit paid direct to the 
tenant (not the rent account) 

from Oct 2013 HIGH 

  

5.6 The major assumptions that affect the calculation are: 

 • The Government’s timetable for implementation will not be delayed 
and they will not dilute their original proposals. 

 • Current employment opportunities mean most tenants affected will 
remain on benefits and continue to struggle on a lower benefit 
income. 

 • Large numbers of tenants affected could choose to spend Universal 
Credits on other outgoings rather than their rent.  

 • The number of weeks non-payment before the Council can secure 
direct rent payments – based on the assumption of 8 weeks (however 
this could be 4, 8 or 12 weeks but do not know at this time). 

 • The percentage of rent arrears caused for every £1 lost in household 
income through loss of other benefits has been estimated at 15% or 
1/7th 

5.7 Gross rent arrears at the end of 2011/12 were £9.6m. Forecasts arising from 
the most recent calculation are that arrears levels will rise by an amount 
significantly more than budgeted in the original business plan for the period 
to 2017/18. 

5.8 There is also a risk that when the new Universal Credit regulations are 
announced some charges could cease to be eligible for housing support. 

5.9 Welfare Reform will also affect other HRA costs such as transaction costs, 
payment card costs, eviction costs and housing management costs.  

Page 56



7 
 

 
6. Existing support to tenants 
 
6.2 Support is already provided to council tenants to help them to pay their rent 

through a range of actions including: 

 • The promotion of a rent payment culture including promotion of cost 
effective payment methods, in particular Direct Debit, through regular 
campaigns, advertising and prize draws.  

 • An in-house debt prevention team supporting tenants with money 
management, budgeting, financial education, benefits and debt advice. 

 • Promotion of Home Swapper and the Smart Move schemes  

 • Working in partnership with the Citizen Advice Bureau Debt Support 
Unit, the Credit Union and other partners to ensure the Council’s 
support to tenants is joined up.  

 • An independent debt advice worker to provide early intervention debt 
advice to tenants  

 • Working in partnership with a number of employment support agencies 
to help unemployed tenants who are looking to get back into work. 

6.3 The 2012-17 HRA Business Plan sets out how additional resources would 
be directed to the support of tenants to pay their rent from 2012/13 in light 
of the welfare reform proposals. These included; 

 • Additional staff for the Income Management Unit Team (preventative & 
arrears work) 

 • The continuation of the Smart Move scheme (previously grant funded). 

 • An established medium term budget to fund a specialist debt worker 
based at the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) 

6.4 Other work in 2012 to provide support to tenants through welfare reform 
has included; 

 • A comprehensive communication strategy (including letters, home 
visits, local radio etc) to ensure that tenants and active bidders on the 
rehousing list understand the welfare reform changes and how they 
could be affected. This has included working with other housing 
providers in Sheffield and South Yorkshire on joint communications and 
sharing best practice. 

 • Briefing Tenants and Residents Associations on all aspects of welfare 
reform changes so they can support tenants in their areas. 

 • Consideration of the Welfare Reform underoccupation rules as part of 
the Allocations Policy Review including specific proposals to extend 
priority rehousing to tenants under occupying 2 bed dwellings. 

 • Reviewing the rent arrears policy and procedures in order to ensure the 
implications of welfare reform are taken into account when dealing with 
tenants who fall into arrears. 

 • Supporting tenants affected by the welfare reform to apply for 
Discretionary Housing Payments. 

 • Working closely with other council departments to ensure a joined up 
approach to welfare reform and consideration of the wider implications 

Page 57



8 
 

for the city, including involvement in the local assistance and council tax 
support schemes. 

 • Working with the voluntary sector to support tenants affected by the 
welfare reform changes including investigating the possibility of 
budgeting accounts for tenants with the Sheffield Credit Union. 

 
7. Additional support for tenants in 2013/14 
 
7.1 A key priority for the 2012-17 HRA Business Plan was to begin work on 

mitigating the potential impact of the Government’s welfare reforms and to 
start work on this early.  

7.2 Since the original business plan was published, further detail has emerged 
on the Government’s welfare reform proposals and the Council now has a 
better understanding of the potential impacts on tenants and the HRA.  

7.3 It is proposed that from 2013/14 additional resource is allocated to the 
support of tenants through welfare reform. This is because  

 • Latest assessments suggest the impacts of welfare reform are likely 
to be more severe than initially forecast.  

 • Providing support to tenants is a continuing high priority emerging 
from tenant consultation. 

 • The costs associated with specific proposals for supporting tenants 
through welfare reform are becoming clear. 

7.4 Each of the mitigations as set out in the update report to Cabinet (to be 
tabled 16th January 2013) are presented below, together with a brief 
overview of what each would involve. 

7.5 a) Visiting affected tenants (fast-tracked - already underway) 
 

Social landlords are stressing the importance of face to face contact with 
tenants when explaining the Government’s welfare reform changes to 
tenants. They say that tenants report they had not understood the changes 
until they were explained in person. Therefore additional staff have been 
recruited so that every tenant affected by the benefits cap and the under 
occupancy rules can be visited at home by April 2013 when the changes 
come into force. Initially this was targeted at tenants who will see a 
reduction in benefits paid from April 2013 and those tenants who are 
claiming housing benefit and who are under occupying their properties. The 
intention is to visit all those affected to support and advise customers what 
their options are and help them make informed decisions. 

7.6 b) Training on welfare benefits for staff 
 

The welfare reform changes are large scale and complex. It is proposed 
that the staff of the Income Management Unit is provided with training on 
the reforms to enable them to better signpost tenants to claim appropriate 
benefits. 

7.7 c) Support for under-occupying customers who wish to move 
 

In addition to the downsizing support offered through the Smart Move 
scheme, it is likely that more practical support with moving home (van, 
utilities, carpets etc) would be beneficial to tenants concerned about the 
implications of the under-occupancy rules on housing benefit. The cost of 

Page 58



9 
 

providing this additional support will be factored into the business plan. 

7.8 d) Payment methods 
 

The Council will look to increase the use of alternative payment methods 
such as direct debits and jam jar accounts to mitigate the risk associated 
with direct payments to rent accounts ending under the Universal Credit. A 
jam jar account is a type of account that helps customers manage their 
money. The cost associated with administering these schemes would need 
to be funded and these costs will be factored into the business plan. 

7.9 e) Hardship Fund 
 

The Council will consider the benefits and viability of establishing a limited 
(HRA) fund that could be accessed by council tenants who are at severe 
risk of eviction. This would complement the Social Fund which transfers to 
the City Council from the Department for Work and Pensions in April 2013.  

7.10 f) Increased funding to the CAB Debt Support Unit for another specialist 
debt worker 
 

This would allow a further 150 tenants to be supported each year to help 
tenants manage and reduce debts, reduce the number of legal actions 
taken and improve the sustainability of tenancies. 

 
8. Next steps  
 
8.1 The HRA Business Plan 2012-17 update for 2013/14 will be reported to 

Cabinet on 16th January 2013. 

 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 The Scrutiny Committee is asked to discuss and feed back their views with 

regard to the proposals for additional support to tenants through welfare 
reform which are due to be considered by Cabinet on 16th January and are 
set out in this report. 

9.2 

 

The Scrutiny Committee is also asked to provide feedback and comment 
on the wider HRA Business Plan update report for 2013/14 which will be 
considered by Cabinet on the 16th January and in the public domain from 
the 8th January. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 

 
 

 
Report of: Derek Martin  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Housing Strategy 2013-23  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Georgina Parkin, Manager Housing Strategy and Policy    
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The new ten year housing strategy will set out Sheffield City Council’s (SCC) 
approach to housing in all tenures and in all areas of the city.  Its action plan 
will be refreshed every three years to make it responsive to the local and 
national housing landscape but will be guided by the overarching themes and 
priorities of the strategy. This report is being presented at the request of the 
Scrutiny Committee to help scrutinise SCC’s future strategic approach to 
housing in Sheffield. 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Community Assembly request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee ���� 

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
Consider the 10 year Housing Strategy and its first three year action plan and 
provide comment on their content prior to cabinet approval.   
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
Housing Strategy 2013-23 
Housing Strategy Action Plan 2013-16 
Housing Strategy Performance Indicators 
Housing Strategy 2013-23 EIA 
Strategic Housing Review Report 
Housing Strategy Consultation Findings 
 

Report to Safer and Stronger 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 

10
th
 January 2013  

Agenda Item 9

Page 61



 2

Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 

Report of the Director of Derek Martin –  
Housing Strategy 2013-23 
 
 
1. Introduction/Context 
 
1.1 It is widely recognised that Sheffield faces a number of significant 

challenges where housing plays a pivotal role.  Some of these 
challenges are already being addressed by the Council and its partners, 
whilst others challenges are expected to develop as national policy is 
implemented.  

 
The strategy sets out Sheffield City Council’s (SCC) approach to housing 
in all tenures and in all areas of the city, and will be supported by a 
series of action plans. These will be guided by the overarching themes 
and priorities of the strategy but refreshed every three years to make the 
plans responsive to the local and national housing landscape. 
 
There is no statutory duty to produce a housing strategy but the new 
housing strategy will help our partners, funders and residents 
understand our housing ambitions for new and existing homes in the city 
and for the housing services provided for Sheffield’s residents. In 
addition, it will enable them to consider and develop their own 
opportunities to deliver this shared vision. The report is being presented 
at the request of the Committee for their comment.  

 
 
2. Main body of report, matters for consideration, etc  
 
2.1 Consultation  

 
Extensive consultation has been carried out on the priority issues for the 
new Housing Strategy. The consultation highlighted a wide range of 
issues and concerns; some of these were strategic and policy focussed, 
some were about how the Council delivers its services, and some were 
about access to housing and how the city’s residents are affected by the 
area and house in which they live. 

 
The consultation ran between March 2010 and May 2012.  Equality and 
accessibility considerations were taken into account throughout the 
consultation and some groups that were under represented in the 
consultation feedback were given additional opportunity to get involved. 

  

2.2 Housing Priorities  
 
The feedback from this consultation has fed directly into the identified 
priorities in the draft Housing Strategy, as set out in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 
below. The 10 most important issues highlighted from the consultation 
are shown below: 
 

Page 62



 3

a. Provide more affordable homes to rent and buy  
b. Improve the quality of Sheffield’s neighbourhoods.  
c. Increase support to help people remain independent in their own 

home, including provision for older people.   
d. Give people a greater say in decisions on housing and provide 

opportunities to empower our communities to help them thrive. 
e. Help young people to obtain and run a home  
f. Promote cohesive communities, including reducing anti-social 

behaviour and improving our response to it. 
g. Improve the condition of the private rented sector and the standard of 

service provided to tenants living in the sector. 
h. Reduce the carbon footprint of the city’s housing stock.  
i. Make best use of our existing stock, including reducing the number of 

empty homes in the city and the impact that these have on our 
communities.  

j. Improve the quality and range of homes in the city.  

The 10 housing priorities above span a range of housing issues and 
particularly mention helping the younger and the older members of our 
communities. The priorities also include wider neighbourhood concerns 
such as anti-social behaviour and the quality of our homes and 
neighbourhoods. 

2.3 Strategic Housing Review 
 

2.3.1 The feedback gathered from Sheffield’s communities and key 
stakeholders has allowed the Council to gain a better understanding of 
the housing issues that residents view as being most important to them. 
In order to establish how the Council and its partners could work towards 
progressing these priorities and take account of national and local 
changes, a Strategic Review of housing in Sheffield was undertaken. 

 
The review highlighted that the current housing landscape will be 
significantly impacted by: 

• Changes to the age and mix of Sheffield’s population 

• The government’s financial and (relatively untested) policy changes, 
which will need to be fully implemented before their impact is known 
and properly understood 

• The overall economic climate and its effect on slowing housing 
growth and access to finance 

• The impact of government policies, such as the Localism Act, 
changes to the Planning Act  

• Welfare benefit reform, which is going to have a significant impact on 
housing choices, creating some complex problems for predicting 
population growth and migration, household formation, and true 
demand for housing and housing services 

• Councils working with reducing finances, making it increasingly 
important for resources to be effectively targeted and intelligence led.  

 
2.3.2 The Strategic Housing Review considered the changes to funding for 

housing activity. Since the last strategy was developed many sources of 
funding which were used to support housing activity across the city and 
across tenures are no longer available.   
 

Page 63



 4

The Council still has the challenge of finding solutions for legacy 
schemes where funding has been withdrawn early, and in funding 
activities to improve the quality of homes within the private sector. 
However, there is now government commitment to address the need for 
greater housing supply, and Government has created financial 
incentives to encourage local authorities to facilitate housing growth. It is 
therefore currently in the Council’s interest to prioritise projects that have 
a significant impact on increasing housing delivery and on our ability to 
bring empty homes back into use.  

 
2.3.3 Having looked at the current housing policy and investment landscape 

and housing market changes in Sheffield, and having considered the 
priorities raised by our residents, the Strategic Housing Review 
established 3 key objectives for housing in the city over the next 10 
years. These are: 

 

• Help younger, older and vulnerable people to live independently 

• Increase the supply of new homes in the city 

• Make best use of the city’s existing housing stock 
 

These objectives will be delivered by the Council and our partners 
through investment in physical interventions in the places that people 
live and work in, and by our approach to supporting our residents. 
Therefore in the new housing strategy the issues have been grouped 
under the themes of ‘Great Places’ and ‘Sustainable Communities’. 
These chapters of the Housing Strategy have been summarised in the 
sections below. 

 
2.4 Content of the Strategy 
 
2.4.1 Great Places 

In Sheffield we are working towards creating a city that is a ‘Great Place 
to Live’. By this we mean a city with desirable neighbourhoods that offer 
a range of affordable and quality homes that meet people’s needs, along 
with a strong sense of local identity and attractive well-used and popular 
public spaces and facilities. The physical intervention priorities to help us 
achieve this are described in the strategy, and set out under the 
following headings: 
 
� Enabling housing development and increasing housing supply 
� Improving the mix and range of homes 
� Making best use of existing stock 

 
2.4.2 Sustainable Communities 

We believe everybody in Sheffield should live in welcoming, inclusive 
and safe communities and have a good standard of housing that enables 
them to stay safe and warm. We know however, that some communities 
within Sheffield’s diverse population will need extra support to achieve 
this and to actively participate in the life of the city.  Our approach to 
supporting independent living is set out in the housing strategy and 
describes how we will ensure that our resources help deliver the 
following outcomes: 
 

� Improving health and wellbeing 

Page 64



 5

� Helping young people to live independently  
� Helping vulnerable and older people to live independently 

 
2.4.3 Legal Implications 

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report or the 
Housing Strategy. Any legal implications arising from individual projects 
or activities set out in the Action Plan will be considered when they are 
reported for approval in accordance with the Leader’s Scheme of 
delegation.   
 

2.4.4 Financial Implications 
 There are a number of changes in the sources of funding which underpin 

the targets set out in the Housing Strategy Action Plan. However, this 
report does not commit the Council to any spending plans. Instead it will 
be used to inform the allocation of resources in the forthcoming Business 
Planning process for 2013-14 and beyond. 

 
2.4.5 Equality Implications 
 The Housing Strategy outlines our belief that everybody in Sheffield 

should live in welcoming, inclusive and safe communities and have a 
good standard of housing that enables them to stay safe and warm. It 
also acknowledges that some communities within Sheffield’s diverse 
population will need extra support to achieve this and to actively 
participate in the life of the city. The Housing Strategy therefore sets out 
our broad approach to meet this ambition whilst reflecting the current 
policy and investment landscape in which we are operating, and the 
levels of investment and resources available.  

 
2.4.6 Environmental Implications 

Our intention to make the best use of existing stock in the city is 
described in section 2.9 of the Housing Strategy and includes our 
priorities for reducing the city’s carbon footprint and for reducing the risk 
of cold related illnesses as a result of fuel poverty.  Individual projects 
arising from this housing strategy will assess their individual 
environmental implications as part of future approval processes. 

 

3. What does this mean for the people of Sheffield? 
 
3.1 Work to develop the new Housing Strategy has established clear 

priorities for the Council and for Sheffield residents. Based on these 
priorities the Housing Strategy sets out how the Council and our partners 
can best use investment and resources over the long term to bring 
maximum benefit to Sheffield’s residents.  

The new Housing Strategy will ensure that housing investment will 
support the Council’s strategic outcomes, in particular the Great Place to 
Live and Safe and Secure Communities outcomes. 

 
4. Recommendation 
 
4.1 That the Committee provide views and comment on the housing 

priorities identified in the Housing Strategy. 
 

Page 65



 6

4.2 That the Committee provide views and comment on the actions identified 
in the Housing Strategy Action Plan  

 
 

Page 66



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�	
�

�
�	
�


�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
	

�
�


��
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 67



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
��
	
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�

�
��
�
�

�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�

�
	
�
��
��

�
	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
	
�
�
��
�

�
�
�



��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

��
�
�

�
�


�
��
�
�
��

Page 68



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
�
	

�
	

�
�    

� �
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
 

�

� �
�
�
�

�
��
!
��
"
��
�

�
#
��
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�

�
��
$
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

��
�
��

� �
�
�
�

�
��
%
��
&
�
��
�
�
��
��

� �

� ��
�

�
� �

�
�

� � �
�

�
� �

�
�

� � � � � � � � �

Page 69



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�

��





��

�
��

Page 70



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�

��





��

�
��

� �
��
�'
	

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
	
��

� �
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

��



�
��



�

 �
��



�

��
�

�!
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��



�

�
��

�




�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�



�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��



��
�

�

"

�
#�

$
��

�
�






�
��

�
��

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
�!



�



�

�
��

��
�

���



�
�$

��
�

�

�

��
�

�%
�

�
&

�'
��

��
��

��
(

�
��






�
��

%
�

�&
)�

�
�

��
��



�*

�
�

�
!

��



�
�


��
�

�!
�



��



�

��
�

��
��

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
#�

�



+
!

�

�

�
�$

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

 �
��



�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

��



�
��

�



�
�,

�!
��



��

�
��

�
)�

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�

-
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��



�

�-



�"



��
��

�%
��



��

�
"

��
�


�
�



$

�$
�

��
�



�!

�
���

�




��
�

��
��



�*

�
�



�

�
�

��



�
�

�
�

��
,

�
�


�
��

�
+

!
��

�




�
��



�

�+
�

&
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

"
��

�
�

�$
�

�
��

�"
�



"

��
��

�

+

��
�

�

�

�
��

�
�

�$



��
�

�
$

�



��
�


��
�,

�
#�

��
�

�

#�

$



�&
#�

�

,

�
�

��
�



�

�,
��

��
)�

�
� .

��





�

��
�



��

�
�


��
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
�"

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

,
�

�+
�



�

�

��

��
�

��
+

!
��

�




�
)�

/



��
�


�
��



�

�
#�

$
�

�!
�

���
,

�
��

�
�

��
�






�
�*

�
�

���
�

��
��

!
��

��



+
�

�
�

�
�



��

�
�"

��



��
+

"
�


,
�

��
��

�
���

 �
��

��
�

��
�

�



�
�

�
�!

�
�

"
�


,
��

�

�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�



,

��





+

�



��
�


��



�
!

��
�

�+
"

�

,

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��






�
��

�
��

�
�


+
�



�)

�0
�

��
��



�

!
�

���
,

�
��

�
�

��
�






�
��



�

�
�


�
��



�

��



�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
�"

�
��



��

+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��



�

�
$

�
��!

�
�


�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
��

�
�

��
�



��

#�
�



�

��
��

��
�

�
$

��
�

��
+

!
��

�




�
��



��

�

$

��
��

��
�








+

�
�$

���
�!

�
�

�
��






�
�

��
$

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
��



�

��



+
"

�
��

��
,

�
�

�



�
�

�

�

�+
�

�&
�

�)
�

� �
�

��
�	



�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�

�

��
��

�
�-



�



�

�� 
�

�
�

+
!

��
�




�

��



��
�



�

�
�


�
�"

�

,

��
�




#�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�



�
�+

�



�
�

�
+

�



��
�


��
�

�
��

��
�

�

,

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
)�

1�
��

�
�

�
��

!
�

�
��



$

�$
�

��



��



�
��



��

�
�

�

�

��
��

�



�
��

�
�

��



�
��



��

�
�



�

�
�"

�
��



�

��
��



�

��
�

�
�

"
��

,
�

��
��

�
�

�

��

�

��

�
�"

��
�

��
�

�
��

,
�

�

�

��
�



�

��
)�

2
�

��
"

��



��
��

��
�

��





�

�$
���

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�"



���
�

��



�
�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

��



�
�

�
�

"
�

��
�

�
��

$
�

��
��

�

"

�
��

��



�
�

$
��

�
�


��



�
�$

���
�!

�
��

�
��



�

��
�


��
��

�
��

�
�

�

��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��





�"

��



�
)�

�

3



��
��



�


�+
�

��





��

!



�
��

�



$
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�



�
�


�
��



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

���



�
�

�
��



��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�



�

�

��



�$
�

��
��

�



�!
�

��



�



�
��



��

�
�

��
��

��
�


��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
"



��

)�
�.

��
�

��
���

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
+

�



��



��
�

�
�

��
��

��
 �

��



�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

�

�

�
�

��



�
�


,
�

�
��

�

�


�
$

��



�
��

�
��

��



�
��



+

�
�

��



�
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�,
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��



�
��

�

��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
	



�

�
�


�
�4

�
,

��
$

�4
�

"



��
��

�
�

�
)�

5



��
��

�
"



��

�
�

�





��

�!
�

��
�

��



��
�

�
��

,
��

�



�
�

�!
�

�
�

��



��
��

��
�

	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

)�
� �
�!
�#
�
�
�
��

�
�
	
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��

� �
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�"



"

�
��

��





��

�
��

�

$

�

�

��



�
��



��






�
��

��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�



�

�
�

�



��
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

)�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

 �
�"



"

�
��

��





��

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
�

��



��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�



�
�6

�
�

#�
�

�
�!

�
��

�
�

�
)�

3



�
��



��

��
��

��
�


$
��

�
$

���
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

!



��
��



�

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
�

��
"

�
�

��
�

+
#�

�
�

��
,

�



�!
�

��
��

��
�

��



��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�

�
���

��



�
�



�

�!
�

��



��



�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��

�
�

�

�

�"



"
�

��
��






)�
�

� �
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��

�
�

��
�



��

��
��

��
�,

�

�

��





�

�
��

�



�
�

��
�

�

�

+
!

�
��



��

"
�



"

��
��

�
�

�
��

�
��



�

�

,

�
��

��
�

�
�

"
�

�
��

�
��



��



�

��
�

�
�

�!
�

�

,

�
��

�
�

7
�8

�

�

�
"

"
�


�
�+

�
��

��
��

�
#�

�
�

�"
�



"

��
9�



,

�
��

��
�

�
�



�

��
�

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

)�
0

�
��

��



��
�

"
�

�
��

�



�
�


�
��

�
�

�
��



��

�
�

�

�

+
!

�
��

�

��

"
�



"

��
��

�,
�


�
��



�

��
�

��
��

�
�$

��
�

��
�

�
�


�

�

��
��

�
!

���
��

�
�

�

��

�
�

��
�

��



�
�

��



+
�"






��
+

�



��
��

�
�

�
��

�
)�

�
� �

�
�

��
��

��
 �

��



�
�

�
�



��

�
��

��
�!

�
�



+

�

�

�

Page 71



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

6
�

�

�

�

��
�

�
�


�
��

��
�,

�
��

�
)�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�








+
��

�+
��

��
��






��
�


+
��

�
�


"
�

#�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�


�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��



+

�

�

�
�


��
�

�
��

��
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
!

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
�

+





�

�
��

5
��

�
&

��



�
�3

�




��
��

��
��



��

�
85

3
�

9�
��

+
���

�
�

)�
�

� 5
3

�
��

�
+

���
�

�
��

�



�
��



��

�,
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
�



�

�
�

�



��
�

)�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�



��

�
�








+

��
�

�



,
��






+
�



��

+
�

�



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�


$
�


�
�



�

+
!

�
��



��

�



�



�
�"

�



"
��

��
��

�




$
��

��
�

�
��

��,
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
�

+
���

��



+
�

��



��
�




�

�
��



��

��,
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






)�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�



�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
,

�
��

�
�

�
�



�

�
�

�



��
��

�:
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

��
�+

��
�

��





��

��
���

�
�

�"
��

�
��

��
�

�!
�

�;



,
�

�

+

�



��
�



�

�
+

�
�

��
,

�



��
�


$
�


,
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
)�

%
�


,
��

�

�

��
��

�



�
�

�

��

�



+
�

�
��



�

�
�

�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
+

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��



��
�



�

�
�

�
�



�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�
�


��



�
��

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
�$

���
�

��
�

��
�


��
�!

�
��

�&
�

�
��

�
�

���



�
�

��



��
��

��
�

	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

)�
�

� �
�$
��
�
�



��
��
��
�(
�
�
�
�	
�
�)

�
�*
�

�

�

� �
�

�
��

��
��

<�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�

�

&
��






��
�


�
��

�
�

��
�

�"
�


"



��
�




�


��
�

�
+

�=
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��



+
�

�
�

!
�

���
��



��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��



�

�6
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

"
�


"
�

��
��

�
�!

�
���

�!
�

�

��

��
�

�
�

)�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��



$

�
��

��
,

�
��

�

��

��
�

��
��



�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

"
�


"
�

��
��

�
�$

�
�



��



+

"
�

��
�

��



�

�

��





�

��
�



�

��
�

�
�




�

��
�

,
�

��
�

�
�

)�
� %

��
,

�
��

�"
�


"
�

��
��

�
�+

�
&

�
��

"
��

�
��

�
=

*
�

�
��

�
��

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��



�

�
�


�
��

�

�

&
�

�



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

"
�


"



��
�




�


��
��

�
�

�
��

��
�



$



�

��



�
�

�
"

��
�

)�
�

�
��

��
�



�

��
��

�
��

�&
�

��
��



�

��
+

�
�


��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�

��



,

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
#�

!
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
 �

�"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

�+
�

�&
�

��
��

��
�


$
�


�
��



�

��
�

��
�

"
�

�
��

�
��



��



�

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��



,

�
��

��
�

��



+
�


�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��



�



��

�
��

��



�
��

�
��

�
+

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

)�
�

�
�

�
��

+
�

�

�


�
�"

�

"

�
��

��
�

��
��

��



�
��

��
��



��

�
�

��
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

��



�



�
���



��



��

�
��

4
�

�
��

��
��

�
�

%
�


,
��

�
��

)�
� .

"
"

�

�

�+
�

��
��

��
7

�

��

��
�

��
��

�
 �

��
�


�
&

��
�

�
�

!
�

�



��
+

"
��

��



��
6

�+





��

�
�


��
+



��

)�
	



$

�
,

�
�#

��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�




�

=�
�

�+
��

+
"

��
�

�



+
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

�

�

��



�
�$

�
��

�+
��



�

+
�

�

��

�

��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��






�

,

�
��

�



+
�


�
��

�
�

��
)�

� �
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�

��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�!
�

��





��

�
�

��



�
��

�
,

�
��

�

��

*
�

�
���

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

�
!

���
��

)�
�

�
�

��



�
�

�

�

�
+

�
�&

�
��

�

��

�
�

��



�
��

�$
�

�
��



��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

+
�

��
�"



"

�
��

��
�



�

��



�
�

�
�"

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
$

�
���

�
!



,

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

,
�

��
�

�
)�

1

��






��
�

�
�#

�
"

�
��

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�



�

�




��
�

��





��

�

��



+

�
�

��
�

�+



�
��

�
�

"
��

,
�

�
�$

�
��

�
��



��

�
�

��



�



��
�

#�
�



�

�"
�


"
�

��
�

�"
��

�
�

�
��



�

��
�



��

��
,

�
��

��
��

�
�

�



�
��

���
��



$

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�



�


��
�

��
"

��
�

�
�

��



�
�

�
�

��
��

��
)�

� �
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
#�

+
�



�

�
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�"
�


"
�

��
��

�
��

�
,

�
��



�

�
��






�
�

�
��

�
!

�
��



��

�
��

"
�


�
��

+
+

�
�


��
�


,
�

�
�+

�



��
�



�

��
+

"
�


,
�

+
�



��

�



�
��

�
�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
��

�
�

�



�
��

��
�

�

�

&
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

)�
	



$

�
,

�
�#

�
��

�
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�

�
�


��
�

�
��

�



��
�

��





��

�

�

��



+
�

�



��
��

�
�"






��
�

��
*

�
�

���
�

��



+
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

�

-





�

��
�

��
!

��
��



,

�
�

�+
�



��

�
�

�
��

��



��



�
!

��
�

�
�

�
��



��

+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
��

��
��

��



�
�

�

��



�

��
�



+

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

�



�
��

��
��

�
�

��



�
�

�

�

�
+

�
�&

�
��

��



�
�


�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
��



��



+

�
�


��



�
��

+



�
��

�
�

"
��

,
�

�
��

��
�

�
)�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

���
�

�
�

���



�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��



�
��



+

�
�


��



�
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�


�
&

��



�
��

��
�

�
��

��
���

��
���

�
�



��

�

��

��
�

��
��



�

�
��

��



�
�*

�
�

���
�

�$
�

�$



�
��

��
�

"
�

�
��

�

��

��
�

��
,

�

�

��



�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
)�

�
� �
�%
�+
�
,
�(
�
�
�
�
�

� %
��

,
�

��
��



�

�
�

�!
�

���
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
�


,
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

=�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�!
�

�



��



+
�


�
��

�
�!

�
�

�
"

�
��

+
�



��

#�
"

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�

&

�
�

��



��
�

�
�!






+
�

�

��

��
�

��
�



��

�
��

�,
�


�
)�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��



�!
�

�



��
�

!
��

��
�


$
��

��



�"
�

�"



�
�

=!
�

���
��

��
�

�



��
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





�


,
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��



�

�
��

�
��

�
+

�



�
��



��

�
��

�
�



��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�



�

��
���

�
�

�
�

��
��

��



��
��

�



��
�+

"
�

�
��






��



�
�

�

�

�
+

�
�&

�
��

��



��
�

��
�

�

��

��
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

)�
�

� 3



��
��

�
�

�



��
�

#�
��

�
��






�
��

�
�


��
�




�+



��

�
�

�
�

�
��



�

�

�

��



�
��

�
�

�$
��

�
��

�
�








+

��
��






�
��

�




�
�

�
�

,
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��



��



�

�
�


�
��

�
��,

�
��

��
�

��
�

��



�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�!

�
�


�
�+

�
�

�
��



$

�
��

��
�



�$

�
�

�



��
�

�"
�

��
�

��



�
�


�
$

�!
�

���
��

�
��

�



��
�

�
�

�
�



�



��

��



��
�

"
"

�

�

�+
�

��
��

��
7

�

��

��
�

��
��

�
 �

�
�

�

�

&
)�

�
�

��
�+

�
�



�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��






�
�

��
!

�
���

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
*

�
��

�
�

��



��
�

��,
�

��
��

�
��



+

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
*

�
��

�
�

�!
�

��
�

�
6

��



�+
�

�
��

��
�

�



�
�

�
�

�

��

��
�

��
�


$
�


�
�"



"

�
��

��





)�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
�

+
�

�
�

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��

�



�
��

��

�

�
��

�
��



��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

��
��






�
�



��

�
��

�
��



�

��
�

�




��
�

��
�

�
��



��

��
�

��
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
��+

��
�

��



��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�



+

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�

Page 72



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�



�
�

�

�

�+
�

�&
�

��
$

���
��

�
��,

�
��

�

��



�

�




�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�)
��

� �
�-
�(
�
�
�
�	
�
��
	
�
�

�
�
�.
�
�
	
�
�
�
�

� �
�

�
��

�








+
��

��
�

�
�

��



��
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

��



�
�

�
��

!
�

���
�


�
��



�

��
��

��





��

�!
�

��





��



��

�
�

��
�


$
��

�
�

�
�



�

�
��

�
�"



$

�
��

�
�)

�-





�

��
�

�
��






�+
�

&
�

�
��

�
�

��



��
��

�



��
�






��
�!

�
��






��



��
�

�
��

�








+
�

#�
�

�

�



�

��
�

��
�

�"
�

��
�

�



��



��
;

'
%

#�
�

�



�
��

��



�
�

�
��

��
�

�"
�

�
&

��



��
�

�
>

�?
�

�
�!

���
�




�


��
�

�








+
��

�



�
�"

�
��

�



�
��

�
�



�



��



�

��



��



,
�

��
�

)�
�+

�@



!
�

)�
�

� 	
��

�
�*

�
�

���
�

�

�

$
��



+

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

��
"

��
�

�
�

�
$

���
��



�

�



�
�

��
�

!



�
��

+



!
���

��
��



�

��
�

�
���

��
��

�
��

��
��

��



�
�

��
�

�








+
��

��
�


$
��

)�
0

�
���

"
��






�
�

��



�
�

�

�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

$
���

��
��



�

�
�

"
"



��

��
�

�
��

��
�

 �
��

+
!

��
�




��



��

��
��

�
��

�



�
�

��
��

�

�"

�

��

�
�

�




�
��

��



�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

��



�
��



�

�
�


$
�


�
��



$



��

&
���

�
�

�$



�&
�


��
�

)�
�

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
�

�"
�

��
�


��
�

�
�

��
��

��
 �

��



�
�

�

�

�

��

�
�#

��
�

��
��

�
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��



"
"



��

�



��
��

�
�$

���
�!

�
�

��
�



��

��
�

�
��

�




�
�$

��
�

��
��



�

"



��
��



�

�
�


��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�"
��



��

��
�

�
)�

� �
�/
��
�
�
�



��
��
��
�

�
�0
�
�
��
	
��

� �
�

�
��

��
��

�-
��

�
�4

�
�

�




��
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�

��

5
��

��
�


�$
��

�
��

�+



�
��

�
)>

�+
���

�




�"
�



"

��
�

�





��

�!
�

��



�
��



��

�;
A

.
�


��
?

�
�

)�
!



)�

�
�

�
� �

��
�

�




�
 �

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�+
�


�
��



��

�
�"

��
��

,
�

�
��

�
�B

C
 �

��
�








+

�
��



�$

�
��

�!
�

��
�

"
"



��

�

�

�
&

�
�

��
�

�
�


��
#�

�
�

��,
�

��



�
��

��





�

��
�


$
��

��



�
�

�
��

�
��



�

�@



!
�

)�
�

�

0



�&
��

�
��



�

�
�$

�
�

��



��
�

,
�

�

"

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

-
��

�
�4

�
�

�




�1



,
�

�
�+

�



��
/

�



�
��



��

�
�



��

��
�

"
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
,

�
��

�
�

�"



��



��
�

��
�


��
��

,
�

��
�

!
�

��
�

�




�
��

�



�
��



�

�
��

�
�








+

��
�

��



�
��



�

�



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�








+

�
��

�
�!






�
��

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��

"
��

�
�

�
��



�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

��
$

�
�

)�
	



�

�
�


�
�$

���
�

"
��

�
��

�&
�

�
��



��

��



��



�
!

��

�

��
�








+

��
�

��
�

�



�
��

��





��



�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�$



�&
�


�
�$

��
�

�



��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��



��
��

�
�

��



��
�

�
�-

��
�

�4
�

�
�




��



�

�
���



�


�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
,

��
�

)�
�

� �
�1
�0
�
��
��

�
�
�
�



��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
	
�
��
�

� 0
�

�$
�



��

�
�

�
��

��
��

��



��
�

,
�

��
��

�
��

"
��

�
�

�
�

�



�
��

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��



+

+
�



��

��
�

#�
�



�

�

�

��

�
�
�



��
��
��
#
�

�
	

�
�
��
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�

�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
'	
�
�
�

�

�
	

�
#
��
�
��

�
�
�
�

Page 73



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

>
�

�

�
+

!
��

�




��
�

��



��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

,
�

��





�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
���

�
��



�

�"
�



"

��
��

�
�

��
"

�

�

�
�


��
$

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
��

�,
�

)�
��

� 0
�

�$
���

��





&

��



�"





��

��
�



�

��
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
�

��
�


,
�

�
�+

�



��
�


��
�

�
��

,
�

�+
�

�
�+

�
+

�



�
��



+

�
�

#�
�



�

��
�

��



�
�


�
��

�
!

���
��

��



��
�

�
�

�
�



�

��



��
�

�



�
�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

��



�
��



�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�,
��

�
�

�!
�

�$



�&
�


�
�$

��
�

�"
�

��



�
��

#�
�


�
�

��
"

�



"
��

��



�
��



+

+
�



��

��
�

)�
�

� 0
�

�$
���

�"
�


,
��

�
��

��





�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�"

��



�
�

�

,



�,

�
��



�

�
��

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
��



�"

��





�


�
��



�

�
��

�
�



�

��
��






�+
�

��
�

��
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
�

�

�

��
��



�

��



�
��

�
�

�
��

��



��



�
!

��
��

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�


$
��

�$
�

��
�

��
�

"
"



��

�
�


�
��

�
+

!
��

�




�
��



��

�
��

��





�

��



�
��



+

"
�

��
��

,
�

�
�

�








+
�

)�
�

� 0
�

��
�

,
�

��
�

�
�



��

�
��



��

��
�

��



�

�


�
$

�
�

��
�



�

�
+

�



��
�$

�
��

�
�"

��
�

�



��
�



�

�



"
��

�
�

�
�



��

�
�"

�
��



�

��



�
�


"
"



��

�



��
�

��



�
�


��
�

�



�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
��



+

�
�

��



��
"

�



"
��

��



�
��

�
��

��
�

��



�
��

��



��



��
+

"
�


,
�

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

,
�

��
�

�
�!

��
�

�
�

��
�+

"
�

�
��






��
�

�
��

�
#�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�"



,

�
��

�
#�

�



�
�

�

�

��



�
��



��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
)�

�
� �

�
�

�-



�



�
���

��
��



�




�

�
��

�
�

�

��

�
&

�
�




��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

+
�



�

�
�

+
�



��



��

�



�



�
���

�



�
�

�

�

��



�
��

�
��

��
�

#�
�

��

$

�

�

��
�

��



�+
�

�

��

�

��

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��



�
�

�

�

��
�

�,
��

�
��



�

�+
�

&
�

��
�

�
�!

�
�

��
�

�
�

�

��

��
�

�-



�



�
�� 

�
��



��

��
�

��
�



�

�

��

��



�
�

�
�"

�"
�



"

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
���

"



��



��
�

�)
�

� �
�

�
��



��



�

�
�

��





�


��
	



�

�
�


�
�4

�
,

�



�
�

�
.

�
�



�



��

8	
4

.
9�

�
�

��
=�

�

�



�

�

�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��



��

��
�



��

�+
"

�
�

��





��

�
�

�-



�



�
�� 

�
��



��

��
�

�
�

��
�



�

�

��

)�
�

�
��

=�
�


�



�
�


�
��

��

$

�
��



�

�
��

�
�

��



��
��

�
�

��



��
�

&
�

��





��



��



��

��
�

��
��



�

�
�


�
�

��



��
��

�

�



+

�
��



�

��



�"
��



�+



��

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�
�


��
��

�
��






�
��

�
�+

�+
�



�

�
�

+
�



��



��

�



�



�
���

�



�
�

�

�

��



�
�


��
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
!

�
�

�

�

�
�

�"
��



�

�

,

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
"

�
��



�

)�
�

� �
�2
�3

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��

� .
�

�"
�

��
�


��
��

�
�"

�

�

�
�

�
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�


�
$

��



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

#�
�

�"
�

��



�
�



��

�
�

��



�
�,

�
��






�
�

��
�

��





�$

�
�

��



�
�

��
�

&
�



�

$
��

�
�


,
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�



��
��



�

��
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�

��
&

�
�



��

�
��

��



�
�"

�
��



�

��
)�

�
�

�
�"

�
�"



�

�
�


��
��

��
��






�
�

��
�

��





�$

�
�

��



��
�

�



��
��

��
�

�
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
��

��
 �

��
�

�
��

�



��
�

�



�
��



��

�
��

!
���

�
��

�
�

�&
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
�"

��



��
��

�
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
��

��
)�

�
�

�
��



��


$
�


�
��

�,
�

�"
��



��

��
�

�
�

$
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�!

�
�


�
��

�
�

�+



�
��

�+
"



��

�



�D
�

� �
�

%
�


,
��

�
�+



��

��
��



��

�
!

��
��



+

�
�

��



�
��



��

�



�
�!

�
�

�
�
�

1+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
�

�
�

��
��

��
 �

�



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
�

�
�

1

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

"
"



��

��



��
�

�"
�"

�



"
��

�
��

+
�

�

��



�

�
"

�



�
�



��

�

��

�
�

��
�


$



�
�



+

�
�

�
�

;
�,

�
�"

�



"
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
��



�

�
�

�
��

�




�
�




��



�

�
�


�
�

�
�

	
�

�"
��



�



�

�"
�



"

��
��



�


!
��

�

��



�

��
�



�

�
��



+

�
��

� .



�
��

�
��

�

��

��
�

�$
��

�
��

�





�

�
��

�
��






��
�


�
�


�
�

�

�
��

�
���

�
��

�
�


��
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�$
�

��
�

��
��

��
��



��

�
"

��



��
��

��



��



�
��

��
�

��
�



��

#�
"

�
��



�

��
��



�

�
�

��
&

�
�



��

�
��

)�
�

�
�

�
�

�$
�

��
D�

� �
�

1+
"

�

,

�

�

��
�

�
�*

�
�

���
�

�

��

��
�

�%
��

,
�

��
�

4
�



��

�
��

�
�

�

��

�
�

�
+

"
��

��



+
�

�
�

�
�

.



��
=�



�

��
��

!
�

�
�

,
�


�
��

�
�

�



�
��

�
��

��
��

��



�
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
"



,

�
��

�
�

�
�

1+
"

�

,

�

�

��
�

�
��

�



�
�

��



�
�*

�
�

���
�

�

��

�



+
�

�
�

� �
�

�
�

�
�"

��



��
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�


�
�

�



�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

��



�
�$

���
��



�


�+
�


�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
,

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
���

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

 �
��

�
��






�
"

��



�
)�

� �
�4
��
�
5�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
��
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

� 	
�

,
�


�
��






&
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

�



��
�



�

�
�


�
�

"



���
�

��



�
��



,

�
�

�+
�



��

��



�
�

�
�

"
�

#�
��

�
�

"
�


@�
�

��
�

�"



"
�

��
��






��



�
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�
�

�



�
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

��
��



�

��
�

,
�


�
�

�





�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
�"

��



��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�!

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�



��

#�
$

�
��

�
,

�
��

�
��

!
���

�
�

�
��

�&
�

�
�



!

@�
�

��
,

�
�

��



��
�



�

�
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
�


,
�

��
��

�
�



�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

)�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

D�
�

� �
�

	
�

�"
��



�



�

�
�#

�

��

�
��

�



�
�,

�
�


�
��

!
��

�
"

�



"
��

��



��
�,

�
��



�

�
"

�



�
�



��

�
�

�
�

1

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
"

"
��

�

��



�

$
��



+

�
�

��



�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

3
�

&
�

�!
�

�
��

�
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
��

�
��

��



�
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�


�
&

�
�

Page 74



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�


!
@�

�
��

,
�

�
�$

���
�!

�
��

�
��,

�
��

�
�!

�
��

��
�

�
-



�



�

���
�



�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��

�
�


�
�

�
�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�

�"

�
�

�
��

�
��

�

��

�,
�



��






�
��



��

�
�

�
"

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

"
�



"

��
��

�,
�

��



�
�$



�&

��



#�
�



�

�!
�

�



�
��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



��

�
"

"



��
�


�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�



��
��

�
�

��
�$

���
�!

�
�


�
��

�

�

�
��



�+



��

��
�

��
���

�

��

�
�

�
�


��

$

�

�

��
�

�
"

��
��

��
!



�

��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�



��



�
�

�
�


��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�


��

� � � � � � � � � � � �

�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
��

�

�
��
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

,
�
��
��

�

�
��
�

� �
�

	
�

�"
��



�



�

�
�#

�

��

�
��

�



�
�

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
�"

�



"
��

��



��
�,

�
�

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



��

�
�

� �
�

1

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
"

"
��

�

��



�

$
�

�



+
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
�

� �
�

3
�

&
�

�!
�

�
��

�
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
�

�
�

��
��



�

��



�
�

�

�

��
�


�
&

�
�

Page 75



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
!
��
;

��
�

��
%

��
�

�
�

�

Page 76



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

!
��
�"
��
�

�
#
��
�
�
�

�
�6
��
�

��
� 1


��
�

�
��

��
��

�$
�

��
��

�$



�&
�


�
��



$

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��



�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�E
;

��
�

��
%

��
�

�
��



�

F
�,

�
 )

�5
�

��
�

��
�$

�
�+

�
�



��

��
��

�
�$

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
!

��
�



�

��
�

!



�
��






�
�

��
�

�
��



��

�
��

�
��

��



�
�

�

��

�
��



��

�
!

��
��



�

�*
�

�
���

�
��



+

�
�

��
�

�
��

+
�

�
��

"
�



"

��
 �

�

�

�
�

�
#�

�
�




�

�$
��

�
��

��
��






�
��

�



�
�

�



��
�


�
�

��
��

�



��
��

��



�
��

��
��

�
��

,
�

�$
�

��=
�

�
�

�
�

�



�
�"



"

�
��

��
"

�
!

���
��

"
�

�
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
���

��
�

�
)�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
�$

���
��

��



�!
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�!

��
��



�

�$
�

���
�








�

�
��

�
#�

$
��

�
��



�



,

�
��

���
�

��
�

�
��



��

�



�
!

��

�

��
���



�

��
�



+

+
�



��

��
�

��



��



@

�

��
��

��
�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
���

�
)�
�

2
�

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



,



�,
�

�
�$



�&

�

�

��
�


�
�

��
�$

��
�

�



��
�

��
�




��

�
�

��
�

��



�
�$

�
��!

�
�


�
#�

�
�

��
��

��



�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�


��
"



,

�
��

�
#�

�



�
��

�
��



�


�
�


�
��



+

�
�

�
�

�

�



�

��



+
�

�
��



�

�

�

��
�

!



�
��






�
�

��
�

���
��

�
�

#�
�



+

+
�



��

�
��



�

��
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�


��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

#�
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��

��



�
"



��

#�
�



�

�
"

��
�

�
�+

�



�
�

�
+

�



�)
�2

�
��

�

��



��






��
�

��
�

�
��

�
���

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�

��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
,

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�

�

��



+
�

�
#�

�



�$
�

�$
���

�+
�

�
�

�
��

�



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

��
�

�



�
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

+
��



�

�
�

��
�

��



�
�

�

�

��



,
�

�
�+

�



��
�

�
�

��
�




�

�

,

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�


��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
)�

�
� !
�!
�0
�
�
�
	
�
��

�
�
	

�

� .
�!

�
��



�

�
�

��



�
�$

�
���

��



�
��






�

�

��



�
�

�

�

�
+

�
�&

�
��

�
�

�

�

�
��

���



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�,
��

�
��

�

��

�
�

��
,

�

�

��
�;

��
�

��
%

��
�

�
��



�

F
�,

�
)�

5
�

��
�

�
�$

�
���

�
�

��





��

�

�


�
��

��





�

�
��



�

�
�


��
�



+

�
�

#�
�

��
�

��
"

��
�

�
�

��
�



�

��
��

��



�
�

�
�"

��



�!
��



�

�"
�



"

��
��



�

�
��

�
��

�



�
�


��
�

��
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

��



�
��

��
�



�

��
�








+

��
�



"

"



��
�



��

��
�

)�
1�

��
�

��
+

"



��
�



��

��
�

��
�


��
��



�

�



�
�

��
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



��

�
�

�



�
��

��





�

��

&

�
�"

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�



�
�

�
��



��

+
"

�

,

�
�

��



�
��

��
�



�

��
�








+

��
�


�
��



+

�
�

)�
�

�
��

��
�

*
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�

��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
"

��
�

�



��
��

,
�

��
�


�
"

�
#�

"
�

!
���

��
�

�



�
��

�
��



�

��



�
�,

��
�

�
��

�

"

�
��

��



�
��

$
��

�
�


�

�

��



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
��

��
�$

�
���

�








�
�

��
�

��



��
��

�
=$

��
�

��



��
��

��
,

�
�

��



�
�

�
�

�,
��

�
�

��
�

�
��



�

�
��



��

�
�"

�"
�



"

��
��

�
&

�
��

"
�



"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



��
��

�
�


�

�

#�
�



��

�"
��

�
�

��



�
�

�
+

"
�


�
+

�



�)
�

� 0
�

�&





$

�$
�

��
��

��



�

�

��



��
�

,
�

��



��



��
�

�

�

�
�

�
��

��
��



��

�
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��



�
��

�
��

�
��



�

��
��

�



�
��

�
�

�+



��
��

��
�

�
��

,
�

��
��



�!

��



�
��

!



�
��

�
�

�



�
�

)�
�

�
��

�$
���

�+
�

�



��





�



���

�
��



�

�
�


,
�

�
�+

�



��
�



�

��
,

�
���

!
��

��
�

�



�
��

�
�

��



�
�

��
�



��

��
�


�
��



$

�

��

�
��



��

�



��
�

��





�

��



�
�

!
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�
��

�



��
�

��,
�

��
�

�




�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�



�



�
��)

��
�

� /
�

��
��

��
�

�
�



�

��
��






��
�

��
,

��
�

�$
���

�!
�

�"
�

��
�


��
�


�
�

�
�

�
�

��



,
�

�
�+

�



��
$

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��



�

��
�

"





�

�
��



��

�
�

�;
��

�
��

%
��

�
�

��



�F
�,

�
�

�

�

��
�

�

��

)�
�

�
��

�$
���

��



�
��

�
�

�+
�

�
�

�
��

�
��



��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�




�

�$
��

�
�


��
�

��
+

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��



�

�
�


��



�
�

��
�

�



"
"

�

�

��
�



��

�
�

#�
�

�
�

�
�

��





��



�

�
�



,

��





+

�



�)
�1

��
��

��
�

�
��

�

��

��
+

"



��
�



��

�

�

��
�



�



��

�
��

�
�

��
$

�
���

��
�



+

�
�


��
��

��
��

�
��

,
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

"
�

�
��

�
��



�!

�
��



�

�
�


�
=�

�
�

#�



��
�

��
�

�
��

,
��

��
�

�
�



�

��
+

"
�


,
�

+
�



��

��
��

��
�

"
�

�
��

�
��



�!

�
�

�
�

��,
�

��
�

�!
�

��
�

�
��

"
"

�

"

��
�

��
�"

�
��

�

��

��
�

�
�



�



�

��#
�!

�
�"

�
��



�

��



��
�



��

�
��






�
��



�

�!
�

�
�

�
�"

�

�

��



�
�

��
��

�
�

�
��

��



�
�!

�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

��



�
$



�&

��



�
�

��
�

��
�


��
�

�"
��

�
�

+
�

�
�,

�
�

)�
�1



��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
+

�
��



�

�
�

#�
��

�
�+

�
�


��



��
��



��

��
�

�
-



�



�

���
$

���
�!

�
��



��






��
�


�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��,

�
��

�
�



�

�!
�


&
�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�

�
+

�



��



��
�

���
��

��
,

�



��
"

�
��

��
�

)�
� 1+

"
�


,
�


�
��

�
�

�*
�

�
���

�
��



�

��
��

��



�
��

,
�



�

�
�

�

��

�
�
�
�

�
��
!
��
;

��
�

��
%

��
�

�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�"
��
�

�
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
�6
��
�
�7
��
�
�
,
�
�*
�

Page 77



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�"
�

!
���

��
�

�
�+

��



�
��



�

�
��

��
�

���
��

�
�

#�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�!

��
��

�
�

#�
�

�



"
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�,
��

�
�

�
�

�



�
��

��
+

"
�


,
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

�,
�

�
�


��
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

�



��
)�

1�
�$

���
��

��



��
�

,
�

��
�"



�

��
�,

�
��

+
"

�
�

��





��

�
��



�



�

�

�

��
�



�

��



�
�"

�

"

�
��

�
�,

�
��

�
�

�
�



�

��
�

�"
��

�
�

�,
��

!
���

��
�


��



�
$

��



�
�

�

�

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�


��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
)�

1

��



+

�

�

�
�

�
�

��
#�

$
�

�$
���

��
�

�
�


�
��

��
�



�

��
�

�
��



�

�+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

�"
�

�
�

��
�

��
*

�
�

���
�

�

��



�

��



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
�$

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�+
�


��
�+

"
�


,
�


�
�"

�
��

�
"

��





�

��



�
��

��
��

�
��



�

��
�

��
��

�
�


,
�

�
�+

�



�)
�

� !
�$
�+
�
,
�&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�

��

� �
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�F



�

�
��

%
��



�-



��

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
"

�

,

��
�

�
��

�
�

�

,

�
��

���
,

��
�




#�



!

@�
�

��
,

�
�

��



�
�

�
"

�
��

�
��

"



���
��

�
��



��

��
�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��



��

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
"

��



��
�

�
6

)�
2

�
��

,
��

�




��



��
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�


��
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�!

�
�

�
�

�





��

�
�

��
�



�

$
�

��



��
��

�
��

�
��

��



�
��

�!
�



��

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�



��

"
��

�
�

�

�

�

�

��
�


�

��

�
�

�
�



�



��

�
�

��
�

�$
�

��
�

�$
���

��





��



�

�
��



�!

�
�

"
�


��
�

��
�

��
�

�;
��

�



�5
�

��
)�

0
�

�$
���

�+
�

�
�+

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�

��

"
��

,
�


�
�

��
��

�
,

�
�


"
�

�
��

�



�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�!
�



��

��
�

�
#�

+
�

&
�

��
��

��
��



��

�
�

�
�


��
�


��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��



�
��

��
�

�
��

,
�

��
��

�

&

��



�
�

�

�

�
�

��
�

�
��



��

+
"

�

�

+
�



��



"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



�
�

�

�

�
��

�
�

�,
��

�
�

��
�

�

�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�

�

!
��

�+



�
�

�
�



��

��
�



�

"



��
) �

� 2
�

��
�

�+
��

�
��



��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
�






��



�
�

�
��



��

+
"

�

,

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�



��

�
��



��

�
�#

�
�



�

��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

�"
�


�
��



��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�

"

��
+

�
+

��





�

��
�




�

�
�


��
�

�








+
��

��
�


$
��

)�
(

�
$

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

�
$

���
�


�
�

�
��



�!

�
��



�&

�
�

"
�


�
�$

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��



��
��

�
��

��
�

#�
"

��
�

�
�,

�

�

��
�

�
�!

�
�

��
�



�

��
�

�
��



�*

�
�

#�
$

�
���

��





��

�!
�

��



�
��



�

�
"

"
�


"
��

�
��

��
�

"
"

��
�


��
�






�
�*

�
�

���
�

��



+
�

�
�

�

��

��
�

�$
�



��

�+
�

�&
�

�)
��

� F





&

�

�

��



�$
�

��
�$

�
�$

�



��



�
��

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
�

�

��

�
�

��
"

��
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��



+

�
�

��



�
�!

�
���

�
�



,

��





+

�



�)
��

0
�

�$
���

�$
�

��



+
�

��



"
�

��
��



+

�
�



+

+
�



��

��
�

��



�
��



�

�,
��

�
�

��
�$

�



�$
�



��

�

�

$



�&
�$

��
�

��
�

��



��
�

,
�

�

"

��








,
�

��
,

�
�"



���

��
�

�





�"

��





�


�
��



�

�!
�

���
�


�
��



��

�
�

�F



�
�

��
%

��



�
4

�
,

��
$

��



�
�$

�
�$

���
��

�
�"

��



�
�

��
�



+

+
�



��

��
�

�
�


�"
�


�
�

�
�

�(
�

��
�

!



�
��






�
�%

��



�
��



��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�$

�
��

�
��

��
��






�
��

��



��
$

��
�

��
�

�
�F



�

�
��

%
��



)�

�
�

�
��

��
�

=$
��

�
�


�
�

�
��



��

+



��
��



+

�
�

�
$

���
�+

�
�



��

�
�

��
�$

���
�!

�
��



+

�
��

�
��

��
�



��

�
�

�
�

!



�
��

$
�

�
��

�

�

$
��



�

�
�


�
��

�



�
��

�!
�

�!
�

���
�

�

��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�!
�

��
$

�
�$

���
��



�

�
��

�

�

��
��



�

�
�

�
"

"
��

��



�
��

�
�

��



�"



���
��

�
��

�
�"

��
�

��
�

�
��

,
�

�
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��



+

+
�



��

��
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

!
�

��



�
�

�!
�

�$
�

�



��
��

�
�*

�
�

���
�

��
�

�
��



��



�

�
��

+
�

��
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
��,

�
��

)�
��

� !
�%
�'
	
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

� �
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�"



"

�
��

��





��

�
��

�

$

�

�

)�
�

�
�

��
�


��
��

��
��

�

�

��
�


��



��





��



��

�
&

�
��

��
"

�
��



�

�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

,
�

��
�


��
�



�

�
�

�!
�

���
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
��

�
��

�

��

�
�

�F



�
�

��
%

��



��
�



�!

�
�

+
�

�)
�2

�
��

�
+

"
�

�
�

��
�$

���
�!

�
��



��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
"

"
��

�!
�

�+
�

&
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
+



��

��
�








+

��
�

���
�,

��
!

��
#�

�

�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

�
+

�



�
��



��



�

$
��



+

�
�

�!
�

��



�
!

��

�

�+



��
�

"
�



"

��
��



�!

�
�

�




��
�

�
�


"
�



�+

�
�&

�
��

�



�
�

��
,

��
$

�

�

��
�

�
��

�
"

"
��

�

��

��



�
��

�
"

�
!

��
�


��
�

�
��,

�
��



�

�

�

$
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



�)
��

� �
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��






�
�

�
��

�



�
��



�+

�
�

��
��

�
�

F



�
�

��
%

��



��



�
�

�

�

��
�

��
�

�)
�	



$

�
,

�
�#

�

�

��
+



�

��
��

�
�



��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�F
�



�

�.
,

�
���

!
���

��
�

.
�

�
�

�
�

+
�



��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

��





��

�
���

��
�

�
��

�



��
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�$
���

�!
�

��
�

"
�

!
��

�

��

!
�

�

�

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
�

�
�!

�
��

�
�

6
)�

�
�

��
��

�
�+

�
�


��
��

�
�

��



��
�

�



+
!

�

�

��





�


��
��

�
��

�
��

�



��
�



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�





�

��
�




�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�



�+

�



�
�


��
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��





�

�



��
�

��
�

��



�@
�

�
��

�
��

�
$

��
��

�
�

�



��
��

�
��

��
�

)�
�

� �



�"
�


,
��

�
��

�
,

�
�


"
�

��
�$

��
�

�+



��
��

�



��
�

�

��

�
��

�
�

#�
��

�
�F



�

�
��

%
��



�"

�

"



�

�
�

��
�

�
��


�
�

��



�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

+



�



��



��
��



�

��



��
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
$

�
�

�"
��

,
�


�
�

��
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
��



��

�

�

�
�

��
�

��



�
�

!
�

�
�


�
�

�
)�

0
�

��
�

�



�



��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��



��

!
�


$



��
�

��
��

�



�
��

�
�+



��

��
�

"
�



�

�,
�

��



�
�

��
&

�
�

��





�

�
��

��
�



�




��

��
�



��

�
��

��
��

�
�

#�
�



�

$
�

�$
���

�"
��



��

��
�

�
��



,

�
�

�+
�



��

$
�

��
�

��
�

��
�+

�
�

�

Page 78



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
��

�



�

�

&
�


�
��

�
��

��



�
��

��
�

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
��



�

�
�

"
�


��
��

�
�

�!
�



�

��
��

�

��

��
��

�
�

�

�

��
�



�

��



�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
�-



�



�

���
�



�

�

��

�
��

"
�

!
���

�
!



�

��
�

�

$



��



��

�
�"

��
�,

�
�+



��

��
��

�
�!

���
��

��



�
�

�
��,

�
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�


$
��

)�
�

� 1

��

�
�

�+
�

�
��

+
��

�
�+

#�
��

�
�-



�



�

���
$

���
��

�
,

��
$

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�F



�

�
��

%
��



��



�

�$



�&
�$

��
�

�



��
�

��
�


�
�

��
�

�
��



��

��
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�-
��

�
�

4
�

�
�




��



��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��



$

�+
�

�
�

�

�

$
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

��



�
��



��

�
�



��

��
�$

�
�

��
�

��
�

�+



�
��

�
�

�
��

�

�

!
��

��



�
�

��





�

�$



�
��

�!
�

��



�
!

�
���

�

�

$
��



�

�
�


�
�$

��
�

�

��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��



�
�

4



��
�

��
�

+
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�
��

�
)�

�
� �

�
�

�;



,
�

�

+

�



��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�

�



�

��
� �

�

�

�



��
,

�
�

��



��



�



�
��

�
�

��



�
�

��
�

�
��



��

��
�

�
��



�

��
�

���
��

��
��



�

�
�


�
��

�

$

��
)�

1�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
�

��
�



��

�
��



��

�
�

�-



�



�
�� 

�
��



��

��
�

��
�


�
"

��



��
��

�
�

�"
�


@�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
,

�
��

��
��



��

��
�



��

�+
"

�
�

��





��



�

��
�

�
�


�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
��,

�
��

��



�
�






�

�

��
�

!
���

��
��



�!

��



�
��

+
"

��
��



+

�
�

�!
�

�
&

�
�


�

��

�
�

)�
2

�
��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

�!
�

�



��



��
�


�
�

��



�
�

��
�

��
��



�



+

�
��



�

�$
�

��



��



�
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��



�
�


�
��



�"

�

+



��

��



�
�

�

�

��



�
��

�








+
��

�
��

�
�



�

��
��






��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�




�

��
!

�



�
��

��



��
�+

"
�


,
�


�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�"

��
��

�

+

�
;



,

�
�


+
�



�)

��
� !
�-
�#
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�
	
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� 2
,

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�


��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
�$

�
�$

���
��



�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�



�

�
�


��
�



+

�
�

��
�

��,
�

��
�

�!
�

�



��
�

��
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�"
�


�
��

�
��



��

�
�

��
,

�
�

+
��

�
�

��



�
�!

�
��



�

�
�

��



�
�

�

�

�+
�

�&
�

��
��



�

�
��

�
��



�

$
��



+

�
�

��
��

��





��

�!
�

��



�
��



��

�
�

�
�

��
�

 �
��

�
�



�

�

�

��



�
�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�
)�

�
� 1


�

�

��
�


��
��

�
�"

��





�


�
��

�
��



��

��
�$

�
�

�





��



�

�
��



��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

"
�

�
��

��





�

��



�
�

�
��



�

�
��

�
��



��



�

$
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



�)
��

�
�


�
�

�
�



�

��
�

�
�

��



�"



���
��

�
��



��

�
"

�
�

�
��

��



�
�

��
�

#�
���

�
��

+
�

��



+
�

�
��



�

�$
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�$
�

�
$

���
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��



�


��



�
$

��



+
�

�
��



�

�
�



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

+



��
��



+

�
�

��
��

�+
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�



�
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��



+

+
�



��

�
)�

�
� .

�
��

��
�



�



$



�

��
$

�
��

�
,

�
��

�
�

�

"

"



��
�



��

�
��



�

�

��

�
�



�

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�




�


�
��



$



��

�



�
��



��

�
�

��
,

�
��



�

�



�
�

�
��

��



�
�

��
�

�
$

�
��

�
�!

�
��

�
��

+
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�+
�

)�
2

,
�

��
��

+
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

�

�

�"



"
�

��
��






�$
���

��
��

�
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

+
�



�

��



��
�

�
�

"
��

��





�

��



�
�



+

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��



�
��

�

��

�
�

��



�



�
���

$
���

�!
�

��
��



��

��
�



�)

�.
�

�"
�

��
�


��
��

�
�+

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��



��

��





��



��

�

$

�

�

�
�

�
+

�



�
��



��

�
�

�
"

��
�

��



+
�

�
�$

�
�$

���
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

,
�

��
�

��



�

�

��
��



�

��



�"
�


,
��

�
��



+

�
�

�$
��

�
�

�



�
�



�

�
�

��
"

�
�

�
��

��



�
�

��
�

#�
�



�

�"
�


,
��

�
�

+



��
��



+

�
�

�$
�

��
�

��
�



�!

�
��

�
�

���
��

�
�

"
��

�
�

�

��

�
�

��
�

��
��

)�
�

� �



��
�

�
��

�+



��
��






��



��



,
�

��
��

�
�"

�
�

�
�


��
�

�
��,

�
��

��



�
��

�
�

�*
�

�
���

�
��



�

��
�

"
�

�

��



�

$
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

$
�

��
�

,
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�




�

=�
�

�+
��

�
�

�



�
��

��





�,

�
�

��
��

��



�
"

�
��



�

��
�

�"
�$

��
�

�C
�

�
"

+



�
��

;
��

�
��

%
��

�
�

�
)�

�
2

,
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
#�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
	



�

�
�


�
�-



+

"
�



�

�$
���

��
�

,
�

�

"

�
�

"
"

�

�

�+
�

��
��

��
#�

�
�

�

�

$
��



+

�
�

�




��
!



�

��
6

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�


��
!

�

$



��

�
��

��
��

�
�

�




�-



�



�
���



$



�

�
��

�



�
)�

�
�

�

�

�
�

��
�

��
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

��
�

�
�

-



�



�
���

�
�




�

�$
��

�
�


�
��

"
�

��



�
��

�$
���

�!
�

��
!

��
�

�

�"

�

,

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
!

��
�+

��
�


��
��

"
�

��



�
�

��



�
��

#�
�


�
��

�
�


�
��



��

��
+

�



��



��
�

��



��
�

!
��

�
�



+

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�

��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��



�*

�
�

���
�

��



�
�

�
��

��



,
��






+
�



��

���
��

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
)�

�
�

��
�

"
�

��



�
��

�
�"

��
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



�

!
��

�
��

��





�

=�
�

�+
�

�



��
��






��



��
�

�
��

�
�

�



�
��

��





�


��
�



+

�
�


��



�
��



�

��
�

!



�
��






�
�

��



�
�"

�

,

��
�

�
��



�

�
��

�
+

"
�


�
+

�



��



"
"



��

�



��
��

�
#�

�
"

"
��



��

�
�

�
�

�"
�

#�
�



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�

��

�

�

�
��

!
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�
��



�

��



�
��

��
�



��

�"
��

�
�

�
)�

�
� 0

�
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



��
�

�



��
��

�

"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



�
�

�
�



�

�
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
�


��
�



+

�
�

��



�



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
��



�

��
��

�
��

��
�+

��
��



��

�
�

�
��

"
�

�

��

�



+
�

�
#�

��



�
��

�
��



�

�,
�

��
�

�
#�

�

�

�
��

��
�

��
�



�

��
�

��
�


��
��

&
���

�
�

�$



�&
�


��
�

��



��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��



�

��



��



�
!

��
�"

�



"
��

��



�+



,
�

�
��

�

�

�
�

��
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

$
��

�



�
��

�
�

,
�


�
�

�

��

�
�

,
�

��
�

�
��



+

+
�



��

��
�

�$
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

,
�

�
�

�
��

!
���

�
�

�
��

��
�

)�
�

�

Page 79



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

.
��

�



�
�

�
��

��
��



��

��
�



��

�
+



�



��



��

��
�

�

�

$
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

��,
�

��
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

�$
���

�!
�

��



��
+

�
�&

�
��

�
�

��
#�

��



��



�
��

��

$

�
�"

�



"
��

��



�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
!

��
��



+

�
�

�$
��

�



�
��

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�


��
�

�+



��
�

�
�

�
)�

%
�

��
�


��



�
��

�
+

!
��

�




��



�
�


�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

"
"

��
�


��
�



+

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�"
�


,
��

�




�

��

*
�

�
���

�
�


�
$

�
�



+

�
�

��



��
+

�
�&

�
��

�



�
��



��

�+
�

�
��

��
��

�



�)
�

2
,

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�


��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
�$

�
�$

���
��

�
&

�
��

�



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�!
�

�
�

�
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



�

�

$
�

"
�


,
��

�




��



��
�

��
��

�
�

�

�#

��



�
�$



�&

�$
��

�
�


�
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

��,
�

��
�"

�
��



�

��
��



��

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�

"



��



��
�

��
�


�"
�


,
��

�
�+



��

�

��

��
�

�
�

��
�



�

��
�

�
�


��
��

�
�

�$
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

,
�

��
�


��
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�



��
�


��
��

�
�

�$
��

�
�


,
�

��
�

�
��

�
��



�

�
�

�"
��

�
�

�
)�

.



��
�

��
�

�"
��



��

��
��



��

�
�

�$
���

�!
�

��



��
�

"
�


��
�



�

$
��

�
��,

�
��

�+



�
�

��
��



�

��
�

�

�

�4
�



��

5
�

�

��

�
G



�

�5
�

�
#�

�



�
��

�
�


�
��



�



�

���



$



�
�

��
�



�

��



�
�

��

$

��
�

,
�

�

"

�
��

��



�!
�

���
�




$

��



�
�"

�
�

��
�

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

�
�"

��
��

��
�)

�0
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�

�
"

"
�

��
��

��



�
��

!
���

��
�


��
�


�
�

��
"

�



"
��

��



��
�

&
�

�
�

"
��

�
�

�

+

�!
�

���
�


"
"



��

�



��
��

�
��

�
�"

�
��

�

��

�



+
+

�



��
�

��
�

�
��






�
��

�
�

��





)�

� !
�/
�8
�
��
	
�
�	
�
�(
�
�
�
�	
�
�)
�
�*
�

�
�

� �
�

�
��

 �
�!

�
�



��

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��



��

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�

�

��
�

��
��

�
��

�



��
�

��
�

�"
�

��
�


��



�
��

"
��



�

��



�!





�

��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
��

�








+
�

#�
�



�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�



��

�
�

�



�
�

�

�

�+
�

�&
�

��
�

�
�

�!
�



�

��
��

�
�

��
�


+
��

�
��

�
,

�!
��



�

�
��



�

��
�


$
��

)�
3



��

��
�

�
�



��

�
�

�



$
�

,
�

�#
��

�
�

�+
�

�&
�

��
�


��
�

"
�

��
+

�



��
��

�
�

�
�






��
�

�
��

�
��



�

��
��

��
��



��&

�
��

��
�

�
��

$
�

�$
���

��
�

�
�

�
��






��



�
�

��





�


��
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�


��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�



��
�

�




��
�

�
��

�
+

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�!

�
�


��
)�

�
�

��
�

"
�

�
�

�
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



�#
��

�,
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�



"
"



��

�



��
�

��



��
�

,
��

��
��

�
�

��
�

"
�

��



�
��

�:
�

�

��

�



+
�

�
�$

�
�$

�



��
�


��
�

�
��

�
,

�
�


"
�

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�



��

�
)�

�
� 0

�
��

�
"

��
�

��



��
��

�
��

��
�

��
�



��

�
��



�!

�
��

�,
�!

��



��
�



�

�$
�

��



+
�


�
�"

��
�

�
��



��

"
�



"

��
��



��

�
�

��
���

�
�

�
��

�

�



�

)�
�

�
�

��
�


��
��



��



+

�

�

��
�

�
��

�$
�

�
�


��



�
��



��



�



�

��
�

�
��



+

�
��

+
�

���
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

�

��

��
+

���
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
�"

�
��

�

��

�
��

�



�
�

�

��



�

$
��

��
�

��
�



��

�
��



+

�
�

��



�
"

�

,

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�



,

��





+

�



��
�


��
+

��
�

�
�

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
��



��

�
��

,
�

��



�
��

�

$

)�
��

� 1

��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�$
�

��
�

"
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
,

�
�


"
�

��
�$

���
�

$
�



��

�

�"

�

,

��
�

�+



��
�"

�
�"



�

�
�!

�
���

�
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



��



�

��
�


�



�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�



��

�
��



��

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
�



��

�



+
+

�



��
�

�
��,

�

�

��



��
�

�
��

��
��

)�
�



��

�
�"

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�


�
$

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�$

�
�$

���
�$



�&

�$
��

�
��

�
�

�
�



�,

�
��

��
��

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

+
�



�

�
�


��



�
$

�"
�

�"



�
�

=!
�

���
��

��
�

�



��
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



�

��
�

�

�

�
�

�

�

��
"

��





�


�
�

"



���
�

�
��



�

�+
�

�
��

��
"

��



�
#�

$
�

�$
���

��
�

�



��
��

�
��

�
�!

�
�

��
�


�
�

��





�

��



��



�
$

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






)�
2

�
��

�

��



��






��
�

��



��
�

"
"



��

�

�

$
�"

�
�"



�

�
�

!
�

���
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



��

�
��

�
�



��

��
�

�"
�

��
�


��



�
��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



��

��
�

��
�+

��
�

�
��



�

�
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

)�
0

�
�$

���
�

��
�

��
�


��
��



�



�

��
�

�
�


�
$

��
��

�
�



��

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��



�
�

��



�!
�

��
��

�
�!

��
��



��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��
�



�+

�
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��



��

�
��

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
��

�



�
��

��
�

+
�



�

�
"

�
��

�
�


�
��

�
�



�

�
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
��

)�
�

� �
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

+
!

��
�




�

��



��
�


$
��

��
�

�
�








+

�
��



�

��
�

,
�

�

"

��
��

��
�

��
��

&
���

�
�

�
$



�&

�

��

�
)�

.
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

 �
��

�








+
�

��
+

"
�


,
�

�
�

��
�$

���
�!

�
��

+
"



��

�



��
�


�"
�


,
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

+
��

�



��
�



+

�
�

��



��
��

��
�

��
�



�

��
�

��
�


��
�

�
��

��
�

 �
�

$



�&
�


��
�

)�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��






�
��

�
"

"
��

��



�
�

�
�



��

�
�


��
�



�

�
�


�
)�

	



$
�

,
�

��
�


�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�"
�


�
"

�
��

��
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
�$



�&

�

��

�
�$

���
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

+
�



�

��



��
�

��
�

�*
�

�
���

�
��



+

�
�

��



�
��

�
��

��
�

)�
�

�
�

��
�


��
�$

�
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



�
��

�



��
��

�

"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



��
�

,
�

�

"

�+



��
�

�



+
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

"
"

�
��

�



�
�


��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
�

+
�

�&
�

��
"

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
 �

��
�








+

�
�

�



�
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�+
"

�

,

�
�

)�
0

�
�$

���
��

��



�
�






��



�
�

��



��
�

"
"



��

�"
�



"

��
�




��



$

��



�
�

+
��

�
��

��



�



+
�

�
��



�

��



��
�

��
�

�"
��



��

��
��



��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

�$
���

�!
�

��



�$



�&
�$

��
�

�"
�

��



�
��

��



�
�


�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

"
"

��
��



�

��
�



�

�
�


��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



+
�

�
��



��

"
�



"

��
��

�,
�


�
��



��

�
�

�
�

��
�

)�
� !
�1
�9



�
��
�
�
��
�(
�
�
�
�	
�
�

� %
��

,
�


�
�

��
��

��
�

"
��

��
�

�
��



��



�

�
�

�"
��

�
�

�
�"

�
��

�



+
�

=

$



�

��
�

�"
�!

�
�






�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�


��
+

�



�
��



�

�"
�


+
"

��
�

�

��

�
��

��



�!



��



$
�

!
�

�





�

��
�

�
��

�+
�

�



�
)�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
��

�
�

�!
��

�
�

�
��

!
�

��
��

��
�


��



+
�

�

$



�

��
�

�"
��

�
�




$

��
�

�
��

�
,

�
��



��

�
�

"



�
��

��
�

*
�

��
�

�
��



��

�
�

�
��

��
�+



��

�
�

�
�

#�
�



�

��
��

�
��

��
+

�
�!

�
�

�
��

��



�
��



+

�
�


$



�
��

�
$

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
*

�
��

�
��



��

�
�

��
��



+

�
��

��
�!

�
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�+



�

�)
�0

�
��



��



�

��



��
�

�"
�

"
�



"

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
��

"
"

�

"

��
�

��
�

+



��
�

�
�

�
��

�

�



�

�
��



�

�

�

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



��
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
!

�
�

��
�

��
��

�

��

�
��

��



�
�

+
�



�)

��
�

Page 80



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

1

��

�
�

�

�

�
��

��
��

��
�$

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

,
�

��



��
�

�
!

�
��

�
��

,
�

���
!

��
��

�

+

��
�

�
�;



,

�
�


+
�



��



��

��



+
��

�
,

�
�


"
�

��
��

�
��



��&

�
��

��



�!
�

�
�

�
��

��
��



��

�

�+

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
���



�

�
�

��



��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



+
�

�
)�

	



$
�

,
�

��
$

�
��

�
�


&
��

��
��

�
�+

"



��
�



��

�

��

�
�

��



��
��

�,
�

��



��



�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
"

�

,

��
�




�


��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�



�

�$
�

��
�

,
�

��
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�

�
�




��

��



��
�

�"
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
)�

�
� 1+

"
�


,
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��



��



�

�
�


�
�$

���
��

�
*

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
��



��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
�

�
��



��

��
��

��



��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�


��
�$

�
��



��



�

��



��
�

&
�

��
�



�

��
�

!



�
��






�
��



�

�
�

�
�

�
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

��,
�

��
�


��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

)�
�

� �
�

�
�-



�



�

�� 
�

�.
��



��

�
!

��
�	



�

�
�


�
�%



���

�
�

��
*

�
��

�
�

��
�

,
�

�

"

�
��

��



��





��

�!
�

��
��



��

�
�

�
"

�

,

��
�




�


��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

)�
�

�
�

��
�

,
�

��



��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

��





��

�!
�

��





��

�
�



�

�



��
�

��
�

��
�

�

�

�
�

��
�

�
��






��
�

6
�


��
��

�
�

"



���
�

��



�
��

�
��

�
��

�+
�


�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�

�
!

@�
�

��
�


��
�


�



�
��

��
,

��
!

���
��

)�
0

�
�$

���
�

�





��



�

�
��



�$



�&

�$
��

�
��

�
,

�
�


"
�

��
��



��

�
,

��
��

�
�



�

��
��



�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�



�

�



��
�

��
��

�
�

��





��

�
6

�
�






��
�!

�
��






�
��



$

�
��

�
��

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

�
�



�

�

��

�
��

�



+
+

�



��
�

�!
�



�

��
��

��



��



�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
,

�
�


"
�

��
�






��
�!

�
��






�
��

��
�




��

�
��

�
��



�

��
�


�



�
��

��
!

�
��

��
��

��



��



�
�

�

�

�
�

�
��,

�
��

)�
� 1


��
�

�
�"

�
�

�#
��

�
�

��





��

�
6

��





��

�!
�

��





�

��
�

,
�

�
!

�
�



��

�
�

�
�"

��
�



+

�

�



��

�
��



��

�
��,

�
��

�
��



��

�
!

��
��



+

�
�

��
�

�"
�

��
�


��



�
$

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



�)
�1



��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��



$
�

,
�

�#
�$

�
�

$
���

��
�

&
�

��
��

��
�

�!
��

��



�
��



�

��
�

��
�

�
��

,
�

�
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



�"
�


,
��

�

�

�

�

$
��

��



��
�

!
��

�
�



+

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

�$
�

��
�

�$
���

��



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

"





��


�
�


��
�



+

�
��

�
�

��





��

�
6

��
�

,
�

�

"

�
��

�





��

�!
�

��





�

�$
�

�
��

�"
�

�+
��

��
�

��



�
�

��



�
��






�
��

"
��






�

�

��
�

�
�

��
��






�
�

� 1

��

��
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

��
��

��
�$

�
�

��
��

�



�
��



�

�
"

�

"

�
��

�
�"

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�$

�
�$

���
��

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�

"



��



��
�

��
�


��
�

�
�"






��
�

��
�

�
�

�"
��

��



�
�$



�&

�
$

��
�

�

�

��
4

�
�

��
��

��
�

�%
�


,
��

�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



�
"

�
��

�
�

�
�

��



�
��

+
"

�

,

�
��



+

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

,
�

���
!

��
��



��

�
�

��
�




��

�
�

�

"

�



��



�
�

�

�

�

+
�

�&
�

�#
�$

�
��

�
��

�



��
�

�



�!
�

��
�

�
�

��



�"
�


,
��

�
�

�
��

�
"

"
��

�

��

�





�

�*
�

�
���

�
�.

��



��
�

!
��

�4
�



��

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






)�
�

� 1

�"

�
��

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

�$
�

�
��

�

�

$
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
$

���
��

�
"

"
�



��



�

�$
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
,

�
��



��

�



�
��

��
�

�

�

&
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�*

�
��

�
��

��
�

�

�

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

�
$

���
�!

�
��



�"

�

,

��
�

��



��
"

"
�


"
��

�
��

�!
�

��



�
�

�

��

�



+
�

�
��



��

.
��



��

�
!

��
�4

�



��
�



�

��



��
+

�
�&

�
��

��



��
�



�

��
�

��
)�

0
�

��
�

�



�



��
�

��
�

�
��

"
�



"

��
�

+
�

�
��

��
���



�

�
�

��
�

"
"



��

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�



+

�



$



�
��

�
�"

��



��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
#�

��
�

��
�


��
�

$
�

�$
���

��
�

"
�


��
��

�
�

�"



��



��
�

��
�


��
�

,
�

�

"

��



�
�

*
�

��
�

��
��

&
�

�+



�
�

��



��
�



+

�
�


$



�
��

�
�"

�
$

�
��

�
��



�

!
��

�
��

�
�

��
"

"
���

�



��
�


�"
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

$
��

�
��

��
�

"



�
��

��
�

,
�

��
�

�

�

�
��

�

��

�
7

)�
� 0

�
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



��
�

"
"



��

��
�

�
��

�
��,

�
��

�

��

.
��



��

�
!

��
�4

�



��
�



+

�
�

�




��
��

�
�

��
�

�

�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

��



�
�$

�
�$

���
�$



�&

�$
��

�
�4

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
%

�

,

��
�

��
��



��

�
��,

�
��

��
�

�+
�

�
�+

�
+

�

�

+
!

�
��



��

�
��



��

�
!

��
��



+

�
�

��
�

�

�

�
�

��
�

�
�.

��



��
�

!
��

�
	



+

�
�

�%
�


�
��

+
+

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

��
)�

1

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�$
�

��



��



�
��



�$



�&

��
�


�
�

��
�$

��
�

�
4

�
�

��
��

��
�

�%
�


,
��

�
��

��



�
��

�
�

�;



,
�

�

+

�



��
�


��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��



��
�

&
�

�
�


�$
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��



��

�
�

�
��

�




�
��

�
��



��

�
!

��
��



+

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��



�
�


�
��

�
�

+
�

�
�

��
,

�
���

!
��

)�
�

� !
�2
�+
�
,
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�(
�
�
�
�	
�
�

� 0
�

�!
�

���
,

�
��



,

�
�

�+
�



��

�

��

�
��,

�
��

�



+
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
��

�
��

�



�
��

�"
�


+



��
�+

��
�

�
�

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
��



�

�+



,
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�


�
�

��
�


�

Page 81



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
6

�

�

��
�

�"



�

��

$
�

�
��

��
,

�
��






�
��

�,
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
�

$
���

�!
�

��
!

��
��



��

�,
�

��



��
��



+

�
�$

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

!
��

��



��
��

�
+

��
��

�
��

��
��



��

�
��

�
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
���

�
)�

�



+
�

��
+

�
�

��
�

��
�$

���
��

�+
"

��
�!

�
��

!



�
��

"
�


,
��

�

�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

"
�

�

��

!
�

���
�


�
�

��



�
�

�



+
�

��
+

�
�

��
�

��
�$

���
��

�
*

�
��

�
��

�
��



��



�

!
��

�
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
"

"



��
�

�
�

�,
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
)�

�� 1

��

�
�

�

�

�
��

��
$

��
�

�
��

�$
�

�$
���

��





�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��,

�
��

�

��

�
��

�
"

"



��
�

�
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





�

�
�

�
�

+
�

��



��
"

�



"
��

��
�

��
�

��



�
�"






��
+

�



��
��

�
�

�
��

�
#�

�



�
��

�
��

��





��

�

�

�
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





�

$
�

�
��

�$



+
�



��



�

��
�

���
��



��

�



��
�,

�
��

��
��

�
�

�



�
�

�
��

�
��

��
+

�
��

�



�
�

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�

��

�



+
�

�
��

�
��

!
�

�
�

)�
0

�
�$

���
��

��



�$



�&
�

$
��

�
�


�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



��
�

��
�!

��
�

��
�

"
"



��

�
�

�
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



��

�



�



�
�"

�



"
��

)�
�

� !
�4
�)
�
*
�	
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
 
��

�
	
�
��

��
��
��
�

�
�
*
�

� .
��

�
�

��
�



��

��
��

�
�


��
�

�
��,

�
��

�

��



�

$
��



+

�
�

#�
��

�
��

��
�

<�
��

�
��

��



�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�

�

&
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�


�
�!

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�



��

7
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�)
��

�
��

�
+

�
�



�

�$
�

�

�

�
�

��



��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
�

�
�

��
��



�

��



+
�

�
��

��
��






��
�!

�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�
�


�+
�

�
��



�

��
�



+

+
�



��

��
�

 �
�



�

�
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

)�
�

.
�"

��



��
��

��



��
�

�
�$

���
�!

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�



�
+

!
�

��



��
�



+

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

�$
�

��
�

��
�

,
�

�
!

�
�



��

+
"

��
��



��

+



��
��

�
�



�6

�+





��

�
)�

0
�

�
$

���
��

�
��

�
��

�
+

"
��

�"
�


"
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
$

���
��

�
�"

��



�
�

�
��,

�
��



�

��
"

��



��
��

�
�

#�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
�

"
"

��
�


��
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



+
�

�
��



�

�
�






��
�!

�
��



�

��



��
�

�
��

�
��,

�
��

�

��

��
�

�



�
��

��





�

"
��



�

��



��
�

��
�

�

�"

�
��

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

)�
� 0

�
�$

���
��

��



��





��



�

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

+
!

�
��



��

�
+

"
��

��



+
�

�
�$

�
��

�
��

��
�


$



�
�

�!
�

��
�

�
�

-



�



�
���

�



�
�


��
�

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�"

�

,

��
�

��
�



"

�
��

��



�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��



�

�$



�&
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�&

�
�

"
��

�
�

��
�+

�
��



��

$
�

��
�

��
��



�

��
��

�



+
�

��
�

�,
�

�
�



��

!
�

�$
�

�



��
�

��
�


�
�

��



��
�

+
�


�+
�

+
)�

�
� �

)�
)�

��-



�



�
���

�



�
�


��
�

��
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�
"

�

,

��
�

��
��

� 0
�

�$
���

��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��



��
��

�



��
�+

"
�


,
�

+
�



��

�+
�

�
�

��



��
�

�
�



�

�
��

��



�
�

��
�

�
�


��
�

�
��



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�


��
�

��
�+

�
�


��
�


�
�

�
��

�

�

�
�

��
��






�
��

�
�+

#�
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�
��

�
��

�
�

)�
��

�
�

��



��



�
�

�
��






�

��

�
�

��
=�

�

�



�

�

�

�	
4

.
��



��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��



��
��

�
�

��



�
�

��
�

�+



,
�

��



$
�

��
�

��





�

�
��

��
�+

�!
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

"
��






�

�

�$
���

��
��


$
��

�
�

�-



�



�
���

�

�+

�
&

�
�

+



��
��



�

��
�

��
�

�
��

,
�

��



,
�

�
�+

�



��
�

�



��
�

�
�



,

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
)�

��
� �

�
�

��



,
�

�
�+

�



��
�

�
�

��
�




�

��
�

��



�
��

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��



��



�

��
�




�

��
�

�+
�!

�
�

�

�

�
�

�"
��



�

�$
���

�!
�

�
�


�

�+

�
�

�!
�

��
�

�
��



��


$
�


�
�!

�
�

�

�

�
�

�
"

��



�
�"

��
�

D�
�
�

�
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

�

�

!
��

��



+
�

�
��



�

�
�

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
�

�
�

+
�

&
�


�
��

�
�

�!
�

�
��

�
�

�
�


��
�



�



�

���
�



+

�
�

�
�
�

+
�


�+
��

�

�

��
�






�

�

��



�
��

��
�

� �
�

�
�"

��



��
��

�
�

��



��



�
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�


�
&

�

,

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

��
,

�
��

�
�

��
"

��



��



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
+

�
�


��



�



�
�

�!
�

�
&

�

�

��



�
��

�
�

��
,

�

�

�

�
��

��
��



�

��
�

�$
�

�
��

�"



�
�

�!
��

��



��
��


$
��

��
�

��
��

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�

��

�
�

��
�

��
��

)�
F






�
�

��
��

�+
#�



�

��
"

��



��
��

�
�

�$
���

�!
�

��



�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�-



�



�

�� 
�

�
�

�
"

�
�

��
�

��



��
�

"
�

�
��

�
!

��



,
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�

��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

!
�

�
�


�
�

�
�"

��



��



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

��
�



��

�
��



�

��



��
�

!
��

��
�

��
,

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

�!
��

�
+

�



��



��
�



+

+
�



�

��
�

��
�

�
��



�

�
�



,

��





+

�



��
��

�+
"

�

,

�
+

�



��
)�

��
� F

�
��

�
��

��
+

���
��



�

��
��

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��
�

��



�
�

�



��
��

�
"

"
��

��



�
��

�
��

��



�
�

��
�

�
��



��

��
�$

�
�

�
�








��

+
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

+
�



�

)�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

,
�

��
��

��



�
�

�



�
��

�



�



��
��



��



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�
�


��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�



��

�
��

�,
�


�
��



�"

�

"

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

�



��
�

�
�

�

�

�
�

) �
�

�
��

�+
�

&
�

�
��

��
+



��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��



��
"

�



"
��

��



��



�
�

�

�

�

�

�
�

��



�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
!

��
��



+

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�$

���
�

�

�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�!
�

��
��

�

�



�

��
��

!
�

��
�



��



��

��
�

�
�



�

�
�=



�

�
�

"
��

��
)�

�
� 0

�
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



��



�
��



�

��
��

�
,

��
$

��
�

�
�

��
,

�
��

�

��



�

�
�

"
�

��





�


��
�



�



�

���
�



+

�
�

��
�

�
"

�
��

�

��



�

��
.

��

�

�
��






�
�%



���

�
��



�

��
�

�"
��



�

��
�


�
�

��
�"

�



"
��

�$
�



�$

��
�

��



�+



,
�

��



��
�

�
+

�
���

��
�



+

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
��



�$



�&

�$
��

�
�


��
�

��
��



�

�

��

�
�$

��
�

��
�


�
&

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

��



�"
�


+



��
�

+
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�



�

�
�

��



�
��



�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�



"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



��
"

�



"
��

��



��
�

�



�,
�

��
�

�
��

�



$



��



�
�

�

�

�

�

�
�

)�
� �

�
�

�.
��


�
�

��





�

�%



���
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
�

"





�

��



�
��

�
�"

��
�

��
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
�

��



��
�

+
�



�

��



��
"

�

"

�
��

�
��

�
�

"
��

��





�

�!
�

��



��
�


�
�

�
�

!
�

��



��
�

���
��

�
�

"
��

�
�"

�

"

�
��

��
�

�

"

�



��



��
�




�

�
�)

��
�

��
�$

���
��



�

!
��

��
�!

�
��

�
��

+
�

��
�

�
!

�
�$

�
�



��

�
�

�
�

�"
�


"
�

��
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��

Page 82



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
"

"
���

�



��
�$

��
�

�

�

��



�+



,
�

��



+
�

#�
�

�
�$

�
���

�
�

��
�

�
��

,
�


�
��

�
,

�

�

�
��



��

�
��

��
��

�
�

"
��

��





�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



�)

�
� �

)�
)�

��%
��

,
�

��
��

�



��



�
�

� �
�

�
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�



��

�
��

�
�

�

��

��
��

�

$

�

�

��



�
�

$
�

��
�

"
�

�
��

��
�

��
!

�
��

�
�

��



�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

�

��

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�$

���
��

�
,

�
��

��
�+

���
��



�

+
!

�
��



��

"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

��



+
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��



�

��
��

��



��
�

��



+
�

�
)�

�
�

�
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�



��
�

��
��

�
��

$
�

�+
�

&
�

�"
��



�

��



�+
�

�
��

��
��

��
�


$
��

)�
�

� �
�

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
��






�
�$

�
��

�
,

�
��



��

�
�

��
��



�

��



�
�

��
��

��
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�



�

�

��

�
��

��
��

��
�

��



�
�


�
��

�
+

!
��

�




��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�-



�



�
���

$
���

�!
�

�



+
�

�





�

�

��

��
�

�+



�
��

�






,

�
��

,
�

��



�
�

��
�

�
��



��

��
�

�
�

�

��

+
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�


�)
��

� 0
�

��
��

��



��
�



�

��
��

�
�

��
$

�
��

�
,

�
��

�

�

"
�

�

��

"
�


��
�

�
�




�

��
�



�

��
�

�
"






�
�!

��
��

�



�
�


��
�

��



�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�$

�



��
��

�&
�

�



��



�$



�&
�$

��
�

��
�

�




�
@


�

��

,
�



��

��
�

)�
�

�
�

�
�$

���
�!

�
�



+

�
�

�
+

!
�

�
�

�
�



��

��



��
��

�
��

��



�
�

��
�


��
��



�

�

��

�
$

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
��

��
��

#�
�



�

��
�

�
�

�$
���

��
�

�"
�

�
�

��



��
�

,
�

�

"

��
��

�
+

"
�

��



��



�"
�


+



��
�

�
$

�
��



�

�
�

�

��

��
��

��
�

�
�


��
�



�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��



�
�

��
�

��
�



�



��

��
�



�

��
��

�
"

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��



��

�
�"

��
,

�
��

��



+
�

)�
�

� .
��

�

$

�

�

�

�

+
!

�
��



��

"
�



"

��
��

��
�!

�
�



+

�

�

�
��



�

�

��

�
��



�

�$
�

�$
���

��





��



�

�
��



�"

�

,

��
�

�
�

��
�

�*
�

�
���

�
��

�
,

��
�

��



�
��



�


�+
�

��





��



��

�
�"

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

+
��



��

�
�

��
�


!
���

�
��






�
��



�

�

�

��
�

�
"

�
�

��
��






�
�


��
��

�
+

)�
��

��
�

�

0
�

�$
���

��
�

,
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

��
��



�

�

��

�
�$

�



�
�

�
,

�
��

�
���

�
��



�+

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
*

�
��

�
�

��
��



�

�
��

�
�

!
�

��
�

��
��



+

+
��

��
�

��



��
+

"
�


,
�

+
�



��

�

�+

�
�

��
��

�
+

)�
0

�
�$

���
��

��



��
�

�
&

��



��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

,
��

�
�

!
�

�E
�


�
�

�
 �

��



�
�


��
�

��
�

�
��

�





��



�

�
���

��
�

���
�


�
+

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��



!
���

�
��






�
��



�

��



�
�



�

�
��

��
�

��
��

�



�



��
)�

�1



��
��

�
�

�

��

��
�

��
��

�
�$

��
�

��
��

�
�

�





�

�



��
�

��





�

�

��

"





��

��



��
�

��



�
�

�

�

�$
�

�
$

���
��

�
,

�
�


"
��

��
�

�
��

��
��



��

��



�
�


��
�

��



�
�

"
��

,
�

��
��

��
�



��

�
��



+

�
�

��



��
�

�"
��

�
��

�
��

�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
"



$

�
��

�

��

�



�

��

�
+

�



��





��

�



�
�

�
!

�
�

��
�



�

�

��

�
��



�

�!
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
��






�
��

�




�
�

��
�

��
�

�
,

�
��

�
�

�+



�
��

�
�

��
�+

�



��
��

�+
"

�
�

��





�

��



�



��
)�

��
�

� 3
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��

�
��

�
�

�



+
+

�



��
�

�

��

�
�








+

��
�+

��
��



��

�"
�


,
��

�
�

�
�






��
�

��
�

�
�

���



�
�

#�
�



�

�$
�

�$
���

�$



�&
�$

��
�

�
"

�
��



�

��
�

�
�



�

��
�

��



�+
�

&
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
�


�
��

��



�
�

��
�

��
��

�+
�

�

��

�

�

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

��



�
�


��
�

��



�
��

�



�



��
��



�

�
��

��



�
��

�
�

��
�



!

���
�

��





�

)�
�

� 0
�

�&





$

��
�

�
��

�$
���

�!
�

��



��



�
��

�
�

�

�

�



�
+

!
�

��



��
,

�
�


�
��

!
��

��



�
�

�
�



��

�
�!

�
�


�
��

�
=

�



�
�

�
�

��



�

��

�
�

�"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

��
�

�
�


��
�



�

�
$

�
��

��
��



+

+
��

��
�

��



��



�
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
��



+

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

��



�
��

��



��
�

!
��

)�
0

�
�$

���
�$



�&

�$
��

�
�



�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�"
�

��



�
��

��



��
�

�"
��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

"





��

�





�

��
�




�

�$
�

��
�

�"



�
�

��
��

��
&

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��



�

�$
�

��!
�

�

�

�

��

"
��

,
�

��
��

�



�



��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

)�
�

� � �
)�

)�
��-

�
�!






��
+

��
�

�




�
�

��

1

��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�$

�
�$

�



��
�


��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�!





�

�
+

��
�

�




�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��



�

��
�

�



�



��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��



�
�

+
�



��

��
�

�
��

��
�


��
+

��
�

�




��
�

,
�

��
�$

���
�

��
*

�
��

�
��

��
��

��



��
��

�

&

�

�

)�
�

�
�

�-



�



�
���

�
�

�
�

�



��
+

!
��

�




��



��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��



�!

�
��

�
�

�B
C

 �
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

�



��
�

���
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
��

�
)�

�
�

��
�$

���
�

��
*

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��



�"

�

�

�
�

�
��

�
�+

�
�

�
�

�



�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
)�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
��



��

��
��

��



�!
�

�
�

�
�

��
,

�
!

��
�$

�
�$

���
�


�
�

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

+



�



��



��
�



�

��
�

��
�

�
��

$
�

��
�

�
)�

� -
�

��
�



��

�
��

�
7

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��

�
�!






�
�

+
��

�
�




�

��



+
�

��
�


+
��



+

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
)�

2
,

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�


��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
#�

$
�

��



��



�
��



�

�+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�+

�
��

�
��

��
��



�

�
�


��
�



+

�
�

��



�
��

�
��

��
�

��



��
�

�"
�"

�



"
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

+



�



��



��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��



+

�
)�

� .
�"

��



��
��

��



��
�

�
�$

���
�!

�
��



��

�
"

�

��

��



�
��

�
��



�

��
��

�
�-



�



�

�� 
�

��



�
�

�
�

+
�



��

$
��

�
��

�
�

�

�

$
�

�



�
��

�
��



�

��
�

�!





��

�
,

�

�

�"
�


�
��

+
+

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

$
��

�
�


��
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�!



�



�

�
��

�

��

�
�

�
"

�
��

�

��

�
�$

��
�

��
��

�
�




�

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

�$
��

�
�



��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��



��
��

�
�

��



�
�"

�
��



�

��



��
�



��

�
��






�
)�

� .



�
#�

�
�

�"
�

��
�


��



�
��

"
��



�

��



��



�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

+



�



��



��
�



�

��
�

��
�



�

��
��

�
��



�

�
���

�$
�

�$
���

�
�

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�"



��



��

�
��

�

��

�
��



�

�

�

��
�

$
�

��
�

$
�




�


�
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
�

+
�

��



�+



��
�

�



+
�

�
��



�

�!
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

�
�

Page 83



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
>

�

�

3
�
�,
��
��
��

�
�

-
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�;
��

�
��

%
��

�
�

��



�F
�,

�
�$

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
!

��
�


�
��

�
!



�

��





�

�
�

�
�

B



�
�

��
�

&
�

�$



�&
��



�+

�
&

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
+



��

��
�








+

��
�

���
�,

��
!

��
�

�
�

�



�
!

��
�+



��

�"
�



"

��
��



�!

�
�

��



+
�

�
�




��

�
�

�

"

�



�+
�

�&
�

��
�

�
�

1+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
��



�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
�



+

�
�

��
,

�
���

!
��

��



�+
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�



�
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��



�

��
��

�
��

�



��
��

�
�

�
�

"
�


��
�


�
$

��
�



�

�

�

��
�

��,
�

��
�+



�

�
��

��



��



�
��

�
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
"

"
��

��

�
�

0



�&
�$

��
�

�"
�

��



�
��

��



��
�

��,
�

��
+



��

��
��



��

�
!

��
��



�

�
�


�
�

�
�

1+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
��



�

�

"

��





�

�

��

�
�

"
"



��

�
�

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��
,

�
���

!
��

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

�

�
�

4
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�



+

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
+

"
��

��



��
�




�

�
��

��
�



�6

�+





��

�
�

�
�

'
�

,
�

�

"

��
��

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



�+
�

�

��

�

�


�
��



�



�

���
�

�

�

&
�

�
�

	
�

�"
��



�

��
��

��



�



��
�+



,

�
��



�+



��

��
�

��
�

!
��

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��
�

�
��

+
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

1+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��





�

��
�




��



�

��
�

��
��

�

��

"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

��
�


�
&

��

�
�

4
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�!





��

+
��

�
�




�

��
�


+
��



+

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

Page 84



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
$
��
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
�-



+

+
�



��

��
�

�

Page 85



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

$
��
�.
�
�
�
��
6
�

�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
�

�

� 0
�

�!
�

���
,

�
��

,
�

��
!



�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�



�
��

�
��,

�
��



�$

�
��



+

�

�

#�
�


�
��

�
�,

�
��



�

��
�

��
�

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
��



�

��
�

,
�

��
��






�
��

��



�
�

��
�


��
�



�

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�



�

!
��

�
��

�
�

+
��



��

��
�

��
�

��
��



�

�
$

�
�+

)�
0

�
�&






$
��



$

�
,

�
�#

��
�

�
��

�



+
�

�
�



+

+
�



��

��
�

�$
��

�
�


��
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��

�,
�

��
�

�
"



"

�
��

��





�$

���
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
"

"



��
��



�

�
�

�
��

,
�

��
�

��
��



�

��



��
�

��
,

�
��

�"
�

��
��

�"
�

��
��



�

��
�

��
��

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

)�
��

� .
�

�

�

��
"



"

�
��

��





�


��



��
�

��
�



�

�,
�

�

�

��
!

��
�

"
�



"

��
��






��



�
�

�
��



��

�

$

��
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
�



��

�
��,

�

�

��





�

�
�#

��



+
�

��
+

�
�

�$
��

�
��



+

"
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��






�
��

�




�
#�

�
�

+
�



�

��



��
��

��
��

�
"

"



��
�

$
���

��



�
��

�
�

�
)�

2
�

��
"



"

�
��

��





��

�
��

��



��
�&

�
��

�
�


�!
�

�



+
�

��



�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��

��



��
�

���
��



�

�
�

�
��

�
��

���
��

�,
�

��
�

��
�

�

�

��
�

�
��

��



�
�5

3
�

�
"



"

�
��

��





��

�

$

�
��



�

�+
��

��



��
��

�

+

��
�

�
�

�
B

#�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��



�

��



��
��



��

��
�

�



��
�

�





��



�

�
��



�+

�
&

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��



+

�
)�

3
�

@

��

�
�

�



�
�

�
��



��

�
�

�!
�



�

��
��

�
�

�
��

+
��

��
�

�
��



��

�&
�

��
��



��

�
,

�
��

��
�

��
�+

�



��
��

�+
"

�
�

��





�

�



+
�

�

��



�

��
��

�
�

��
$

�
���



��

��
�

�
��

�



��
)�

�;



�

�

�
�


�$
�

��
�$

�
�$

���
�


�
�

�
��



��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
��



�

�
�


�
��



�

��
�

"
"



��

��
�

�,
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

!
��

��



�+
�

�
��

��
�

��
�,

�
��

�
��

�
+

�



�
�

�

��



�

��
��

�
��

�



��
��



�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�



��

��
��

��
!

��
��



�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

*
�

��
�

�




$
�

�



�
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
��

)�
�

�
��

�$
���

�+
�

�



�$



�&
�


�
�

�
�


�
�

��
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
��



�

�
�



+

+
��

�
�




��

��
�

�!
��

��
�

�,
��

�
�

�$
�

��
�

�+
�

&
�

�
��

�
�+



�

��
�+

"
�

�
��

��



+
��

�+
��

�
�

��
�

�



�
��

�
�

)�
��

�

�
)�

)�
�B



�

�
��

��



�
�


�
��



�

�
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

�
� �



��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

$
�

��
�

��
�

��



�
��

��+
��

�
�

�
��

�



�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�$
�

�$
���

�

�

�
�

��



�!
�

��
�

�
$

�
���

�

�


�+
�

�
��

�
�"



�

�
�!

��
��

!



�
��

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�



��



�

��
�

�,
�

��
�

�"



"
�

��
��






)�
0

�
�$

���
��

�
�

��
�


��
�

$



�&
�$

��
�

��
�

�
��

�



��
��



�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�

�



�
�

��
�

&
�

��



+
"

��
�

�



�
�,

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
+

�



��
�


��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��



��



�

�+

�
��

��
��

��



�
�

�

�

�"



���
��

�
#�

�
�

�
�

+
�

�
��



�

�
�

�
�,

��
�

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��





&

��
��

��
�

�"
�

��
��

�
��

��
!

�
��

��
��

��



�
��

�
�

���



�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�



��
�


�
�

��
�



+

�
��

�

�

"
�

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

�

�

��
"

"
�


"
��

�
��

�
�



�

�
�


�
��



�

��
�

"
"



��

#�
�



�

�$
�

�$
���

�$



�&
�$

��
�

�



�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



��
�

,
�

�

"

��
�	



�

�
�


�
�

�
*

�
�

���
��

�
��



�

�1



�
��

�
�




�.

�
��






�%
��



��



�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
)�

�
� �

)�
)�

���
�

"
"



��

�

�

��



�
�

�
�



��

�
��

� .
�

��
��

�



�
�


��
�$

�
�"

�

,

��
�

��



�
�

�

�

��
�

�,
��

�
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
"

�



"
��

)�
1


��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

$
�

�$
���

�+



,
�

��



$
�

��
�

�"
�


,
��

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�,
��

�
�

��
�

�"
�

��
�


��
�

��



+
"

��
�

�



�
�,

�
�

��
�

"





�

�
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�+

�
�

��
��

�
�

�



+
"

��
�

��



�
�"

�
��

��
�

��
��



�

�
�

�
�


��
�



�

�
�

�



��
�

��
�

�
��

+
�

&
�

��
��

*
�

�



��
�



�

�
�

�
��



�

�,
�

��
�

�
�


��
"

�
!

���
��

�
�,

��
�

�
)�

�
�

��
�$

���
�

�

,



�,

�
�$



�&

�

�

�$
��

�
�


�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



�
�


��
�,

�



�
��

��
�



��

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

��



�"
�


,
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
$
��
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
�-



+

+
�



��

��
�

�

Page 86



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�



�
�

�

�

#�
�

�
�

��
�

��



�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
"

"



��
��



�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�!

�

�

�
��

�



�
�

�

��

"
�


!
��

+
�

��
�

�
��

�
�



��



+

�
��

+
�

�
��

�
�

�
��



��

�
+

���
�

�
��

�
��

�

�

��



�

��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

)�
�

� 2
,

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

+
�

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

"
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
+

�
@


��
�

�
�



�

�
�

�+
�

�
�

��



��
�

�
�

!
�



�

��
��

��
�

�
��

+
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



��
�

,
�

��
�!

��
�

�+
"

�
�

��





��



+

�
��

�
�

��
�



��

#�
"

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�




�

��



�



��
��



��

�
�

��
�



��

�
��

�
�

�

��

)�
0

�
�$

���
�

��
�

��
�


��
��

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�+



�

��
�

��
�

�
��

,
�

�
�



��

��





�

��



��
�

�
�"

�

�

��
�



�



��

��
,



��

��
�

��
�


�
�

�

�


��
�



��

�
��

�
�

��
��



�

�

��

�
��

��



�



�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

�
�

��
�$

���
��



�

��
�

�
�$



�&

�

�

��



�
"

�
��



�

��
�

�"
�$

��
�

�"
��

,
�

��
��

�



�
�


��
�

#�
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�"
�


,
��

�
��

��



�
��

�
�

�,



��



��
��

��
�

�
�


��
�


�"
�


,
��

�
��

�
,

��
�

��



�
��

�
"

"



��
��



��

�



�



��
)�

�
� �

,
��

�



�
�

��
�



$

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
���

��



 �
��

��
�

�
�

�
�



�

�
�

��
��

��



�
�



�

�
�

�!
�

��
�,

�

�

�$
��

�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
��

#�
��

��
�

��
��

�



��



��
�

���
��



 �

��



+
�

�
)�

�
�

�
��

�

��

�$
�

�$
���

��
�,

�
�"

��



��
��

��



�-



�



�
��=

�
"

"
�


,
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
��

��



��
�

�"
��

�
�

+
�+



,

�
�

�

��

��



�
��

��
��



��

�
��



+

�
�$

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
"

"
�


"
��

�
��

��



��
��

�
��

�

�

�
�

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
��



�

�
�

�"
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
��

��



��
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�

"
�


"
�

��
��

�
�


��
+



,

�
��



��

�
��

�
��

"
�


"
�

��
��

�
�

$
�

�
��

�

�

�
�

�
�

�
��

#�
�



��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�



�

�





��



�

�
��



�"

�

,

��
�

��
��

��
!

��
��



+

�
��



��

�



+
�

�

��

��
�

��
��

�
 �

�+



�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
�

�
�

���
��



)�

��
� 5

�
�


�
��



��

�
�

��



�+



,
�

��



+
�

��
��

*
�

�



��
�

��
�



�

"
��

,
�



��

"
�



"

��
��

�

+

��
�

�
��


�
�"

�
��

�

��

��
�

��
�

�

�

�
��

�



+
+

�



��
�

��



�
�


��
�



��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�+

�



��
��

�
��

�
�

��





��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��






�
��

�
��

�
�


+
�



��



��

�
�

���
��



)�

1

�


��
�

��
�


��
�

�"
��



�

"
�


,
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
��



�

��
��

!
��

��



+
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

+
���

�
�

��



�
��



�

�,
��

�
�

��
�


�
�

�
��



��

�
��

,
�

�$
�

�
$

���
�"

�

,

��
�

��
��

�
��

+
�

��
�



�



�

��
�

��



��
�



�



�

���
��



�



��

��



�
��



�



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
 �

�

��

�
��

�



�
��

��
�



�

�
�


�
�"

�

,

��
�

��
��



�


��
�

��
�

�+
���

��
��



�



�

��
�

)�
��

��
� �

)�
)�

�.
��


�
�

��



�
��



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�
� 0

�
��

�
�


&
��

��
��

��
+

"



��
�



��

��
�

��
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

�
��

��
,

�
���

!
��

��



��
�

"
"



��

�"
�



"

��
�$

�



��
��

�
,

�
�


�
��

!
��

��



�
�$

�



�+
�

�
�




��

!
�

��
!

��
��



�

��
�



�,

�
��

�
�

��
�


$



��



�
�

�

�

�

�

�
�

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
��

�
�


"
�



�+

�
�&

�
�)

�	



$
�

,
�

�#
�$

�
��

��



�
!

�
���

,
�

��
�

�
��

�



�
��

��
�



�

�
�


�
��

�



�
��

��
�

"
"



��

�
"

�



"
��

��



��
�,

�
��



�+

��
�

�
��



�

�!
�

��



�
�

�
�

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
)�

�
� �



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�



�
��

�
��



�

�
$

�
��

�
,

�
��

�
��

+



��
�"

�



"
��

�$
�



��



�

��
��

��
�



�

$
�

��
�



�"

�

,

��
�

��



�)
�2

�
��

.
��


�
�

��





�

�%



���
�

�
$

���
��

�
�"

��
�

�+
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
�



�

��
��

��
�


��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
�

��
!

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�!
�

�$
�

��
�

�
$

�
�$

���
�"

��



��
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��

�

�
��






�

��

�



�



�
���

�



+
�

�
)�

1�
�$

���
��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

�+
�

@

��

��
�


��



�
��

�



+
�

�
��

��
��

�
,

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�!

�
�


�
�

�
,

�
���

!
��

��



��
"

�



"
��

�$
�



��

�
,

�
��



��

��
�



��



�

�
�

��



��
�


�
��

�

�

$
��



+

�
)�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
�$

�
�

��
�



�



��

�
��

�
�

��
�



+

�
�"

�



"
��

�$





 �

�!
�

�
�

���
�!

��
��



��

�
��



+

�
�




��

�
��

�!
�

�
��

#�
��



�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�+
�

�
��

��
���

$
��

�
��



�+



,

�
��



+

�
�!

�
�

�
�

�
�

�



��
��

�
��

��
�

�



�
�


�
��

��
�

�
+

�
��



�

�
�

�

��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

"
��

�
��






�
)�

�
�

�
�.

��

�

�
��






�
�

%



���
�

��
�

�
��

�

��

�$
���

��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
$

�
�

�





��



�

�
��



��

��

�

�
��

��



+
�

�

��



�

��
�



+

�
�

��



�

"
�



"

��
�$

�



��
�

,
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�$

��
�

��
�

�!
�

��
$

�



��





 �

��
�

,
�

��



��
��

�



��
�



�

�
�


�
�


�
�

�
)�

� 2
,

�
��

��
�

��



+
�


�
��

�
�

��
�$

�
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



�
+






��



��
��

�
��

+
"

�
�

��
�


��



�
��

.
��


�
�

��





�

�
%



���

�
��



�

��



�
�

��
�

&
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

"



���
�

�
��

,
��

$
�

��



��
�

�
"






�
�

��



��
�

�



�
�

�
��



��

�
�

�
�



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�



�
��

�
�

��
��

��
 �

�"



"
�

��
��






)�
� $
�!
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�.
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

� 0
�

�$
�



��

�

�+

�
&

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

 �
�

��
�

��
�



��

��
��

��
!

��
��



��

�
,

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�




�
�



�

�
�


�
�+

�
��

�
��

��



�
��



��

�,
�

��
�

�
+

�+



��
�

�





��



��



,

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�




�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

+
)�

� 1

��

�
�

��
�



��

��
�

�+
�$

�
��



��



�

��



�!
�

���
�




�


�
��

�
�

��
��



�

��



�



�
���

��



�



��
�






�
�

��
�

��





��



�

�
�



,

�
�


�



�
�

��
��

+
�

$



�&
�!

�
��

�,
�


�
��

�



�



��
��

"
��

�
�



��

��
,

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�




��

�
�

��
�




�

+
�

&
�


�
)�

�0
�

�$
���

��
��



��






&
��



�!

�
���

�




��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�$
��

�
�


�

�

��
$

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



��



+
+

�



��
�

�
�


,



�,
�

+
�



��

�

��

�
,

�
�


"
�


��
�

��
$

�
�

�
��



��

�
�



�

�
�

�

�

��



�
��



,



�,

�

�

��
�

�
�


+
�

��
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
�



�

��
�

��,
�

��
�


��
�



�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�,
��

�
�

)�
��

� 0
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
,

��
$

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

,
�



�

�
�

�

��



�

��
�

�
��

��



�
��



��

+
�

��



��
�


,



�,
�


�
��

�
�

�+



�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
��



�

��
��

�
�

,
�



��

�
�

�
��

�

�

"
�

��



�
�

�
,

�
�


"
�


�
��



�

�
�


�
��



�

��
�

"
"



��

��
�

�,
��

�
�

#�
�



�

��



�
�

��
�


�
��

�



�
�

�
�

+
�



��

+
�

��



�
�

��



��
��

�
�

�
��

�

�

"
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
)�

��
�

Page 87



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

$
�$
�(
�
�
�

�
��
	
�
�3

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

� 	



�
�

�

�

��
�



��

�
,

�
��

�+
�

@

��

�+
"

�
�

��





�

"
�



"

��
 �

��
�

�
��

�
#�

�



�
��

+
"

�

,

�

�

��
�

�
�*

�
�

���
�

�
�



�

��
�



�

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

 �
��



�

�
�


�
��

�

�

&
�$

���
�

�
�

�"
��

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�+

�



��
��

�+
"

�
�

��
��

�
��

"





��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�




��

�
�

�$
�

��!
�

�

�

�

��

�

�

�
��

"
�



"

��
)�

%
�


,
��

�

�

��
+

"
�


,
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

��






�
�*

�
�

���
�

��



�
�

�

�

��



�
��

�
"

"



��
�

�
�

�,
��

�
�

�$
���

��
�

�
��

�

��

�!
�

��
�"

��



��
��

��



��
�

�
�

�



�
�$

�
�$

���
�$



�&

��
�


�
�

��
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
�

�

��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�
��

��



�
�)

��
�

� �
)�

)�
�%

��
,

�



��



�
��

���
�

�
�

��
�

�
� 2

�
��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



��



�

�
��



�

��
�

�
��

�



�
�

�

�

�
�

�
"

"



��
�

�!
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��



�
�$

�
��!

�
�


�
�



�

��



+
�

�
�$

���
��



�

�
�

�




��
�

�
&

��

�

��
�

�
�+

�
�


�
��

�
�






�
�$

�
�

�"
�



"

��
�!

�
�



+

�
��

���



��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��



�

*
�

�
���

��
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

��
"

��
�

�
)�

0
�

�
$

���
��

��



��
�

"
"



��

�"
�



"

��
��



��

�
�"

�
��

�
+

�
�

�,
�

�
��



�

�"
�


,
��

�
��

�
�

��



�

�+

�
��






�
"

�



"
��

�

�

�
�

��



�+
�

&
�

��



�

�+

�
�

��
�



��

�
�

)�

� 	
�

,
�


�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��



�

�
��

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

��
 �

�
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�


�#
�


�
��

"
��



��

��
�$

���
�!

�
��



�

��
�

&
��

�"





��

*
�

�
���

�
��



��

�
�

�"
��

,
�

��
��

�
�

�

�#

�
�

�
"

�
�

��
���

��
�

�
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�



��

�
��

�
�

�

��

$
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

,
�

��
�


��
-

�
��

�



��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

�
	

�
:

�
��

�
�


�
�

�
�)

�0
�

�$
���

�$



�&
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�	

�
�

��
�

��



��
�

�"
�"

�



"
��

�$
��

�
��






�
�

��
�+

��
�

�
��

�
��






�
��

�




�
��



�

��
�

"
�


��
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�!
���

��
�


��
�



�

�
��

�
&

�

�

��
�@



�


��
�

��
�



�

�
�

�
E�


,
�

�
��

�

��

�
,

�
 �

"
�


@�
�

��
�


��



�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�



�
+

!
�

��



��
�


��
�,

�



��





�

��
�

�
��


�
�$

��
�

�
-

�
��

�



��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

�	
�

:
�

��
�

)�
0

�
�$

���
��

��



�
$



�&

�$
��

�
��

�
�

+
��



��

�
�



��

��
��

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
�

+



�
�

��
��



��

��



�
�


�
��

�
�

"
��

��





�

��
�

�
��

$
���

�
�

��

$

��
�

�
��

�



��
��



�!



��

�"
��

,
�

��
��



�

��



�
��

��
�

�
�

�

��

�



�
�

�

�

��



��





��



�

�
��

�,
�


�
�

�



+
�


��
�

!
��

��



�
��

�
��

��
��



��

�
�

��
�


$



��



+
�

�
�

�

��

�
�

��





�

��
�

�"



�
�

�!
��

)�
�

� 	
�

�"
�


�
�"

�



"
��

��



�&
�

�
"

��
�

�
+

�
�

�,
�

�
�$

�
�+

�
�






�
�

�
��



��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�



+

�

��

�
!

��
�$

��
�



�

��



,
�

��
��

�
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�

!
�

�
�

�
��






��
�

�
��

�



�
��

��
�

��





��

�
��

"
��



��

��
��



��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

)�
/

�
�

��
"



,

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�


��
�

��
��

��



��
��

�
&

��
�

�
�


��
��



��

��
�

��



�
��



��

�
�

�
�



�

�
�

�



��
#�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��



�

�

�

�
�

�
#�

��
�

�
"

��
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
#�

�

�



+

�
�

��
,

�
��

#�
�



�

��
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
��

��
��



�

�
�


��
�

�
"

�

"

�
��

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
�

�
��

�

��

�$



�&
�$

��
�

�
"

�
��



�

��
��



��

�
�



��

��
�$

�
�

�
�


��
�

�
�"

�

�

�"
�



"

��
�



�

��



��
��

�
��

"



,
�

��
�

��



�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

&
�


��
�



��

��
�

��
��

�
��

��

�

�
�

�
�

��



�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�





�

��
�

�
�

��
�

)�
�

�

.
�




�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
+

"



��
�



�

�
�


��
�

�
,

�

�

��





�

�
*

�
�

���
�

��
�

�
�



��

�



+
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��



+

�

��

�
!

��
�

�



�
�$

�
�+

#�
��

��
�

��
+

"



��
�



��

��
�

��
"

�



"
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��



�

��
�

�
�

��
��



��

�
�

��
��



+

�
��



�

�



�
��

�
!



�

��





�

)�
�

�
�

&
��


�
��

�



��
=�



�

��
��

!
�

�
�

,
�


�
��

8.
�

5
9�

��
��

��



�"



��
��

�"
��



��

��
��



�

�
$

�
��



��



�

��



�$



�&
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�

�+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

�$
�

�
��



�$

�
��

�
�$

�
��

�
�

"





�

��



�
"

�

!

��
+

�
��



�


�
��

�



+
+

�



��
��

�
)�

�
� 0

�
�$

�



��
�


��



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

"
�

�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
�

,
��

��
+

�
�


��
.

�
5

��
�

�
�

�,
�

��
�@



�


�
�

=�
"

��



�
�

�





�

��
��



��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
�"

�

!

��
+

#�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�

��

$
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�,

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
�

�



��
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��



�

��



�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�+



�
��

�
��

��
�

&
�


��
�

�
"

�
��

�



�
�


�
�.

�
5

�
�



�

��
�

,
�

�

"

�+



��
��






��
�


�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

"
��



�

��



��
��



�



��

��



�
��



+

�



$



�
��

��



�
��

�
�

�
�

�.
�

5
��

�

+

�

�

�
�

��
�


�
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
��

)�
.



��

�
��

�
�"

��



��
��

�$
���

�!
�

��



�$



�&
�$

��
�

�
"

�
��



�

��
��



�+

�



��
��

�
�

�
��

�
��



�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�

��



�



��
+

��
�

�
�

��
�

�,
��

�
�

��



��
+

"
�


,
�

�
�

�
�

��
�


�
�

��
�

"
"



��

��



�,
��

��
+

�
��



�

�



��
�



�

�
��

)�
��

��
�

� $
�%
�(
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�

�	
�
�
�
�
	
�
�
	

�
�
�

�
� �

�
�

�
��



�

��



�
�

"
�



�

�



��
�



�

�
�


�
��

$
�

�
��

�

+

�
��

�
��

�
+

���
��



+

�
��

�
��



��

+
"



��

�



��
�

��
"

��



��
�



�

��



�



�
�"

�
��






)�
	



$

�
,

�
�#

��
�

�
��

�
��

�



��
�



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�



�
�"



���

�
��

�
�



�

�
�

��
�

,
�

�
�+

"
�

�
��

�
�




��



�



�

�"
�



"

��
 �

��
!

���
��

��



��
�

��
�

�
�



+

�
�


��
��

�
��

�

$



��



�

�$
�

�&





$

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��



�

�

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�



�

��

�
��

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

��



�
�

Page 88



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
��



��

��
�

��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

)�
0

�
��

�
�

��
�


��
�$

�



��
�


��
�

"
"



��

��



�



�
�"

�



"
��

��



��
�

�
�

��
�



�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�

�

�
�

��



�+



,
�

�
�


�

��

"
"

�

"

��
�

��
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



��

�
"

��





�

�
�$

�
�

)�
��

� �
)�

)�
�.

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
��



+

�
�


$



�
��

�
�"

�
� 	



+

�
�


$



�
��

�
�"

��
�

��
��

���
�



�

��



��
�

!
��

��



��
+

�



�
��



�



�

�"
�



"

��
#�

�



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

"



�
��

�





$

�

�

�
�

�
�

��



��
�

�
�

��
��

�+



��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��



��
��

�



��
�

�
�

���



�
�

��



��
��

��
��

��
+

�
�!

�
�

�
��

)�
4

�
�

��
��

��
�

�+



��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
�

��



�
�






��



�
�

��



��
��

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

!
��

��
�

��
��

#�
$

��
�

�
���

��
�

�"
�


�
"

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
��

�



��
��

�
�+

�

��

+



��
�

�
�

�
��

�

�



�

�
�!

�
�



+

�

�

�+



��
��

�
�

�
���

�
�

,
�

���
!

��
��



��

�



�
�

�$
��

�



�
��

��
��

�
��

�
"



�

��
�

�

��

��



�
�

�$
��

�
��



$

�
��

�

�



+

�
�

)�
3

�



�
��



�



�

�
"

�



"
��

��
��

�




$
��

�,
�


�
��

��
�



+

�
��



��

�




�
�

�#
�

�



��
��

��
�

�
��

�
,

�
��

�
,

�
�

��





�

�
�

��



��
�

�
�

�
"



�

��
#�



��

��
��

�




��
�


�



�
��

��
�

�
�"

��
�


+
��

�
�

��
�

"
�

��



��
)�

�
�

�
��

+
"

�
�

��



��
��

��
��

�
��



��



�

��
�

�
�

�
�


��



+
�

��
�

�
+

�



�
��



�

�"



��



��
�

���
�+



��

�



,
�

��
�


$
�

�

�

)�
0

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�


��
��

�
&

�

�

�
�

��
"

�
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
"

�
�


��

+



��
�

�
�

�
��

�
"



�

��
��

�
"

"



��
��



��

�
�

�
��

��
��

)�
2

�
��

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
�$

���
��

�
"

"



��
�


�
$

��



�
�

�

�

�
�

�
��,

�
��

��



�

�

��
��

�
�



�

��
��






��
��

�
�

��



�
�

�
�

�"
��

�



�
�

��
�

�
��

+
�

�
�!

�
��



��

�"



�
��

�




��



�



!
��

�

��

�+



��
�

�
�

�
�!

�
��

�
��

��



�
!

��
��



��

�
,

�
�

��
�

��
�

*
�

��
�

�
��

�
"



�

��
)�

�
� �

)�
)�

�F
�,

�

�

��



��
�

�
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�



��

�
��

�
�

�

��

� �
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
�+

�
�&

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�



�

�
�

��



�
�

�
��

�



�
�

�
��



+

�
�


$



�
��

�
�"

��
�

��
�

�
��






�
��

�
�+

�
�



�

�
�


�
��



�

��
�


��
+

�



�
#�

+



��
�"

�



"
��

�




$
�

��,
�

��



�"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

��



+
�

�
��

�
�



��



�

"
��

,
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

��



�
��



�



�

�"
�



"

��
��

��
�

��,
�


�
��



��

�
�

�"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

��
�

�
�


��
�


��
�




�

�
�)

��
�

� G



�



�
�"

�



"
��

#�
"

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�



��
#�

�
�

,
�

�
�


��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�&
�

��
�,

�

�

��



��
�

�
��

�
�"

��
,

�
��

�
��



��

�
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��

�
��

��
�



�

!
��

�
��

�
�

+
�

�

��

�,
�

��



��
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�$



�
��

�




��



��
�

�$
��

�
�

!
�

��
!

��
��



��

��



��
#�

�



�
��

��

$

�
��

�
�

+
��



��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��



�
��



��

��
�

��
�



��

�



�
�!

���
�

)�
�

�
�

��
�

+
�



�

�
�


��
��

��
��

�
"

�
�


��
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��

�
��

��



�
��&

�
��

��



��





��



�

�
��

�

$

�

�

#�
"

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�

+

�
�



�



�

�"
�



"

��
��

�
�

�
�,

�

�

��



�
�

�

�

�!
�



�

��
�)

�
0

�
�$

���
��

�
�

��
�


��
��

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�"



��



��

�
��

�

�

�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�






�
�"

��
,

�
��

�
��



�

�

��

�
�$

�



�+
�



�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



��



�

!
��

��
�

��



��
�

=�



�
�

�
�

"
�



"

��
�$

�



��
��

�




��
��

���
�!

��
��



��

�



�
�

�

�

�
!

�



�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��

�
��

) �
� 0

�
�$

���
��

��



�$



�&
�$

��
�

�!



��
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�



�,

�
��

��
��

�
��



��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
�



�

�
�


�
�

�



�
��

�
�

��
��



�

�
��

�
�


��
+

�



�
�

�
+

�



��
�


��
���

�
��

�
�



��

�



+
�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

��
�

��
�$

���
��



�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��



�

�

�

�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

��



�
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



��

�
��

�
�



��

#�
�


�
��

�
�


�
�


�
��

�
�

"
�

�
��

��





�

��



��



�
$

��



�
��

�
��

��



�
�"

�
�"



�

�
�

!
�

���
��

��
�

�



��
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





#�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��



�
��



�

�
�

�
��



�+

�
��

�"
��

�



�
�

�
"

�
��






�8
	

3
2

�
9�

�

��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

�
� 0

�
��

��



�"
��



��



��

�
"

�

��

��



$
�


�
��

��
�

+
�

�
$



�&

�

�

��



��
�

��
��

�
�

�

��

�
�



�"

�

,

��
�

�+



��
�

�
�

�"
�$

��
�

��
�

"
"



��

�

�

��



�
��

�
�

��
�


�

�

�
��



�



�

��
�

#�
�



�

�+
�



�

�
�


�
��



��

=�



�
��

��
!

�
�

�
,

�

�

�)
��

�
� �

)�
)�

��
�

�
��

�

�


�
��

�



�



�
��

�
�

� .
�

�$
�

���
�

�
��

�
�"

�

�

��



�



�
�"

�



"
��

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
&

�

�

�
�


��
�



�

�
�


�
#�

$
�

��
��



�$

�



��
�


�
�

�
"

"



��
��

�
�

�+



�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
��



�



�

�"
�



"

��
�

�

��

�
�

��
�


��



�
�

"
�



�

�



��
��,

�

�

)�
.

�
��

�
��



�

�

��

�$
�

�&





$

��
�

�
��

�



�



�
�"

�



"
��

��
��

�
+



��

��
�&

�
��

��



��
�

���
��

�
��

��
�



�



�

�
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�$



��
�

�
��

�

��

!
�

�



+
�

��



+
�

��
�

�
�!

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��



�




��
�

�$
�

�
�

��
�

,
�

��
�

�
��

"
"

�

"

��
�

��
�

��
�



�

��
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
��

&
���

�
��



�+

�



�
�

�
��



�

�
+

�
�


��
�


��
�

�
��

��



+
�

)�
0

�
�$

���
��

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
�

,
�

�

"

�

�

��
�



�

�
��

��



�
�


�
�


��
��

�
�+

�
�


�
��

�
�






�
�$

�
�

��



�



�
��

�



�



��
��

��
��

�
���



�

��



�
�

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
��

��



�



�
���

��



�



�
��

�
��



�

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
��

"
�

�
��

��
��



��

��





�

��



��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
)�

�
�

��
�$

���
��



�

��
�

�
�$



�&

�

�

�$
��

�
�


�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



�

��

�
��

�
�

,
��

�
��

!



�
��

+
�



�

�
�


�
�

+





�

�
��



�

��
�






�

�

��
��



+

�
)�

� $
�-
�(
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
	
�
��
��
�
��

Page 89



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
�
�
	

�
�
�

� %
�


,
��

�

�

��
�

��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

��



�
��

�
�

=
��

��



�
��

�

�

��
�

!



�
��






�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�



��

�
��

�

��

�
��

�
��



�

��
��

��
�

�$
�

�
��

�"
�



"

��
�+

�
�


��
�


��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

"



�
�

�!
��

��
�

,
�

��



��
�

�
��

,
��

�
#�

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



�

�
��



�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
���

�
�

��
�


�
�

�



�
��

��
�

��
��

�,
�

�
)�

� 2
�

��
"

��





�


�
�"



���

��
�

�$
���

��
�

�"
��



��



�

�
��

�
��

�
��



�

$
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��
��

��
�!

�
���

�
$

�
�

��
��

��
�



�

�
�


��
�


�
�

��
�

�
�,

��
�

�
��



�

�
�



+

+
�



��

�
��

�
�

���
��

�
�

��
��

��
,

�
���

!
��

�$
��

�
�


��
�

��
�

�





�

!
��

�$
�

�&
�


�
��

��
��



�

�
��



�

��



�
�

��
�

��
�

��
"

�



"
��

��
�

,
�

�

"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



��



�
��






��
�

"



��
��



�

��
�

�
��

�
��






��
�


�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��



+
�

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
�

"
"

��
+

�



��
��

�
�

�
�$

��
�

��
��

�



�
�

�

��

�
�

"
"



��

��



��
�

�"
�"

�



"
��

�+
�

�

��

�

�


��
+



,

�
�

�

�


��



�
�

"
�



�

�



��
��,

�

�

)�
� �

)�
)�

�%
��

,
�



��



�

��



�
�

�

��

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



�

�
��

� 2
�

��
�

+
"

�
�

�
��

�$
���

�!
�

�




��
�

��
�

��



��
�,

�



��





�

�

�"

��
,

�



��
�


�
�

�

��

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



�

�
#�

+
�


�+
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��



�

�

�

�
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��






�
��

�
�+

�
�



�

��
�


�"
�

!
���

��
�

�
��

�
#�

�



�
��

��
�

�
��

��



�
�

�
�

"
"



��

��
�

�,
��

�
�

)�
�

�
��

�$
���

��



�
��

�
�

�
"

�

,

��
�


�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��



�

��
�

"
"



��

��
�

�
�

�

�

�
��



��



+

�
��

�
�"



�

�
�!

��
#�

�



�
�$



�&

�

�

�
$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�"

�

,

��
�

�$
��

�
��

�



�
�

+



��
��








,

�
��

,
�

�

"

"



��
�



��

��
�

��



��
�

�
"

"



��
�

�
��

�



��
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
)�

��
� 0

�
�$

���
�$



�&

�$
��

�
�


�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



�
�



�

�
��

��



�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

&
�

��
�

��
�

��



�

�

�

��
�

��
�



��

 �
�

�
"

�
�

��
�

��



��





��



�

�
��

�,
�


�
��

�
��

��
�

�



�
��



+

�

��

�
!

��
��



��

�
�

��
�


$



��



+
�

�
)�

0
�

�
$

���
��






&
��



��



��

�
��

��
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
��

�
�



��

��
�

�
��

,
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

��



��
"

�

,

��
�


�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
"

"



��
��



��

�
�

�
��

�

�


�
��



�

�
"

�



�
�



��

��,
�


�
)�

.
�

�"
�

��
�


��
��

��
��

"
"

�

�

�
�

�$
�

�$
���

�
�

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�"



��



��

�
��

�

�"

�

,

��
�

�"
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
"

"



��
#�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�"
��



�+

�
&

�
��

��
"

�
�



�

��
��

�
�


��
��

�
��



+

�
�


��
$

��
�

�+
�

�

��

�

�


�
�

�
�

��
�



�

��



�
��



+

�
�

)�
��

� 0
�

��
�

�



�



��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��



��
�

�
��

��
��

�
+

�
&

�
��



��






�+



�
�

��





��

�!
�

��





��



�

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



��

��,
�


�
�!

�
�"

�

,

��
�


�
��

�
��

��



�
�

�
�

"
"



��

��



�+
�



�

�

��

��
�

��
��

�
 �

�+



�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
��

�
�

��
�



��

)�
�0

�
�$

���
��

�
"

�

��

��



$
�

$
�

��
�



�!

�
��

�
��

+
�

�
��

��
�

��



�
�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�
�


��
�

���
�

�
��

��
#�

�



�
��



�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�$
�



�



�

�
�

��



�



�
���

�



�
�

�

�

��



�
�"

�

,

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�

��

�
�

��
��



�

��
�

"
"



��

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

+
���

�
�

�
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

��
��

��
�,

�



��
"

"
�


"
��

�
��

�"
��



��

��
�

��
�


�
�

�
�


�
��

.
��


�
�

��





�

�%



���
�

)�
� �

)�
)�

�	
�

�"
�


�
�"

�



"
��

��



��
�

�"
��

�
�

+
�

�
�,

�
�

��
�

� 2
�

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

�$
���

��



�
�

�
�




��

�
�"

�

�

�"
�



"

��
�

�

��

�
�"

��
�

�
+

�
�

�,
�

�
)�

�
�

��
�$

���
��



�

��
�

�
�

�
�

"
�


��



�
�$

�
�

�
��



�+

�
&

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

�

��

��
�

��
�



��

��



��
�


�
��

"
"

�

"

��
�

��
��



+

�
�

��
�

�
��

!
�

��
�

��
+

�
�

��
��

�
��

�

�

�
�

�
)�

0
�

�$
���

�$



�&
��

$
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

��



�
��

�
��

�

�

��
�

�



��
��



��

�
�

�"
��

,
�

��
�

�
�

�
�


��
�


�"
�


+



��
��

�
�

��
+

"



��
�



�

�
�


��
��

�



��
��

�

�

#�
��

�



��
�


�
��



�

�"
�


+



��



�
�

$
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�!
��

��



+
�

�
)�

��
� �



��

�
�"

�+
�

&
�

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
�


��
"

�



"
��

��



�+



,
�

�

�

�+



��

�+
�



�

�
�

�
!

��
�"

�

"

�
��

��
�

�$
�

�$
���

�
�

��



��
�

"
�


��
��

�
�

�"



��



��
�

��
�


��
�

�
,

�
�


"
�


�
�

�
�+

���
��

�
�

"
"



��

��



��



$



�
��



�

�
�

"
��

��
��



��

�
�

��
$

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�!

�
�


�
�


��
�

��
�

��



��



�



�
���

�



�
��



+

�
�


��
�

��
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�



�



��

#�
��



�

�
�

�!
�

��
��

�
�

�
��

�

+

��
�

�
��

�
�,

��
�

��
�

�
��

)�
�

� �
)�

)�
�%

�

,

��
�


�
��

��
�

�!
��

��
�

"
"



��

��
� 0

�
��



�

�
��

��



�
��

�
�

��
+

�



�
�


��



�
��

+



�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
��

�
�

��
�



��

��
�

*
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

,
�

��
�



��

�
�

"
"



��

��



��
�,

�
��



+

�

��

�
!

��
��



�

�$
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

,
�

��



��
�


�
�

"
�



�

�



�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
)�

�



��
�

�"
�

"
�



"

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
,

�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��



��

�
+



��

�"
��






�
�

�$
�

�
�$

�
�$

���
��

�
,

�
�


"
��

�
�

�
"

"



��
�

�
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





�"

�
��

$
�

�
#�

$
�

��
�

�
$

���
��

��



��
��


$
��

�
�



�

��
�

�
��



�!

�
��

�
�

�
�+



��

�
�

��
�

�
��

,
�

��
��



�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
���



�

�
�




�

��
+

"



��
��

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






)�
0

�
�$

���
��

��



�
��

+



�
�

��
�

�
�,

��
�

�
��



��

�



+
�

�,
�

�

�

��
!

��
�

�
�


�
"

�
��



��

�
�"

�+
�

�
��

��
�

��
�


�
�

�
�

�!
�

��
�

��
�



�

�
�

�
"

"



��
�+



��

�"
�



"

��
��



�


��



�
�

"
�



�

�



�
�

)�
� �.

��
�



�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�



��
�

�
��

�
�-

�
��

�	



�
�

�

�

�
"

�

,

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

��



�
�

��
�


��
�

�
�

��



#�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��



�

�"
��

,
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

��



��
�

"
�



�

�,
�

��



�
�

�
��,

�
��

�



�
�"



��



��

�
���

��



�
��



��

�
!

��
��



��

�



+
�

�"
�



"

��
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
�

�
��

�

��

��
�

,
�

�

"

��
�

��



�
�

�

��



"

��





�

��
�

�
��

$
���

�"
�


,
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�


�
!

��
��

�



��
�

�

��

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






�
�



��

��





�

��



��
,

�
�


�
��

!
��

�"
�



"

��
)�

�1



�

��

�
��

�

��

�
��,

�
��

��
��

�$
�

�$
���

�+
�

"
��

�
��

��



�
�

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��



�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
#�

�



�
�$



�&

�$
��

�
�


�
��

"
�

��



�
��

��



��



�
�

��
�

��
�

��
"

�
!

���
��

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



�

��
�

�,
��

�
�

�
$

���
��



+

"
��

+
�



��

��



�
�

�!
�

�

�

��
�

,
�

�

"

�
�

�

Page 90



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�



�
��

�
��,

�
��

�
�!

�
��

�
�

�"
��

,
�

��
��

�
�

�

�)

�0
�

�
$

���
��

�
�

��
�

��
��



�


�+
�

��





��



��



�


�+
��

�
��

��
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��

�



�
��

�
�

�
�

�
,

�
�


"
+

�



��



��
�




�

=�
�

�+
��

�
��

��



�
�

�
�

"
"



��

��



+
+

��
�

�




�

�

�"
��



�

)�
��

� �



��
�

�"
�"

�



"
��

��
�,

�
�$

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
��

�
�



��

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



�

�
�$

�
�$

���
��

�
"

�

��

�

"

��





�

�
�


��
�

�
,

�
�


"
�


�
�+



��

��
�

��

��

�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��



��



��

�
��

�



�
�,

�
�


�
��

!
��

�"
�



"

��
#�

�

�

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
��



�

�

�

��
�

�
��



��

�

��

��



�
��



�

��
�

"
"



��

��



�
�

�



+
�

��
�

��
)�

�
�

��
�$

���
��



�

��
�

�
��

�
"

�

��



�

��
�

�
�

"



��



��
�

��
�


��
�

�
"

�



�
�


�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
��,

�
��

�
�

�
�

�"
�

��
�


��
"

�
�"



�

�
=!

�
���

��
�

"
"



��

�
�

�
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



�"

�

,

��
�

��
�

"
"



��

�
�

�
�,

��
�

�
��



�"

�



"
��

��
�,

�

�

��



��
�

�
�$

��
�

��
�



+

+
�



��

�
)�

��
� � �

)�
)�

�.
�

�
"

��
��






�
��



�

��



+
�

�
�+

"
�


,
�

+
�



��

��
� .

�
�


�
��

"



"
�

��
��






��
�


$
�

��
�

+
�



�

��



��

�
�

�
"

��
��






�
��



�

��
�

�
��

��
,

�
��

�
�

�





�


�
�

��
�

�
�

�
"

�
�

��
�

��



��



�
��

�
�

�
#�

�



�
�$

�
�$

���
�


�
�

�
��



�

��
�



��

��
��

��





�

��
�

�+
#�

�
�

�
��

�

�

!
��

��



��
��






��



�
��



�

��
�

��
)�

0
�

�$
���

��
�

�
��

�

��

��





&

��
��

�
��

��
��



��



"

��





�

��



��
��



�

�

�

��
�

�
��

�
��,

�
��

�

��

��
�

�
'

��
�

!
��

�
�/

�
�

���
��

�
�

�;
��



��

8'
/

;
9�

"
�


�
��

+
+

�
#�

�

�

��
�

�

�

��
�

�
�"



��



��

�
��

�

��

"





��


�
��

�
�

��
�

#�
�



�

��
��

�
�

��
��



�

��



�
�

�

�

�
!

�
�

�
�

��
��



�"

�

,

��
�

�+



��
��

�
�

"
��

��





�

��



�
��

�
��

�
��

��
)�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�	



�

�
�

�-





�

��
�




�

�
�

�,
�

�
��



�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

?
�

�
�

�+
���

�




�

��

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

��
��

�
*

�
��

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

$
��

�
�







�
�

�
�

�



�
�

��



��
�

�
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�

�
�


�)
�0

�
�!

�
���

,
�

�
��

�
��

$
�

��
�



<�

��



�
��

�



�
��



 �

��
�



�

��
���

��
��

�
$



�&

)�
	



$

�
,

�
�#

�$
�

�

�

�
�

��



��
�

,
�

�

"

��
�

�
�

�
��

�

�

!
��

�$
�

�
�


��
�

�
�"

�

�

��
�

�
�+



�

��
,

�
�


�
��

!
��

��



+
�



$



�

��
��



��

�
�

��
��

�
)�

�
�

�
��

�

��

�

�

��
�

"
"

�

�

�
�

�$
���

�!
�

��



�"
�


,
��

�
�

�



+
"

��
�

�



�
�,

�
��

�
=�



�

�
�


�
��

�
,

��
�

��
�

�
��

�



,
�

��
��

�



��



�
��

��



+
�

��
�

�$
�

���
�

�
��

�
,

��
�

�





��

�
��

��



�
��

�
"

�
��

�
�

�
�

)�
0

�
�$

���
��

��



�
�

�
"

�

��

��
�

�
�"



��



��

�
��

�

��

�
,

�
�


"
�"

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

"
"



��

��



��



$



�
��



�

�
�

"
��

��
�$

�



�$
��

�
��



�

+



,
�

��



��
�+



��

��
�

��
�

!
��

��



+
�

)�
�

� 0
�

�$
���

��
��



�"

�

,

��
�

��
+

�
���

�

�



�

��



�
��



�



�

��
���

�,
�

�

�

��
!

��
��



+

�
�


$



�
��

�$
�



�

�
��

��



�
!

��
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

��



�



��
�


+
��

�
�






,
�



��






�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��



�
�

��
�


��



�
!

��
�

��
�

+
��



�+

�
&

�
��

+
"

�

,

�
+

�



��
��



��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
��



�

��



+
�

#�
$

�
��

�
�$

���
��

��

$

��
�

�
+

��



�
��

+
�

�

��



�

�
"

�



�
�



��

�

��

�




�
�

�)
��

�
� �

)�
)�

�%
��

,
�



��



�

��



+
�

��
�

�



�
�

�
�

� �

1

��

�
�

��
��

��
�$

�
�$



�&

��
�

��
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�



�
+

!
�

��



��
"

�



"
��

�$
�



�!

�
�



+

�
��



+

�
��

�
�

)�
�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
�$

�
�&






$
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�



��
�

�








+
��

��
��+

�
��

��
�

�+
�

&
�


�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�

��

"
�



"

��
��



�&

�
�

"
��

"
�$

��
�

��



�
�

�

�

��



�
��

)�
'

�
�

�
�


��
�

�
�"

�

!

��
+

�
�"

�



"
��

��
��

��
�

�
�


�
��



�

�
�

�
��

�

�


�
��

�
�

��
��



+

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�$

�
�

�
�

"
�

�
��

�

��

�
�

��



��



�
��

�
�

�
��



��

�
+

�



�
��



��

�
�

�,
��

�
�

��



��
�

�"
��



+

�
��

�
�

�"
�



"

��
)�

� 0
�

�$
���

��





��



�

�
��



�"

�

,

��
�

��
�

,
��

�
��



�

�
�

�
�

��
��



�

�
��



��

�
�"

�"
��

,
�



��

�



+
�

��
�

�



�
�

�
#�

�



�
�$

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�




��
"



�

�
�!

��
�$

�
��

�
�

���
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�


+
�

��
��



�


��
�

�
�

�
�

�!
��

#�
�

��



��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

)�
�0

�
�$

�



��
�


�!
�

��
!

��
��



�



��

�
��

"
�



"

��
�$

�



��
�


�
��

�
�

+
�

�
�,

�
�

�
�



+

�
��

�
�

�

��

�
��

��
�

&
�


��
�


�
�


�
��

�
�

��
��



+

�
��

�
!

�
��

�
��

�
�



��

�
�


��
�

�
�



+

+



�
�

��





��



�

�$
�

�
$

�



��
�


��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
+

!
�

��



��
�



+

�
��

�
�

�
�



�

�
�

�



��
�

��
�,

�

�

��



��
�

+
"



��

��
�

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






)�
0

�
��

�
�

���
��

�
��

�

��

�$



�&
�

$
��

�
��

�



�
�


��
�

�

��

"
��

,
�

��
��

�



��
�

��



+
�

�
��



�

"
�


,
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
"

"
��

�

��

�





�

�*
�

�
���

�
#�

�
�

��
��



�

�$
�

���
+

�



�
�

�
�

��



+
�

�
��



��

"
�



"

��
�

$
�



��

��
��



+

�
��

�
�

)�
��

� 0
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
��

��
�

�!
��

��
�

��

��

�
�

��



�



�
�

��
�

"
"



��

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
&

��
�

�
�


��
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��



��
�



�



�

�
��

�
���

��
#�

�



�
��



�

��
�

"





�

��



��
�

�
��

�
�



�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�
�


��
��

�
�

��



�



��
��

�

�

�
�



�

��
��

�
��

��
�



�



�

�
)�

�
� 0

�
�$

���
��

��



�$



�&
�$

��
�

�

�

��
"

�
��



�

��
��



�

"
�


,
��

�
��

��
�



�

�
�


��
�

�
"

"



��
�

�
�

�
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






�

"

��





�

��



��
�



+

�
��

�
�

�
�



�



�

�"
�



"

��
�$

�



��
��

��



�
!

��
��



��

�
��

�

�

Page 91



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
6

�

�

�



+
�

)�
�

�
��

�$
���

�"
�


,
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�



,
��






+
�



��

$
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�



��

�
�


��
�

�
�



�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

&
���

�
��



��

�
�

��
�


��



�
��



@


�
�

��
�

��
�


$



��



+
�

��



��
�

�
��

�
��

��
)�

�
�

�
�

�
�

,
�

�

"

+
�



��



��

�



��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�
"

"



��
�

�
�

.
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






�%
�

��
$

�
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
�"

�
,

�
�


�
��

!
��

�"
�



"

��
�


��
�

���
�

�
�

�
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�



�
��

�
�

,
�

��
�

"
"



��

�
�

��
�

�



+
+



�

�
��






��



��
�

+



��
�"

��





�

�
�$

�
�

#�
�



�

��
�

�"
��



��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�



+
�

��
�

�



�
�

�
)�

�
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � � � � � �

3
�
�,
��
��
��

�
�

.
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

�

��

�



�
�

�
�



��

�
��

�,
�


�
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�

�
�

.
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�!

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

��
�



+

�
��

�

�

"
�

��



�
��



+

+
�



��

��
�

��
�


+
��

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

��
�

!
��

��



�
�

�

�

�

�
�

%
�


,
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
"

"



��
��



��

�



�
�

�
�



��

�
��



�

��
�

+
���

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�+

�
��

�"
��

�"
�


!
��

+
�

��

�
�

�



�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�



�

��
��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

��
��


�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��



�
�"

�

,

��
�

�
��



+

�
�

��



��



�
�

�
�



��

�
�

+



�
��

�

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

;
�,

�
�"

�



"
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
�


�
��



�

��
�

��,
�

��



�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
�,

��
�

�
�

�
�

4
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

+
"

�
�

��
��

�
��

"





��

�



�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�




��

�
�

��
�

��



�
�$

�
��!

�
�


�
�

�
�

�
�

"
"



��

��



�



�
�"

�



"
��

��



��
�

�
�

�
�

��



�
�

�

�

��



�
��

�,
�

��



�
�

"
�



�

�



��
�

��

�
�

%
�


,
��

�
�+



��

��
�



��

�
��



�

�

"

��





�

��



��
�

�"
�,

�
�


�
��

!
��

��



�
�


��
�

��
"

�



"
��

��
�,

�
�

�

�

�
"

�



�
�



��

�
��



��

�
�

��
��



+

�
�

��

�
�

4
�

�
�

�
�

��



+
�

��
�

�



�
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��



��

�,
�



��






�

�

Page 92



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
%
��
'

�
��,

�
��

�

Page 93



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
>

�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
%
��
&
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

1

��

�
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�$
�

��
�

,
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

!
�

�
�


�
��

�
+

!
��

�




�
��



��

�



�
�

�

�

��



��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�


,
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
#�

�

�

��
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�$

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
&

��
��

��
�

��
�



�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�$

�
��

�
"

�
�

��
�


��
�

�
��

�
�

�

,

�
��

��
�

��





�

�
��

�+
)�

0
�

��
�

,
�

��
��



��

�
��



�

��



�
��

�
�

"
�

�
��

��





�

��



��



��
�

��
�$



�&

�

�

�$
��

�
��

�
��



�

�
�

��,
�

��



�
��

�



�
��

#�
�



�

�$
�

�
��

��
"

"
�


"
��

�
��

�
$

�
��

�
,

�
�+

�
�

�
��

��
"

�
��



��

�
�

�
��

!
�

�

�

��
"



���

�
�

�
"

"
�


�
�

�
��



��



�

�
�


�
��

�
��,

�
��

��



�
��



�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�

��



�

�
�


�
��



�

��



�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�,

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

)�
� .

�




�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
�$

�
�$

���
�"

�

�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

��

�
=�

�
�

��
�

�
��






�"
��



�

�$
�

��
�

�$
���

�
��

&
�

��
�

��
�


�
�

��
�


��
�

�
��

,
�


�
�


�
��

�




�
��

�
�+

�
�



�

��
��



��

�



�
�

�

�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

)�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��





�

"
��



�

�$
���

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�



��

"



���
�

��



�
�

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

��



�
�

�
�

"
�

��



�$
�

��
�

�$
�

��
��

�



"
�

��
��



�

��



�
��

�
�

"





�

��



��
�

�
��

�
,

�
��

�

��

�

,

�
�

�+
�



��

�



�
��

�
�



�

��
�

�
��

,
�

���
!

��
)�

�
� 0

�
�$

���
�!

�
���

��
"






��
��

��





�

��
��

�

��

�

��

"
�

��



�
��

�
�"

�$



�&
�


�
#�

�



�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�






��
�!

�
��






�

��



�

��
"

�
��



�

��
�$

���
�+

�
�

�+
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�



�
��

�
�

��
,

�
���

!
��

��



��



�
!

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��,

�
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
��






�"
��



)�

�
� �

�
�

��
�

��



��



��



�
��

�
+

!
��

�




��



��
�



�

�
�


�
�$

���
�

��
*

�
��

�
��

�
�



�

�
�

��
��

�
�


�
��






�
��

�



�
��



�

�
��

��
,

�
�)

��
�

��
�+

��
�

��
!

�
��



��

�
��

��





��



��

�
,



�,

�
�

�
"



$

�
��

�



�
��



�

�
��

�



,
�

�

�



�

�
�

�
��

�



�
�

+
�



��

�

��

��
�

��
�

,
�

��
��

�
*

�
��

�
�

��



�
�

�
�

��
��



��

�
�



�

�
�




��

�
�

��
�

"
�

�
��

�

��

��
��

�
�



�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�$

�
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

��
�

�

��



�

��
�






��



�#
��



��

�
�

�
+

"
��

��
�

�
��






�
��

�
�


��
�




�

+



��
�

�
�

�
��

�



�
�


�
��



�

�$
��

�
��

�
�








+

��
�

�





�

��
�




�

)�
�

�� 0
�

��
�

�



�



��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��





�

�
��

��
�+

��



�
�

�

�

�



�
�

�
�

��



�
��

�








+
��

��
�

"
��

�
��






�
�


��
��

�
�

-



�



�
���

�
�



�




��

�!
�

��
��

�
�

��
,

�
��

�+
�

��
��

�

�

�
�

��
�


�
$

�F



�
�

��
%

��



)�
2

�
��

�
�+

�$
���

�!
�

�
�


��



�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

"
"

��
��



�

��
�



��

�
�


��
�

��
�

�
�

�



��
�

�
��

�
��

=�
�

�
��

�
�

"
"

��
�


��
��

�
�

�
��



��

�
,

�
�


"
�

�
��

�
�

��
�



�!

�
�+

�
�


��
�


�
�

��
�

�

�

�
�



�

��
��

�
�

"
�

��



�
��



,

�
��

�
�!

�
��

�
�

�

�

$
�F



�

�
��

%
��



)�

	



$
�

,
�

�#
��



��

�
�"

�$
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
��,

�
��

��



�
�

�
�

��
��

��
#�

��
��

��
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
*

�
��

�
+

�



��
��



�

�
��

�
��

��
��

�!
�

��





�


��
�



�

�
�


�
��

�

$

��
�


�
�

�
�

��



�
!

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�-
��

�
�4

�
�

�




��
�

,
�

��
�



�

�



�
$

��



,
�

�

�



�

�
��

��
�



�

�
+

�



��
�$

���
�!

�
�

��
*

�
��

�
�

��



��



�
!

��
��

�
��

��



��
�

"
"

�



)�
�

� 0
�

��
��

��
��



��

$
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�


��
��

�
�

�
�

�
���



�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

��
�

��
��



�

��



��
�

�
�*

�
�

���
�

�



��
�

�
��

��



�
�"

��
,

�
��

��
�

�
�


��
�



+

�
�

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�!
�

�





�

��
�

�
��

�
�



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
$

�
��

�
��

�



��
�

�
�

�
,

�
��

,
�

���
!

��
��



��

�
)�

0
�

��
�

��
�


��



�
�

+
!

��
�




��



��

+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

�*
�

�
���

�
�


��
��

�
�

�
�


�
&

��



��
�

�
��

��
�

��



�
�$

���
��






��



�
�

��



��
�


�
�

$
�

�
�

�

��

�
�

�"
�


�
��

�
�

�+



�
��

,
�

�

�

��
!

��
��



+

�
�



$



�

��
��



��

+
"

�

,

�
��

�
�

��
��



+

�
�

)�
0

�
��

��
�

�
��



�&

�
�



��



��

�
"

�

��

�$
��

�
�;



,

�
�


+
�



��

��
�

�
"



��



��

�
��

�

��

�
,

�
�


"
��

�-
��

�
�'

�
�

��
�


��
	



�

�
�


�
#�

$
�

��
�

�$
���

��
��


$
��

�
��



��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��



��
��

�



�
��

�
�

��



$
�

��
�

��
�



�

�
�"

�



"
��

�
$

�



��
��

��
�,

�

�

��



�"





��

�



�
�

�

�

��





�

��
�




�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
%
��
'

�
��,

�
��

�

Page 94



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

� �



�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�&
�

��
��



��

�
��

�
��

���
��

�
�

��
�

�

��

�

�

�
�


��
�


�
�

"
�



�

�



�
�

��



�
��



�

��
�

�
�


�
��

��
+

"
�

�
��






��
�

�
�"

�
!

���
�"

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��



�
��



��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�

$

�
)�

�
� �

�
�

��
�


��
��

�




�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

,
��

�
��

�
�

��
$

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
"






�
�!

��
��



��

�



�
��

�
�

�$



�&
��






�
�$

��
�

�



��
!

�
�


��
�

��



��
�



��

�
��






�
#�

$
�

��



��



�
��



��






��



�
�

�
�


��
�

�&
��



�;



,

�
�


+
�



��

�



�
�


��
�

��
��

!



�
��

�



$
��



�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�!
�

��
��

��
��



��

�
��,

�
��

��



�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
"



$

�
��

��



�
��



,

��





+

�



��
$

�
��

�
�$

���
��

�
�"

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
,

�
�


�
��

�




�
��

�
�+

��



�
��

)�
�

� �
�

�
�	



�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�.

�
��






�%
��



�$

���
��



�


�+
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
"

�
�


��
��

�
��






�
�

��
-

�
"

��
�

��
1


,
�

�
�+

�



��
%

�

�

��
+

+
�

��
�

�$
�

���
�

�
��



�

�
�


�
�

�
�

��
,

��
�

��





��

�

�

�
�$

��
�

�

��

�
�

�-



�



�
�� 

�
��






�
�

��
!

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�

�

�"
�


�
�

�
�

)�
�

� %
�

��



�+
�



�

�
�




�"

�

�

��
�

�
�+

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

��,
�

��
�


��
��

�
�	



�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�.

�
��






�%
��



�$

���
�

!
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
,

��
$

�
�

�!
�

��
�

�
�;

��
�

��
%

��
�

�
��



�F

�,
�

�
5



�

��
��



�

��
�

�
�	



�

�
�


�
�1



,

�
�

�+
�



��

5



�
��

)�
�

� 0
�

�$
���

��
��



��

�
,

��
$

��
�

�
�"

�
��



�+

�



�
�

��



�
��

�
�


��
�

$
�

��
�

�$
�

��
��

�
��

!
���

�
�

�
��



��

��
��

�




�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��



�
��

�
��






�"
��



��



��

�
�"

��
�

��



�
+

�
�

�
�

��
�!



��

��
�

�
��

+
"

�
�

��



��



�
��

�

��

�
�



�

�
��



�

�
��

�
��

+
"

�
�

��



��



�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

,
��

�
)�

.
�"

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
"

�
�

��
�


��
��

�
�.

�
��






�%
��



��



�

�%
�

��



�+
�



�

�
�

1

�

��
�

�

��

�$
���

�!
�

�"
�

!
���

�
�

�
�




��

�
�

�-



�



�
�� 

�
�

$
�

!
�

��
�

��



�.
"

��
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�)

� �
� � �

Page 95



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�	



�
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

�

1�
��



�

�$



�
��

��
�&

�
��

�
��

��



�
�

+
�



��

�

��






��
�

��
��



�

�
�

�
�

�

��

�

�+

�
�#

�"
��

�
�

�
��






��
�

��
��

�
�	



�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��



�

�%



���
�

�
��

�
+

D�
�

�
��

"
�






�
�=

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

>
#�

�
�

+
�

���
=�

�



�
�

�

�

�
��

�
��

�
�

H
�

�
�

��
��

��
)�



,)

�
&

#�
�

$
��

��
��



�=

�%
2

�5



�
��

�
�

>
#�

�
�

�
��

��
��

)�
�

�
��

I
I

)�
�

Page 96



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

� �
�
�
��
��
��
�	
�

�
�	
�


�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
�	


�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

Page 97



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
3
-1

6
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 
o
f 

th
re

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 2

0
1

3
-1

6
. 
T

h
e

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

3
 t
o

 2
0

1
6

 d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

ill
 d

o
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

m
b

it
io

n
s
 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 1

0
 y

e
a

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 

o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 
a

n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
o

lic
y
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

S
h
e
ff

ie
ld

 i
s
 f
a

c
in

g
. 

 

T
o
 a

lig
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 s
p

lit
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 h

o
w

 w
e

 w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 d
e
s
ir
a

b
le

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 t

h
a

t 
o
ff

e
r 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
m

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

e
e

t 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 
n

e
e
d

s
, 

w
h

ile
 S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 f
o

c
u
s
e

s
 o

n
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
, 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

u
r 

m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
.

P
o

li
c

y
 C

o
n

te
x
t 

 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

s
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p
o

lic
y
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

th
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

 S
h
e
ff

ie
ld

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

1
. 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

o
li
c

y
 

T
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p
o

lic
y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 f
a

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

e
fi
c
it
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 c
u
ts

 t
o
 p

u
b

lic
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

a
re

 t
h
e

re
fo

re
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

g
o

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
T

h
e

 
ro

le
 t

h
a
t 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 p
la

y
 i
n

 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

a
lly

 s
tr

e
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

n
e

w
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
th

is
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

1
.1

 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

li
s

m
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
1

 

T
h

is
 a

c
t 

a
im

s
 t
o

 s
h

if
t 

th
e

 p
o

w
e

r 
a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b
a
c
k
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 h

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 a
c
t 
h

a
s
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
a

b
o
u

t 
a

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
a
ff

e
c
t 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

to
 h

o
w

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

; 
th

e
 a

b
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n
t 

(H
R

A
) 

s
u

b
s
id

y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 r
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 H
R

A
 

s
e

lf
-f

in
a

n
c
in

g
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
llo

w
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n

 
re

n
ta

l 
in

c
o

m
e

; 
a
n

d
 a

m
e

n
d

in
g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 t

h
e

ir
 d

u
ty

 b
y
 o

ff
e
ri
n

g
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

1
.2

 
W

e
lf

a
re

 R
e

fo
rm

 A
c

t 
2

0
1

2
 

T
h

is
 a

c
t 

le
g
is

la
te

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

ig
g
e

s
t 

re
fo

rm
 t
o

 t
h
e

 w
e

lf
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
o

v
e

r 
6

0
 y

e
a

rs
. 

It
s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

im
 i
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
a

ir
e

r 
a

n
d

 s
im

p
le

r,
 w

h
ile

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

. 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
to

 
th

e
 p

la
n

 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
, 

a
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 b
e

g
in

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 s
e

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

u
t-

o
f-

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 i
n

-w
o

rk
 

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 W

o
rk

in
g
 T

a
x
 C

re
d

it
, 

J
o
b

s
e

e
k
e

r'
s
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

, 
In

c
o
m

e
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

, 
In

c
o
m

e
–

re
la

te
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 

Page 98



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
b
e

in
g
 m

e
rg

e
d

 i
n
to

 o
n

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
a

id
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

in
 o

n
e
 l
u

m
p

 s
u
m

. 
 

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h

is
, 

th
e

 G
o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

th
e

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 b
ill

 a
n

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

B
e

n
e
fi
ts

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 c

o
m

in
g
 i
n

to
 e

ff
e

c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

1
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 

•
 

C
a

p
p

in
g
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
L
o

c
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 p
a

id
 t

o
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

re
n

te
d
 t

e
n

a
n
ts

.

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
h
a

re
d

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
, 

th
a

t 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t

o
 s

in
g
le

 p
ri

v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

, 
fr

o
m

 2
5

 t
o

 3
5

 
y
e

a
rs

.

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e

 s
o
c
ia

l 
te

n
a

n
ts

 w
h

o
 

a
re

 u
n
d

e
r 

o
c
c
u

p
y
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
. 

1
.3

 
‘L

a
y
in

g
 t

h
e

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

: 
A

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
la

n
d

’ 
2
0

1
1
  

 

T
h

is
 s

tr
a

te
g
y

o
u

tl
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
fo

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

it
s
 r

o
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

o
b

ili
ty

. 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

n
e

w
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 h

o
u

s
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

a
n

d
 g

e
tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
m

o
v
in

g
, 

th
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
:

•
 

T
h
e

 G
e
t 

B
ri
ta

in
 B

u
ild

in
g
 f

u
n

d
 -

 £
6

5
0

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 u

n
lo

c
k
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

it
e

s
 w

it
h

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 

•
 

T
h
e

 G
ro

w
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
 F

u
n

d
 –

 £
7

0
0
m

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 
s
it
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 b

a
rr

ie
r 

to
 

n
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

•
 

C
u

s
to

m
 B

u
ild

 -
 £

3
0

m
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

lf
 b

u
ild

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

•
 

N
e

w
B

u
y
 G

u
a

ra
n

te
e

 -
 T

h
is

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 b

ri
n

g
s
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
le

n
d
e

rs
, 

b
u

ild
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 o
ff

e
r 

9
5

%
 m

o
rt

g
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

a
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 b

u
y
 a

 n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 u

p
 t

o
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£

5
0
0

,0
0
0

. 
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 B

u
y
 d

is
c
o

u
n
t 

–
 T

h
e

 d
is

c
o

u
n

t 
le

v
e

l 
fo

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

a
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 b

u
y
 t

h
e

ir
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

h
o
m

e
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 d
is

c
o

u
n
t 
le

v
e

l 
is

 n
o

w
 £

7
5

,0
0

0
. 

1
.4

 
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

o
li

c
y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0

1
2

 

T
h

is
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
im

s
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 s

im
p

le
r 

a
n

d
 

m
o

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 

w
h

ile
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 g
ro

w
th

. 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

y
s
te

m
 g

iv
e

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 d
is

ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 p
la

n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

2
. 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it

y
 R

e
g

io
n

 

A
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

’s
 c

o
re

 c
it
ie

s
, 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 C

it
y
 D

e
a

l 
fo

r 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 R

e
g
io

n
 (

S
C

R
),

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

L
E

P
) 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

v
e

n
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 i
n

 S
C

R
. 
T

h
e
 c

it
y
 

d
e

a
l 
is

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
fi
rs

t 
s
te

p
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

d
e

c
e
n

tr
a

lis
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
o

w
e

rs
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 W
h
it
e
h

a
ll,

 g
iv

in
g
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 t
h

e
 

to
o

ls
 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 c

re
a
te

 j
o
b

s
. 

S
C

R
’s

 d
e
a

l 
d

e
v
o

lv
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
s
k
ill

s
, 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
c
it
y
 r

e
g

io
n

. 
 

R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 S
C

R
 

a
re

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

a
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
c
it
y
 r

e
g
io

n
. 

T
o

 f
o

rm
a

lis
e

 t
h

is
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 

a
n

d
 u

n
lo

c
k
 f
u

tu
re

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 p

o
w

e
rs

, 
S

C
R

 i
n

te
n

d
s
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 ‘
c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
 r

e
g
io

n
, 

c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 
ro

b
u

s
t,

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
le

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 s

h
a

re
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
e

tt
e

r 
e

c
o
n
o

m
ic

 a
n

d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
it
y
 

re
g
io

n
.

Page 99



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4

3
. 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
o

n
te

x
t 

3
.1

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
  

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 h
a

s
 a

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
5

5
2

,7
0

0
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

c
it
y
 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
. 
T

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
s
 g

ro
w

in
g
 a

t 
a

n
 u

n
p

re
c
e

d
e

n
te

d
 

ra
te

 a
n

d
 s

o
 t

o
o

 a
re

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
. 

B
y
 2

0
3

1
, 

it
 i
s
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 6

2
8

,0
0

0
 a

n
d
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 4
6

,0
0

0
 n

e
w

 h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 f
o

rm
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 g
ro

w
th

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g
 a

d
u

lt
s
, 
m

o
s
tl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
tu

d
e
n

t 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
. 

A
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 h
a

s
 a

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

ro
u

n
d

 6
0

,0
0

0
, 

s
o

m
e
 9

,0
0

0
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 f

ro
m

 o
v
e

rs
e

a
s
. 

 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
g
e

in
g
 a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g
 f

o
r 

lo
n

g
e

r.
 I

n
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

1
0
 y

e
a

rs
 w

e
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e
d

 
7

5
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 o

v
e

r 
2

0
%

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
n

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 
s
u

c
h
 a

s
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
e
m

e
n

ti
a

. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 a
d

a
p

t 
th

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

to
 m

e
e

t 
fu

tu
re

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 n

e
e

d
s
. 
  

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 i
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 m

o
re

 d
iv

e
rs

e
, 

b
o

th
 e

th
n

ic
a

lly
 a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
lly

, 
w

it
h

 1
9

%
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 n

o
w

 f
ro

m
 a

 b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
(B

M
E

) 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
. 
T

h
e

 P
a

k
is

ta
n

i 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 

la
rg

e
s
t 

s
in

g
le

 B
M

E
 g

ro
u

p
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
E

u
ro

p
e

 a
n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
fu

g
e

e
s
 h

a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

iv
e

rs
if
ie

d
 

th
e

 c
it
y
’s

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

. 
C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
, 

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 1
2
8

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
 a

re
 

s
p

o
k
e
n

 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 
a

n
d
 2

3
%

 o
f 

m
o
th

e
rs

 g
iv

in
g
 b

ir
th

 t
o

 
b

a
b

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
 w

e
re

 b
o

rn
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h
e

 U
K

. 
 

3
.2

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 h
a

s
 o

v
e

r 
2

3
0

,0
0

0
 h

o
m

e
s
. 
P

ri
v
a

te
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 
th

re
e

-q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 o
w

n
e

r 
o

c
c
u

p
ie

d
 (

5
8

%
).

 T
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 a

re
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

w
n

s
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 4
1

,3
0

0
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
. 

 

T
h
e

 c
it
y
’s

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 c

o
n

ta
in

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
m

i-
d

e
ta

c
h

e
d
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n

 t
h
e

 1
9

5
0

s
 a

n
d

 6
0

s
 a

n
d

 t
e

rr
a

c
e

d
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

u
ilt

 b
e
fo

re
 1

9
4
5

. 
T

h
e

 c
it
y
 h

a
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
fl
a

ts
 a

n
d

 
d

e
ta

c
h

e
d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

s
. 

S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

d
o

w
n

tu
rn

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

, 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 h
o
u

s
e

 p
ri
c
e

 h
a

s
 f
a

lle
n
 t

o
 a

ro
u

n
d

 £
1

1
6
,0

0
0

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
’s

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
is

 p
o

la
ri
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
e

 p
ri
c
e

s
 

v
a

ry
. 

T
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 i
s
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 
p

o
p
u

la
r 

w
it
h

 a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 h
o
u

s
e

 p
ri
c
e

 o
f 

a
ro

u
n
d

 £
2
0

0
,0

0
0
. 

In
 

c
o

n
tr

a
s
t,
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
in

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 h

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
e

a
p

e
s
t 
p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

a
t 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 £

6
0

,0
0

0
. 
 

T
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
 b

e
e

n
 d

ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 

th
e

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 m

o
rt

g
a

g
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 2
0

%
 d

e
p

o
s
it
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 b
u
y
 a

 h
o

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 l
a

rg
e

 d
e

p
o

s
it
 o

f 
a

ro
u

n
d

 
£

2
3

,0
0

0
 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 i
s
 n

o
w

 t
h

e
 b

ig
g
e

s
t 

b
a

rr
ie

r 
to

 h
o

m
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

fo
r 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 b

u
y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 h
o
m

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

 w
it
h

 l
it
tl
e

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

h
o

m
e

. 
 

T
h
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 m

o
rt

g
a

g
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
m

o
re

 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n
te

d
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 A

lm
o

s
t 
1

6
%

 
o
f 

S
h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 n

o
w

 r
e

n
t 
p

ri
v
a

te
ly

 a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 t
h

is
 

s
e

c
to

r 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 g
ro

w
 t

o
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

le
v
e

l 
a
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o

u
s
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 g

ro
w

in
g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 i
s
 d

ri
v
in

g
 u

p
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 r
e

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
 n

o
w

 e
x
c
e

e
d

s
 £

6
0

0
 a

 m
o

n
th

. 
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
ti
n

g
 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
q
u

a
lit

y
. 

O
v
e

r 
re

c
e

n
t 
y
e

a
rs

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h
o
u

s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 
9

0
%

 o
f 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

m
e

s
 n

o
w

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 D

e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 d

o
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 a
 

Page 100



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 1

 H
a

z
a

rd
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 h
a

z
a

rd
 t

h
a

t 
p
o

s
e

s
 a

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 r
is

k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ty
 t

o
 t
a

c
k
le

 
C

a
te

g
o

ry
 1

 H
a

z
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

it
y
’s

 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
h
o

m
e

s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

. 
 

3
.3

 
L

o
c

a
l 

P
o

li
c

y
 C

o
n

te
x

t 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 ‘
S

ta
n

d
in

g
 u

p
 f

o
r 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’ 
s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 

y
e

a
rs

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 a

c
te

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e

 p
o

in
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

la
n

 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 e

ig
h

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 ‘
A

 G
re

a
t 
P

la
c
e

 t
o

 L
iv

e
’ 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
im

s
 f
o

r 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 c

it
y
 t

h
a

t 
h
a

s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

lo
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

s
h

o
p

s
, 
a

n
d

 j
o

b
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p
a

rk
s
, 

s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 

T
h
e

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

io
n

, 
s
p

a
ti
a

l 
a
n

d
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
4

 t
o

 2
0

2
6

. 
T

h
is

 s
e

ts
 a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
2
9

,7
5

0
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 b

y
 

2
0

2
6

 (
1

,4
2

5
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r)

, 
p

lu
s
 a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
4

,8
0

0
 h

o
m

e
s
 t
o

 r
e
p

la
c
e

 
th

o
s
e
 l
o

s
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 d
e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
r 

c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
4

 i
s
 m

a
rg

in
a

lly
 a

h
e

a
d
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t,
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

s
 

s
in

c
e

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

1
,4

2
5

 
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 a
n

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

2
0

,3
2
5

 (
1

,4
5

0
/ 

y
e

a
r)

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 

s
ti
ll 

n
e

e
d
e

d
. 
W

e
 d

o
 h

a
v
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 l
a
n

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t,

b
u

t 
m

u
c
h

 o
f 

it
 i
s
 c

o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 i
n

 j
u

s
t 
a

 f
e

w
 a

re
a

s
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 l
im

it
s
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
in

 a
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
 i
n

 a
n

y
 o

n
e

 y
e

a
r.

 C
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

n
 m

o
rt

g
a

g
e

 l
e

n
d

in
g
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

fa
c
to

rs
 h

o
ld

in
g
 b

a
c
k
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
. 
W

e
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 p
la

n
 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

 t
o

 r
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
 h

o
w

 m
u

c
h
 n

e
w

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

 5
-y

e
a

r 
s
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 

re
a

d
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
it
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

. 
 

T
h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p
o

lic
y
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d
 a

b
o

v
e

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 f

a
c
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

la
y
s
 a

 
k
e

y
 r

o
le

. 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

lis
m

 A
c
t 

w
ill

 g
iv

e
 m

o
re

 p
o

w
e

rs
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 w

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ile
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 w

ill
 

g
iv

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 w
h

a
t 

g
e

ts
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

. 
 

T
h
e

 w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
s
, 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

 b
y
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

 2
0

1
1

, 
w

ill
 

u
n

d
o

u
b

te
d

ly
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

B
ro

a
d

ly
 

s
p

e
a

k
in

g
, 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 w
ill

 s
e

e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 £
1

8
0

 m
ill

io
n

 l
e

s
s
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
m

o
n
e

y
 c

o
m

in
g
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 e

v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

 f
u

ll 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

k
n

o
w

n
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

F
o

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

, 
a

ro
u

n
d

 6
0

0
 s

in
g
le

 p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
rs

 u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 a
g
e

 o
f 

3
5

 
w

ill
 s

e
e

 t
h

e
ir
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

re
d
u

c
e

 b
y
 £

3
5

 a
 w

e
e

k
. 

A
n
o

th
e

r 
2

3
,0

0
0

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 s
o
c
ia

l 
te

n
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

ir
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
id

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 t
o

 t
h
e

m
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 b
u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
a

rr
e

a
rs

 f
o

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
s
u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 b
e

c
o
m

in
g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d

 w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 t
o
 s

e
e

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

, 
w

it
h

 2
3

%
 m

o
re

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
0

/1
1
 t

o
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 
  

T
h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 g
iv

e
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
d

u
ty

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h
, 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
’s

 n
e

w
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o

a
rd

 w
ill

 g
u

id
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 f
o

r 
d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

. 
O

u
r 

g
u

id
in

g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 

a
n

d
 g

o
a

ls
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 S
h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

th
e

s
e
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 i
s
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

. 
T

h
is

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 g

re
a

te
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
a

n
d

 

Page 101



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

R
ig

h
t 

F
ir
s
t 

T
im

e
. 

3
.4

  
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
fi
c
it
 h

a
s
 m

e
a
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 g

re
a

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
to

 o
u

r 
h
o

m
e

s
 

a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

re
fo

re
 h

a
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 
w

a
y
 t

o
 u

s
e
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

w
a

y
s
 w

e
 c

a
n

 d
ra

w
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

to
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

 

T
h
e

 s
c
a

le
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
la

n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
o

v
e

r 
re

c
e

n
t 
m

o
n

th
s
 a

n
d

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 

M
a

rk
e

t 
R

e
n

e
w

a
l 
a

n
d

 D
e

c
e

n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 e
n
d

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

u
n

d
s
 a

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a

s
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 £
1
1

1
 

m
ill

io
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o
 £

5
4

 m
ill

io
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

. 
 

T
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 p

u
b
lic

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

u
s
te

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

. 
S

in
c
e

 2
0
1

1
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 a
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

£
4
.5

m
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 

£
7

8
0

,0
0
0

 i
n

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
s
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g
, 

th
e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

R
A

 
s
e

lf
-f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 p

re
s
e

n
ts

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il.

 I
t 
h

a
s
 f

re
e
d

 u
s
 u

p
 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 

fo
r 

h
o
u

s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 
ta

k
e

n
 o

n
 g

re
a

te
r 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

. 
 

It
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

H
C

A
).

 
N

e
v
e

rt
h

e
le

s
s
, 

w
e

 i
n

te
n
d

 t
o

 r
e
ta

in
 a

 p
la

n
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 
th

e
 c

it
y
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
g
ra

n
t.
 T

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

th
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1

1
-1

5
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s
 

B
o

n
u

s
. 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e

s
 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

it
h

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
e

s
s
 

g
ra

n
t 

th
a
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

. 
 T

h
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 £

9
.3

 m
ill

io
n

 t
o

 R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 r

e
n

t 
h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

 

T
h
e

 s
h

in
in

g
 l
ig

h
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
is

 t
h
e

 N
e

w
 

H
o

m
e

s
 B

o
n
u

s
, 
a

n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
n

e
w

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 s

o
u

rc
e

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 s
h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 N
e

w
 

H
o

m
e

s
 B

o
n
u

s
 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 m

a
tc

h
 t

h
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

o
r 

s
ix

 y
e

a
rs

, 
fo

r 
e
a

c
h

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 o

r 
fo

r 
e

v
e

ry
 e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
b

a
c
k
 i
n

to
 u

s
e
. 
T

h
is

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 £

3
.2

 m
ill

io
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
it
y
. 

 

4
. 

P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

o
u

rc
e

s
 

T
h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

a
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 
h

a
v
e

 a
ll 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
p

e
d
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
is

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 i
t.

 T
h
e

s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
a

re
 l
is

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

. 
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

•
 

W
e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 A

c
t,

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

2
 

•
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

la
n
n

in
g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 

•
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
c
t,
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 

•
 

E
n

e
rg

y
 A

c
t,

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
1

 

•
 

‘L
a

y
in

g
 t

h
e

 F
o

u
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
’ 
A

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 

Page 102



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
7

•
 

L
o

c
a

lis
m

 A
c
t,
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

 

•
 

L
o

c
a

l 
D

e
c
is

io
n

s
 ‘
A

 f
a

ir
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 f
o

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h
o

u
s
in

g
’,
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

•
 

T
h
e

 S
p

e
n
d

in
g
 R

e
v
ie

w
, 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

L
o

c
a

l 

•
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll-

B
e

in
g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 

•
 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
2

 

•
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
, 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

2
 

•
 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 2
0
1

2

•
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

2
0

1
2

-1
6

 

•
 

In
te

ri
m

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
, 

2
0

1
1

-1
3

 

•
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

2
0

1
0

-2
0
2

0
 

•
 

‘S
ta

n
d

in
g
 u

p
 f
o

r 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

’ 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

, 
2

0
1

1
-1

4
 

•
 

J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1
0

 

•
 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

 (
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

) 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

T
h

is
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 e
n

d
s
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
6
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 a
n
d

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
e

a
c
h
 y

e
a

r.
 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
 

R
e

f 
W

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

il
l 
d

o
 

H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
o

 i
t 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 L
e

a
d

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

G
P

1
 

E
n

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 L

o
c
a

l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
M

a
rk

 W
h
it
w

o
rt

h
 /

 
D

a
v
e

 C
a

u
lf
ie

ld
  

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

G
P

2
 

 
D

e
fi
n

e
 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

fo
rm

 a
n

 e
le

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 R

e
g
io

n
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
M

a
rk

 W
h
it
w

o
rt

h
 /

 
D

a
v
e

 C
a

u
lf
ie

ld
  

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

G
P

3
 

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

it
e

 
c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 3
4
3

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 b
u

ilt
 o

n
 8

 
s
it
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
2

0
0

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 2
 o

th
e

r 
s
it
e

s
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
G

ra
h

a
m

 W
it
h

e
rs

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
/ 

M
a

ri
a

 D
u
ff

y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

G
P

4
 

 
P

re
p

a
re

 a
n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
to

 m
a

rk
e

t,
 1

2
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

it
e

s
, 

re
a

d
y
 f

o
r 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
N

a
lin

 S
e

n
e

v
ir
a

tr
e

  
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Page 103



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
6

 

G
P

5
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 b

ri
e
fs

 t
o

 d
e
fi
n

e
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 

is
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 s

it
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 f
o

rm
e

r 
B

a
n

n
e

rd
a

le
 a

n
d

 K
in

g
 E

c
g
b

e
rt

s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
s
o

u
th

 w
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
N

a
lin

 S
e

n
e

v
in

a
tr

e
 

/ 
F

io
n

a
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 

G
P

6
 

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t
h
a

t 
is

 n
e

e
d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
G

e
o

rg
in

a
 P

a
rk

in
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

G
P

7
 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n
te

d
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
G

e
o

rg
in

a
 P

a
rk

in
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

G
P

8
 

 
E

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 a

p
p
e

ti
te

 a
n

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 u
p

 c
u

s
to

m
 b

u
ild

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

d
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
G

e
o

rg
in

a
 P

a
rk

in
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

G
P

9
 

 
S

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 A

tt
e

rc
lif

fe
's

 r
o

le
 a

s
 a

 g
ro

w
th

 z
o

n
e

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

b
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 
d

is
ti
n

c
t 

c
e
n

tr
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 f

it
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 

L
o

w
e

r 
D

o
n

 V
a

lle
y
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
N

e
il 

J
o

n
e

s
/S

te
v
e

 
B

ir
c
h

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 

L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
d

e
rs

 

G
P

1
0

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

 
D

a
v
e

 C
a

u
lf
ie

ld
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

G
P

1
1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 s
u
p

p
ly

 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
a

n
d

 o
w

n
e

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
it
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

l 
p
h

a
s
e

s
 o

f 
A

tt
e

rc
lif

fe
 W

a
te

rs
id

e
, 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

2
0

 m
ix

e
d

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

h
o

m
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
N

e
il 

J
o

n
e

s
/S

te
v
e

 
B

ir
c
h

 
P

ri
v
a

te
 l
a

n
d

 o
w

n
e

rs
 

G
P

1
2

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

3
0

5
 n

e
w

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 t

w
o

, 
th

re
e

 a
n

d
 f
o
u

r 
b

e
d
 

h
o

m
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 i
n

 
th

e
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 o

f 
P

a
rs

o
n

 C
ro

s
s
, 
S

h
ir
e

c
lif

fe
 

a
n

d
 N

o
rf

o
lk

 P
a

rk
. 

(m
ix

e
d

 t
e

n
u

re
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 2

5
 a

re
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 r
e
n

t)
  

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
S

im
o
n

 
H

o
lm

e
s
m

it
h

 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 

C
o

m
p
a

n
y
 

K
e

e
p
m

o
a

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

L
im

it
e
d

 a
n

d
 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

G
P

1
3

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
P

h
a

s
e

 2
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

0
0

 o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 5

0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 

o
n

 8
 s

it
e

s
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
S

im
o
n

 
H

o
lm

e
s
m

it
h

 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 

C
o

m
p
a

n
y
 

K
e

e
p
m

o
a

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

L
im

it
e
d

 a
n

d
 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

G
P

1
4

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 s

it
e

 o
n
 5

0
0

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
M

a
rc

h
 

N
e

il 
J
o

n
e

s
  

 

Page 104



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9

c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 b
y
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1
5

 
2

0
1
6

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n
d

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 

G
P

1
5

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 p

h
a

s
e

 1
 o

f 
P

a
rk

 H
ill

, 
th

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
: 

 
•

1
9

5
 f

la
ts

 f
o

r 
s
a

le
 

•
5

6
 f

la
ts

 f
o

r 
re

n
t 

•
1

2
 f

la
ts

 f
o

r 
s
h

a
re

d
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
U

rb
a

n
 S

p
la

s
h

 a
n

d
 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

G
P

1
6

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 a

c
q
u

is
it
io

n
, 

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
 S

c
o

w
e

rd
o

n
s
, 
W

e
a

k
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 N

e
w

s
te

a
d
 

(S
W

a
N

) 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 H
o

m
e

 
G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
c
h

a
rt

e
r.

  
T

h
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
r 

a
llo

w
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 

re
tu

rn
 t
o

 t
h
e

 e
s
ta

te
s
 a

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 t

e
n
u
re

 o
f 

c
h

o
ic

e
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

  
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
H

C
A

 a
n

d
 H

O
M

E
 

G
ro

u
p

 

G
P

1
7

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 m

ix
 a

n
d

 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
s
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

d
e

liv
e

r 
4

4
9

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 r

e
n
t 

h
o

m
e
s
 (

u
p

 
to

 8
0

%
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

re
n

t)
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 £
9

.3
m

 H
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

H
C

A
) 

g
ra

n
t 

 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

H
C

A
, 

A
rc

h
e

s
, 

C
h

e
v
in

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

s
, 

H
O

M
E

 
G

ro
u

p
, 
G

u
in

n
e

s
s
 

N
o

rt
h

e
rn

 C
o
u

n
ti
e

s
, 

P
e

o
p

le
 f

o
r 

P
la

c
e

s
, 

S
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 a
n

d
 S

Y
H

A

G
P

1
8

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
  

(P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

m
e

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
) 

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
A

n
n

 E
lli

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

  

G
u

in
n
e

s
s
 N

o
rt

h
e

rn
 

C
o

u
n

ti
e

s
  

G
P

1
9

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

n
e

w
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

  
(P

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
) 

 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
5

 
A

n
n

 E
lli

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

S
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 

G
P

2
0

 
In

 P
h
a

s
e

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

2
5

 h
o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 r

e
n

t 
in

 
P

a
rs

o
n

 C
ro

s
s
 a

n
d

 N
o

rf
o

lk
 P

a
rk

  
(P

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
) 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
S

im
o
n

 
H

o
lm

e
s
m

it
h

 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 

C
o

m
p
a

n
y
 

K
e

e
p
m

o
a

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

L
im

it
e
d

 a
n

d
  

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

G
P

2
1

 
E

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 

u
s
e

 i
t’
s
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

m
o

rt
g
a

g
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 e

q
u

it
y
 s

ta
k
e

 
m

o
d
e

ls
, 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
H

C
A

, 
R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

Page 105



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

0

G
P

2
2

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

o
d
e

l 
w

it
h

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 R

e
g
io

n
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
rt

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
o

n
 a

 
p

h
a

s
e

d
 b

a
s
is

, 
h

ig
h

 q
u
a

lit
y
, 

w
e

ll 
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
, 

p
ri
v
a

te
 

re
n

te
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
H

C
A

, 
R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

G
P

2
3

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

to
c
k
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

p
ri

v
a

te
ly

 r
e

n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 
la

n
d

lo
rd

s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 c

o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 P
a

lm
e

r 

P
ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

G
P

2
4

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

rb
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
u
e

l 
p
o

v
e

rt
y
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 G

re
e

n
 D

e
a

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

ls
, 

a
n

d
 p

re
p
a

re
 a

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 f
o

r 
a

 f
o

llo
w

-o
n

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

 

R
o

b
e

rt
 A

lm
o
n

d
  

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 

G
P

2
5

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o
 s

in
g
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 
c
o

m
p

le
x
 n

e
e

d
s

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
A

n
n

 E
lli

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

 

G
P

2
6

 
R

e
m

o
d

e
l 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
A

n
n

 E
lli

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

  

G
P

2
7

M
a

k
e

 b
e

s
t 

u
s
e

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

to
c
k
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 l
o

n
g
 t
e

rm
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
o
m

e
s
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

 
S

im
o
n

 
H

o
lm

e
s
m

it
h

  
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
C

lie
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 

G
P

2
8

 
B

ri
n

g
 9

0
 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 l
e

a
s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
o

a
n

s
 t

o
 o

w
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

ir
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 l
e

a
s
e

 t
h
e

ir
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

5
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 

G
P

2
9

 
A

w
a

rd
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
8

0
 r

e
-h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

is
h

in
g
 t

o
 d

o
w

n
s
iz

e
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 -
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 

J
a

s
p

e
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

G
P

3
0

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e

 m
a

tc
h

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
s
o

c
ia

l 
te

n
a

n
ts

 i
n

 b
e

in
g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 m
u

tu
a

l 
e

x
c
h

a
n
g
e

 
th

e
ir
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
la

n
d

lo
rd

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
5

 

J
a

s
p

e
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

Page 106



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

1

G
P

3
1

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
o
u
n

c
il 

a
g
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
. 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 
J
a

s
p

e
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 

R
e

f 
W

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

il
l 
d

o
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 –

 W
h

a
t 

w
e

 w
il

l 
d

o
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 L
e

a
d

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

S
C

1
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
iv

e
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
  

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 l
e

n
d

e
rs

 w
h

o
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 u
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 M
o

rt
g
a

g
e

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

c
h
e

m
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 F

ir
s
t 

T
im

e
 B

u
y
e

rs
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

 m
o

rt
g
a

g
e

 
w

it
h

 o
n

ly
 a

 5
%

 d
e
p

o
s
it
. 
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 R

o
s
e

  
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

  

S
C

2
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 S

tu
d
e

n
t 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a

t 
o

u
tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
G

e
o

rg
in

a
 P

a
rk

in
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

T
h
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 a
n

d
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 H
a

lla
m

 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
  

S
C

3
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 l
a

u
n

c
h

 a
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n

t 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 P
a

lm
e

r 
 

P
ri
v
a

te
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 a
n

d
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 H
a

lla
m

 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

S
C

4
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 S

h
a

re
d
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
 o

ff
e

r 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 s

in
g
le

 p
e

o
p

le
 

a
g
e

d
 l
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n
 3

5
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 i
n

to
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

 

Z
o

e
 Y

o
u

n
g
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

S
C

5
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
T

e
n

a
n

c
ie

s
 P

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
m

o
re

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
te

n
a

n
ts

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
fa

ili
n

g
 t

o
 k

e
e

p
 

th
e

ir
 t

e
n

a
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 
J
a

s
p

e
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
  

S
C

6
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 l
a

u
n

c
h

 a
n
 o

n
-l
in

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 a
n
d

 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 o

n
 t
e

n
a

n
c
y
 r

ig
h

ts
 

a
n

d
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 P
a

lm
e

r 
P

ri
v
a

te
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

S
C

7
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 c
h

o
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 o

p
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

e
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 t
o

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
G

e
o

rg
in

a
 P

a
rk

in
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 T

e
a
m

  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

G
ro

u
p

 

Page 107



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

2

th
e

ir
 h

o
m

e
s
 

S
C

8
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 r

e
v
is

e
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 
te

n
a
n

t 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
F

u
tu

re
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

“O
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 
m

y
 s

a
y
” 

p
ro

je
c
t 

g
ro

u
p

 

S
C

9
 

 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
b

e
d

 t
h

e
 

d
is

ti
n

c
t 

w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
o
p

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 S

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
F

a
m

ili
e

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g
.

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
S

a
m

 M
a

rt
in

 
C

Y
P

F
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 T
ru

s
ts

, 
J
o

b
c
e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s
, 

P
o

lic
e

, 
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
, 

R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
 T

h
ir
d

 
S

e
c
to

r,
 Y

o
u
th

 
O

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

,

S
C

1
0

 
C

o
n

c
lu

d
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 

C
re

d
it
 U

n
io

n
 b

u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t
o

 t
e

n
a
n

ts
 m

o
s
t 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
if
 v

ia
b

le
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 M

a
x
in

e
 

S
ta

v
ri
a

n
a

k
o

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
re

d
it
 

U
n

io
n

 

S
C

1
1

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 A
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

s
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
ft

e
r 

1
2

 m
o
n

th
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 i
t 

is
 f

a
ir
ly

 a
llo

c
a

ti
n

g
 

h
o

m
e

s
 t
o

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 m

o
s
t 

in
 n

e
e

d
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

  
(I

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
b

y
) 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
(r

e
v
ie

w
 b

y
) 

J
a

s
p

e
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
n

g
e

la
 R

o
w

la
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

R
H

P
s
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 A

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

S
C

1
2

 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e
fi
n
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
o
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 f
o

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 c

a
re

rs
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
ir
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
J
a

s
p

e
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
n

g
e

la
 R

o
w

la
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
  

R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
T

h
ir
d

 
S

e
c
to

r,
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p

 

S
C

1
3

 
E

x
p

lo
re

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 h

o
w

 w
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
tt
e

r 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
u

ti
s
m

 a
n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 v
ia

b
le

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

s
e

 n
e
e
d

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 m
e

t.
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

A
u

ti
s
m

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

G
ro

u
p

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p

 

S
C

1
4

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
in

g
 A

S
B

 
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
.

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
3

 
P

a
u

l 
M

c
C

u
rr

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d
, 

S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 
P

o
lic

e
 

Page 108



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

3

S
C

1
5

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 o

u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

to
 m

a
k
e

 i
t 
a
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

re
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 t
e

n
u

re
. 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
P

a
u

l 
M

c
C

u
rr

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 

S
C

1
6

 
R

e
m

o
d

e
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
-p

ro
c
u
re

 a
ll 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 b

e
s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 a
n
d

 a
lig

n
 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
A

n
n

 E
lli

s
  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

 

S
C

1
7

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 c
it
y
w

id
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 w

a
rm

th
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 m

o
s
t 
a

t 
ri
s
k
 f

ro
m

 f
u

e
l 
p
o

v
e

rt
y
 

a
n

d
 c

o
ld

-r
e

la
te

d
 i
lln

e
s
s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

  
C

h
ri
s
 S

h
a

w
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 U
n

it
, 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 H
o

m
e

s
 

a
n

d
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
W

a
rm

th
, 
T

h
ir
d

 S
e

c
to

r

S
C

1
8

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 s
u
ff

e
ri
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

b
e

in
g
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
. 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
C

h
ri
s
 S

h
a

w
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 U
n

it
, 

W
id

e
r 

P
u

b
lic

 S
e

c
to

r 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 (

e
.g

. 
G

P
s
, 

A
m

b
u

la
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 F

ir
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

) 
&

 T
h

ir
d

 
S

e
c
to

r 

S
C

1
9

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
fo

r 
G

P
s
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
o

o
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
 r

e
n

te
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
re

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 o
u

r 
a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
in

s
p

e
c
te

d
. 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 P
a

lm
e

r 
P

ri
v
a

te
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

G
P

s
 

S
C

2
0

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 

R
ig

h
t 

to
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
p

ilo
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 D

F
G

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n

e
y
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 t
o

 a
d

a
p

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d

s
 

m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

S
e

p
t 
2

0
1

4
 

L
in

d
a
 E

s
h
e

lb
y
 

P
ri
v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

O
ff

ic
e

 o
f 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
Is

s
u

e
s
, 
B

a
rn

s
le

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
P

ro
je

c
t 
T

e
a
m

 

S
C

2
1

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 t

e
n

 y
e

a
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

s
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a
n

d
 N

u
rs

in
g
 C

a
re

 t
o

 
e

n
a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

in
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 T
h

is
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 l
iv

in
g
 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
. 

  

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
J
u

lia
 T

h
o
m

p
s
o

n
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

S
C

C
, 

N
H

S
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

, 
V

o
l.
 S

e
c
, 

In
d

. 
S

e
c
to

r 

S
C

2
2

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

o
d
e

l 
o
f 

v
ir
tu

a
l 
e

x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 

n
e

w
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
in

 S
to

c
k
s
b

ri
d

g
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 a

 h
u

b
 a

n
d

 s
p
o

k
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
o
f 
fl
e

x
ib

le
 c

a
re

 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 
o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

to
c
k
s
b

ri
d

g
e

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
A

n
g
e

la
 R

o
w

la
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
  

S
C

C
, 

N
H

S
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

, 
V

o
l.
 S

e
c
, 

In
d

. 
S

e
c
to

r 

Page 109



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

4

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 

S
C

2
3

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 R
ig

h
t 

F
ir
s
t 

T
im

e
 p

ilo
t 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 
in

te
g
ra

te
s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 l
o
c
a

l 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 m

o
s
t 

a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

b
le

 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
w

e
d

g
e

s
, 

B
a
te

m
o
o

r 
a

n
d

 J
o

rd
a
n

th
o

rp
e

 a
re

a
, 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

is
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 c
it
y
w

id
e

 i
f 

s
h
o

w
n

 t
o

 b
e
 v

ia
b

le
. 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 
L

o
rr

a
in

e
 J

u
b

b
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

D
e

a
n

 B
u

tt
e

rw
o

rt
h

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

S
o

lu
ti
o
n

s
 t

e
a

m
, 

G
P

 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 

S
C

2
4

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 i
s
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
to

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 R
ig

h
t 

F
ir
s
t 
T

im
e

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 
E

d
d

ie
 S

h
e

rw
o

o
d

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
a

re
 

a
n

d
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 

L
o

c
a

l 
N

H
S

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

S
C

2
5

E
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o
r 

o
w

n
e

r 
o

c
c
u

p
ie

rs
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
o
 m

o
re

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t
h

a
t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e

re
d
 t
o

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 s
o
m

e
 o

th
e

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

e
n
a

n
ts

, 
fu

n
d

e
d
 b

y
 f

e
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
.

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
5

 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 P
a

lm
e

r 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

S
C

2
6

 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

n
e

w
 

w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 b
e

c
o
m

in
g
 

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
  

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
Z

o
e

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

D
e

b
t 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 U

n
it
, 

o
th

e
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
, 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 

C
re

d
it
 U

n
io

n
, 

te
n

a
n

c
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
S

h
e

lt
e

r 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
, 

la
n

d
lo

rd
s
 -

 p
ri
v
a

te
 

a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l,
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

S
C

2
7

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 P

a
th

w
a

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
6

 
Z

o
e

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 

Page 110



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

5

S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t,
 

R
e

fe
rr

in
g
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

* 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

a
v
e

a
t 
u

n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 E

M
T

 t
o

 a
g
re

e
 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
. 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

� �
�
�
��
��
��
�	
�

�
�	
�


�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�	

�
�



�
�
��


��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�

Page 113



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

�
�


��
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�

�� �
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�

�


�

�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��



�
�

�
��
�

��
��

��
��

�� �
�
��
�

��
�
�$
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�


��
�
�
��

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�

�



�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�


��
�


�
��

 
 
!
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

�

�
$"
"
"
�

�
��

%
�
��



�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�&
"
'
��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�

�


�

�
"
�
�
#�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
"
�
�
#�
(
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�


��

&
"
'
��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
"
�
(
#�
 
��
�)
�
�

�


��
&
"
'
�

��
��


�
�

��
�
��
"
�
 
#�
&
�*
�
�
��
�

�
�


�

�


�

�
��



�


�
��
$&
"
"
��


��
�


�
��
��


��

�


��


+


��
*


�*
�
�
��
�

�




�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
��
"
�
&
#�
,
��
�
��
��


��

�
�

�





�

�


�	
-
.
�

�
��



�
��
�

�� �
�
��
�

��
�
�&
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�+
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

(
��
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�


*
��
�
�


��
��
�

�


��
�
�
�
��
��

�
/�
�
�
�
�
��
.
$0
��
�
�
��
�

&
�
��
�
"
�
�
#�
�
��

�
"
"
�

��

%
�
��
�*
�
�
��
�

1
�
�



�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
&
'
��
��



�

��

�



�
��



�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
��
"
�
 
#�
&
��
�%
�


�

��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�


�

�
�

�

�


��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
2
�
�
�
�

.
$�
0
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�

�

�
"
'
��
��

�

�
��
�



�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�



*





�
�

�
"
�
�
#�
�
��
�
�
��
"
�
(
#�
 
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
��
�

��
��
�+


�
�

�


�

�
�


��
�
��
��



��
�
�

�


�

Page 114



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

�
��


��
�


��
�
�
�

�


��


�
�
��
�
�

��



��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�


��
��



��
��
�*

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�3
�
�
�
��
�4
�
*
�


�
�

��



��
��
�

�


�*


�

��
��

�


��
�

�
��
�

(
��
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�


��
�
�
��

�
��
�

�


��
�

�
�

�
,
5
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

(
"
"
�

��
��

(
�(
�

�



�
�
�
�


��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
�



�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

"
��
�
"
�
(
#�
 
��

5
5
�

�
��
�

�

�
�
��


*
��
�
�
�
�
�



�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�


�

�
�

�


��
�
�
�
�




�
��
�
��
�



��
�
��
"
�
(
#�
 
6�

�


�

�
��



�

��
�
�
�

��
�
��

�
��
��



�
��
�

�*
��
��

�


�

��
�

��


��



�

��
��
�
"
�
 
#�
&
��
�

(
� 
�

'
��
��
�
��
��
*


��
��
�
��
*
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��

��
��
�
�
�*
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
*
��
��
�

�


��

�
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�


�

�
��

(
(
'
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

 
"
'
�

��

)
�!
'
��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
�

1
�
�



��

�
� 
5
"
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��

��
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
�

�
�


�
��
�

�� �



�
�
�
�
�(
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�,


�
��

�
��
��
�
+
��

�
�
�
��

�
�-
�

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

 
��
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
��



�
�
��
��
��
�
7�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��


�
��
�
��
��
+
�



��
�

�

�



�
��
�
�


��

�
"
"
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

�
"
"
�

��
��

 
��
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�

�


��
��
�
�
�3
�



�
�
��
��
��
�
7�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

��



�+


�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��


�
��
�
��
��
+
�



��
��


�



�
��
�
�


��

�
�

�
�
+
�
��
�
�
�

�

 
"
"
�

��
��

 
�(
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
+
�



��


�



�
��
��
�


�

�

��
�

�
��



�

�
��
�

"
�

�
&
"
�

��
��

 
� 
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
8
9
��
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
,
:
,
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

�
!
5
�
�

��

%
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


��
�
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
8
9
��
�
�
�
�

+
�
��
��
�


�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�





��
��



��
��
�
��


�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�

�


��
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�+


��
�

�
�

�

�
�


�

�
��
�%
�


�

��
�

��



�
��
�


�

�
�
��

�
��
�


�
��



�
��
�
��
��


�


�
�
��
�
�

�


�

��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�





��
��
��

Page 115



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4

 
�&
�

)
+


��
�


�

�


��
�
�

��
��
�

�
��
��
	

�
�
�
�
��
�)
��


��
�


�

�

�
��
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
*
�


�
��
��
�


�

�

��
��

	
)
�
��
�

�
�
�
��

!
�
�,
!
�

��
"
�
�
#�
(
��

	
)
�
��
�

�
�
�
�!
&
�

��
"
�
&
#�
,
��

�
��

��
��

 
�,
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
*
�


�
��
��
�


�

�

��

�
�

�
��
�
�

��


��
*
��
�

	
)
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
!
"
�

�
�
:
,
�
��

��
"
�
�
#�
(
��

�
"
"
"
"
�

��
"
�
&
#�
,
��

�
��

��
��

 
�!
�

9
+


��
��
��


��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�


�

��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
3
9
�
�*
�

�
��
�

�


�

��
��
�


�
�

��
��

�


��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
�

&
�!
�

�
�
�


��

��
"
�
"
��

&
�

�
�
�


��

��
"
�
(
��

�
��

��

%
�


��


��
��
�
�

�
�3
9
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�


��
��
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�

��
�



�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

�
�
*


+


��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
�

�

 
"
'
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�



�
�
�
�
�.
��
!
�
-
�
��
�
�

�

��
��
��
�
+
��

�
�
�
��

�
�-
�

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

&
��
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
�



��

�

�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
+


��
,
��

�
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�




�
�
�

��
�
�
�&
'
�

�
!
�
:
��
9
�

�

�
�
��

�
&
5
(
�

��
��

&
��
�

�


��


�

�
�


��
��
�


�
�
�

�*
�
�
��




��

�


��
��
�
�


��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
��


�


��
��




�
��
��

!
:
'
��
�
"
"
!
��
�


�
��

��

�


*
��
�
�

��
�


�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�

�


�	

�
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�8

�
��



�

)
��


��
�


�

�
�
"
�
(
��
�
�
��
�

�
��



�

�
��


�

��


�

�
��


�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�;
�
��
��
"
�
(
��

&
�(
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��



�
�
�

�
��
�
�


�4
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

 
$&
5
�
�

��
"
�
�
#�
(
��

 
$ 
 
 
��

�
��
�

��

%
�
��



�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�(
'
��


�
�
�

��
�
��

Page 116



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5

&
� 
�

<

+


��
�
��
�
+


��
��
*
�


�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�5
'
��
�
"
"
!
��
�


�
��

��

�


*
��
�
�

��
�


�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�

�


�	

�
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�8

�
��



�

)
��


��
�


�

�
�
"
�
(
��
�
�
��
�

�
��



�

�
��


�

��


�

�
��


�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�;
�
��
��
"
�
(
��

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�



�
�
�
�
�/
��
�
�
��
��
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

,
��
�

�


��


�

�
�


��
��
�
�
�


�

��
��
��


�

�
�
�

��
�
�


�
��
,
4�
 
�

 
 
'
��


�
��

��
%
�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	


�+
��


�2
�
��
�


��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�8

�
��
�
��
"
�
(
��

,
��
�

�


��


�

�
�


��
��
�


�
�
�

��
�


�
��
,
4�
 
�*
�
�
��




��

�


��
��
�
�


��
��
�

��
�

�
�
�

��
�
��

�


��
��




�
��
��

5
"
'
��
�
"
"
!
��
�


�
��

��

�


*
��
�
�

��
�


�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�

�


�	

�
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�8

�
��



�

)
��


��
�


�

�
�
"
�
(
��
�
�
��
�

�
��



�

�
��


�

��


�

�
��


�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�;
�
��
��
"
�
(
��

,
�(
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�

�
�


�

�
��
�+
��
�
��
�
�	
�


��
�

��
�	

�
�
�
�
��
�1
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

"
�


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�



�
�
�
�
�0
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

��

 
�
��

!
�
�
�

��
�"
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

#
�
��
��
�
�
�

$
%
�
&
'�
(
�

)
�
��
�

�

*


�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

!
��
�

��



�+


�

�
�
�
��
*
�
��
�
��


�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
�


��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�


�
��


�
��

��
��

!
��
�

�


��


�

�
�


��
��
�


�
�
�

�*
�
�
��




��

�


��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�


��

�

�

�+


��






�
�

�


��
��




�
��
�

5
�
'
��
�
"
"
!
��
�


�
��

��

�


*
��
�
�

��
�


�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�

�


�	

�
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�8

�
��



�

)
��


��
�


�

�
�
"
�
(
��
�
�
��
�

�
��



�

�
��


�

��


�

�
��


�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�;
�
��
��
"
�
(
��

Page 117



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6

!
�(
�

�


��


�

�
�


��
��
�


�
�
�

��
�


�
��
+


��
,
"
�*
�
�
��




��

�


��
��
�
�


��
��

��
�

�
�
�

��
�
��

�


��
��




�
��
���

:
�
'
��
�
"
"
!
��
�


�
��

��

�


*
��
�
�

��
�


�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�

�


�	

�
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�8

�
��



�

)
��


��
�


�

�
�
"
�
(
��
�
�
��
�

�
��



�

�
��


�

��


�

�
��


�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�;
�
��
��
"
�
(
��

!
� 
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��



�
�
�

�
�*
�

�
��
��
�

�
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
+
�
��
�
�
�

�


�
��
�

��

�
�
��
�
�

��
�


��
��
�
�

��
�
��


�

�
�
��
+
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
*


+


��
	
�


��
�

��
�3
�

�
�

�=
�
��
�
�*
��
��
�

�
�

�

�

��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��



�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�


��
��
�
��

��

�
�

��



�
��
�

�


�

�
��

!
�&
�

>


�

�
�
��


�
��
��
��
��
��


�

�
��
�
�
��
��



�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
��

�

�

�
��
��
�

�
�(
'
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

�
� 
'
�

��
��

!
�,
�

�


��


�

�
�


��
��
�
��
�



�
�
�

�
��


�
+
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��



�
�
�
��
�*
�

�
��
�

�
��


�
��
�

(
�
'
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��

�
!
'
�

��
��

!
�!
�

�
�
�


�

��
�


��
��
��


�

�
�
�

��
�


��
�
"
"
"
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

,
�"
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��


�
��

��

%
�
��



�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	


�+
��


�

2
�
��
�


��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�8

�
��
�
��
"
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�)
�
��
��
�
"
�
(
�

!
�5
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�


�
�
�

��
�

+


�



�
��
��
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
�


�

��
��

�

�
��


�
��

��

%
�
��



�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	


�+
��


�

2
�
��
�


��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�8

�
��
�
��
"
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�)
�
��
��
�
"
�
(
�

!
�:
�

�


��

�
�


�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�



�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
��


��
�


�

�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
�


��

(
:
5
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��


�
��

��

%
�
��



�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	


�+
��


�

2
�
��
�


��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�8

�
��
�
��
"
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�)
�
��
��
�
"
�
(
�

!
��
"
�

'
��
��
�


�
�
�

�*
�
�
��
�

��


�+
��


��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��

	
3
3
�*
�
�
��




��
��
�

�

,
&
��
'
�

��
"
�
�
#�
�
��


�
��

��

%
�
��



�

�
��


��
�


�

�
��


�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	


�+
��


�

2
�
��
�


��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�8

�
��
�
��
"
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�)
�
��
��
�
"
�
(
�

Page 118


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Allocations Policy Review - Welfare Reform Consultation Results
	Item 7a - Restricted bedroom eligibility_underoccupiers penalty report V3
	Item 7b - Questionnaire Consultation Analysis Report

	8 The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2013/14 - Update
	9 Housing Strategy 2013 to 2023
	Item 9a - Housing Strategy v 0 13
	Item 9b - Housing Strategy Action Plan v 00 12
	Item 9c - Housing Strategy Performance Indicators v 00 06


